
CITY OF MENDOTA HEIGHTS 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

July 15, 2025 at 6:00 PM 
Mendota Heights City Hall, 1101 Victoria Curve, Mendota Heights 

1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Pledge of Allegiance

4. Moment of Silence in Memory of Officer Scott Patrick, EOW July 30, 2014

5. Approval of the Agenda

The Council, upon majority vote of its members, may make additions or deletions to the
agenda. These items may be submitted after the agenda preparation deadline.

6. Public Comments - for items not on the agenda

Public comments provide an opportunity to address the City Council on items which are not
on the meeting agenda. All are welcome to speak. Individuals should address their
comments to the City Council as a whole, not individual members. Speakers are requested
to come to the podium and must state their name and address. Comments are limited to
three (3) minutes. No action will be taken; however, the Mayor and Council may ask
clarifying questions as needed or request staff to follow up.

7. Consent Agenda

Items on the consent agenda are approved by one motion of the City Council. If a
councilmember requests additional information or wants to make a comment on an item,
the item will be removed from the consent agenda and considered separately. Items
removed from the consent agenda will be taken up as the next order of business.

a. Approve Minutes from the July 1, 2025, City Council Meeting
b. Acknowledge Minutes from the May 13, 2025, Parks and Recreation Commission

Meeting
c. Acknowledge Minutes from the June 10, 2025, Parks and Recreation Commission

Work Session
d. Acknowledge the May Par 3 Financial Report
e. Adopt Resolution 2025-42 Final Payment and Acceptance of Fire Station Roof

Page 1 of 107



Replacement 
 f. Approve the Hiring of a Public Works Maintenance Worker 
 g. Adopt Resolution 2025-44 Formally Accepting Donations from the Heussner Family 
 h. Adopt Resolution 2025-43 to Reject Bids for the Kensington East Street 

Improvements 
 i. Approve Developer's Agreement for the Cobalt Business Center 
 j. Approve a Massage Therapist License  
 k. Approve Temporary On-Sale Liquor License - Holy Family Maronite Catholic Church 
 l. Approve Contract to Grind Brush at City Transfer Site 
 m. Approve Purchase of Public Works Truck from Inver Grove Ford 
 n. Approve Claims List 
8. Presentations 

 a. City of Mendota Heights Speed Camera Update 
 b. Highway 62 Speed Limit Presentation 
9. Public Hearings 

10. New and Unfinished Business 

 a. Request for Proposals--Ivy Hills Park Playground 
11. Community / City Administrator Announcements 

12. City Council Comments 

13. Adjourn 

  

Next Meeting 
 

August 6, 2025 at 6:00PM 
 

Information is available in alternative formats or with the use of auxiliary aids to individuals 
with disabilities upon request by calling city hall at 651-452-1850 or by 

emailing cityhall@mendotaheightsmn.gov. 
 

Regular meetings of the City Council are cablecast on NDC4/Town Square Television Cable 
Channel 18/HD798 and online at TownSquare.TV/Webstreaming6 

 

Page 2 of 107

mailto:cityhall@mendotaheightsmn.gov
https://townsquare.tv/Webstreaming


CITY OF MENDOTA HEIGHTS
DAKOTA COUNTY

STATE OF MINNESOTA

DRAFT Minutes of the Regular Meeting
Held Tuesday, July 1, 2025

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, the regular meeting of the City Council, City of Mendota Heights, 
Minnesota, was held at 6:00 p.m. at City Hall, 1101 Victoria Curve, Mendota Heights, Minnesota.

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Levine called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. Councilors Lorberbaum, Paper, Mazzitello, and 
Maczko were also present. 

Councilor Paper left the meeting at 8:03 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Council, the audience, and staff recited the Pledge of Allegiance.

AGENDA ADOPTION

Mayor Levine presented the agenda for adoption. Councilor Mazzitello moved adoption of the agenda.
Councilor Paper seconded the motion.
Ayes: 5
Nays: 0

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Bob Klepperich, 1092 Vail Drive, commented about bikes on the trail system and asked for a campaign 
to clarify City policies related to the right-of-way for bikers versus walkers and electric bikes on the trails.  
He commented that while there are many responsible bike riders, there are also those racing at high speed 
on bikes with disregard for those walking or mowing lawns.  He asked if there were regulations for electric 
bikes.  He stated that there should be polite reminders and possibly policies developed if none exist.

CONSENT AGENDA

Mayor Levine presented the consent agenda and explained the procedure for discussion and approval. 
Councilor Lorberbaum moved approval of the consent agenda as presented, pulling item b.

a. Approval of June 17, 2025, City Council Minutes
b. Approval of June 17, 2025, Council Work Session Minutes
c. Acknowledge Minutes from the May 27, 2025, Planning Commission Meeting
d. Approve Resolution 2025-34 Proclaiming July 2025 as “Parks and Recreation Month”

7.a

Page 3 of 107



July 1, 2025, Mendota Heights City Council Page 2 of 12

e. Approve Resolution 2025-35 for a Joint Powers Agreement with the Bureau of Criminal
Apprehension Internet Crimes Against Children Task Force Program

f. Approve Bank Account Changes
g. Approve May 2025 Treasurer’s Report
h. Approval of Claims List

Councilor Mazzitello seconded the motion.
Ayes: 5
Nays: 0

PULLED CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS
B) ACKNOWLEDGE THE JUNE 17, 2025, COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES

Councilor Lorberbaum commented that she was not present at the meeting and will be abstaining from 
this vote.

Councilor Mazzitello moved to approve  THE JUNE 17, 2025, COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES.
Councilor Paper seconded the motion.
Ayes: 4
Nays: 0
Abstain: 1 (Lorberbaum)

PRESENTATIONS
A) RECOGNITION AND PRESENTATION OF LIFE SAVING AWARD

Ralph Heussner commented that he and his wife have been residents for 40 years, and on June 4th, he 
collapsed while mowing the lawn.  He stated that he has no memory of that day or the week that followed, 
and all the information came from his wife and medical providers.  He was told that most people do not 
survive a cardiac arrest at home, and that he had died and came back.  He stated that without the first 
responders, the quick action of his neighbor, and the CPR knowledge of his wife, he would not be back.  
He also thanked those who had sent him notes in his recovery.  He thanked everyone who helped bring 
him back.

Police Chief Kelly McCarthy provided information on the medical response call of a male having a heart 
attack that first responders responded to on June 4, 2025.  First responders worked alongside friends and 
neighbors in delivering life-saving interventions.

Carol Heussner expressed gratitude for the service the first responders provided to save her husband.

PUBLIC HEARING

No items scheduled.

NEW AND UNFINISHED BUSINESS
A) CITY OF MENDOTA HEIGHTS FY2024 AUDIT REPORT

Caroline Stutsman, BerganKDV, presented the Annual Audit Review for 2024, reporting a clean, or 
unmodified opinion.

Page 4 of 107



July 1, 2025, Mendota Heights City Council Page 3 of 12

Councilor Mazzitello thanked Finance Director Kristen Schabacker for her wonderful work.

Mayor Levine echoed the thanks to Finance Director Kristen Schabacker and her team.

B) CITY COUNCIL GOVERNING PRINCIPLES

City Administrator Cheryl Jacobson provided a brief background on this item. The Council was being 
asked to consider Resolution 2025-41, establishing City Council governing principles.

Councilor Mazzitello moved to adopt RESOLUTION NO. 2025-41 ESTABLISHING CITY COUNCIL 
GOVERNING PRINCIPLES.
Councilor Lorberbaum seconded the motion.

Further discussion: Councilor Lorberbaum asked and received confirmation that this information would 
be posted on the website for all to see.

Councilor Maczko thanked City Administrator Cheryl Jacobson for drafting the document and capturing 
the comments and discussion of the Council.  

Ayes: 5
Nays: 0

C) RESOLUTION 2025-36 APPROVING A PRELIMINARY PLAT OF MCMILLAN ESTATES TO
SUBDIVIDE THREE (3) EXISTING PARCELS INTO SIX (6) SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL

PARCELS LOCATED AT 1707 DELAWARE AVENUE AND ITS ADJACENT VACANT PARCELS 
OWNED IN COMMON (PLANNING CASE 2025-03)

Community Development Manager Sarah Madden provided a brief background on this item. The Council 
was being asked to consider Resolution 2025-36, approving a Preliminary Plat of McMillan Estates.

Mayor Levine acknowledged that there has been a public hearing on this topic, and many written 
comments have been received.  

Councilor Mazzitello asked and received confirmation that the City's deadline to act on this application is 
August 19th.  He asked about the process that would be followed if the preliminary and final plats are 
approved, and if there are additional wetland impacts proposed in the building process of the homes.

Community Development Manager Sarah Madden replied that if they get to the building permit phase and 
the homeowner realizes that there would be additional wetland impacts, the homeowner would need to 
apply for their own wetland permit application.  She commented that, because there would be no more 
exemptions available, mitigation would need to then be provided.

Councilor Mazzitello asked if there is a timeframe between preliminary and final plat, meaning that there 
would be a set time within which the final plat would need to be presented if the preliminary plat is 
approved.

Community Development Manager Sarah Madden stated that the preliminary plat would be valid for one 
year before it expired.  She stated that within that timeframe, the final plat would need to be presented, or 
an extension could be requested.

Page 5 of 107



July 1, 2025, Mendota Heights City Council Page 4 of 12

Councilor Paper referenced proposed condition nine and asked the process to have land rather than a fee 
for park dedication.

Community Development Manager Sarah Madden replied that the default process would be a land 
dedication, but staff did not recommend land dedication because of a lack of planning for park property 
in this area.  She commented that often the City accepts cash in lieu of land for park dedication.  

Councilor Maczko stated that his concern would be that they approve the plat, which shows driveways 
and building pads, and asked if it would be the responsibility of the City to ensure that it could be 
constructed to prevent the situation that a future lot owner must later deal with wetland impacts that could 
exist.

Community Development Manager Sarah Madden stated that staff did ask the applicant to consider 
driveway and grading impacts that may be relevant for wetland impacts.  She commented that the plan 
prepared is a result of that conversation.  She commented that two of the wetland impact areas are related 
to driveways.  She stated that if a future property owner chooses to modify that plan, they would need to 
provide the necessary data to support that type of application.

Councilor Maczko asked if the width of the driveway and grades are shown in the plan to ensure that 
someone could develop where the plat states they could.

Community Development Manager Sarah Madden stated that the location of the driveways and contour 
information is shown on the plat, and the minimum driveway width is shown.  

Councilor Maczko commented that lots five and six seem to be of concern.  He asked if these homes 
would be sprinkled because of the longer cul-de-sac.

Community Development Manager Sarah Madden replied that home details are not required as part of a 
preliminary plat.  She stated that there is water service and extension provided for a new fire hydrant on 
the new cul-de-sac.  

Public Works Director Ryan Ruzek stated that he was not able to find a requirement that the Orchard 
homes must be sprinkled.  He stated that it could be added as a requested condition if desired.  He stated 
that 20-foot-wide driveways were required for Sunfish Lake, but the Fire Code has been updated, and one- 
and two-family homes are now exempt from that requirement.  He stated that the Council could make the 
requirement that the homes be sprinkled due to the length of the cul-de-sac.

Councilor Maczko referenced condition 15, which was added by the Planning Commission, related to the 
public right-of-way.  He stated that they do not know if that property would be developed and asked if 
they should require that.  He noted that they are in the process of recodification of the City Code, which 
would solidify the 500-foot maximum length for a cul-de-sac and could prevent the northern property 
owner from developing off Delaware.  He stated that, from a public safety point of view, he does not like 
long cul-de-sacs.  

Community Development Manager Sarah Madden provided additional details on the requirements for 
platting and planned connection.  She explained that if the 500-foot language is further solidified in the 
City Code, related to cul-de-sac length, the property to the north could request a variance to extend the 
right-of-way, or they could construct an L-shaped road, which would extend and connect to Delaware.  

Page 6 of 107



July 1, 2025, Mendota Heights City Council Page 5 of 12

Councilor Maczko commented that it was a reasonable decision in the past to bring the existing cul-de-
sac to the property line, which provided for the opportunity of this property owner to develop, and would 
think it makes sense to do the same in this scenario to protect the rights of the northern property owner to 
develop.

Councilor Lorberbaum commented that this is a preliminary plat, and there are conditions placed upon the 
approval that must be met for the final plat.  She referenced the issue of tree preservation and asked if the 
applicant must attempt to show tree removal and replacement, even though they will not be building the 
individual homes.

Community Development Manager Sarah Madden confirmed that it is accurate.

Councilor Lorberbaum referenced lot six, noting that there is no guarantee that the driveway will be in the 
proposed location, although she recognized that it would be the most feasible location.  She stated that a 
driveway in that location may harm the roots of trees on a neighboring property and asked if that is 
allowed.

Community Development Manager Sarah Madden explained that the City reviews the width, location, 
and grade of a driveway, and a driveway permit can include tree mitigation measures.  She stated that the 
City does not review that level of impact to trees when reviewing a driveway permit.  

Councilor Lorberbaum asked if lot six would not be viable if there is no other placement for the driveway 
that would not impact neighboring trees.

Community Development Manager Sarah Madden replied that lot six meets all City requirements under 
the preliminary plat application.  She stated that based on the urban forest preservation ordinance, staff 
would attach condition 16 to any applicable permits.  

Councilor Lorberbaum restated that the city, in its approval, is saying that the lot is a viable lot.

Community Development Manager restated that the lot meets the minimum dimensional standards of city 
code.

Councilor Maczko asked if the driveway could be moved closer to the wetland to avoid damage to trees.  
He recognized that trees of neighbors that could be impacted.  He recognized that someone has the right 
to develop a property, but did not believe they have the right to impact someone else’s property.  He stated 
that they should express that concern now, as they do not want damage to private property.  He stated that 
there is a way that could be rectified through the development, as the driveway could be moved over, 
which would require wetland mitigation that could be provided by the developer, but perhaps not by 
individual property owners.  He recognized that not all future property owners complete their own due 
diligence and often just trust their realtors.  He did not want to be in a situation where someone would 
need a variance because they could not build according to the plans.

Public Works Director Ryan Ruzek stated that the driveway going back to the home pad would follow the 
natural ground, and a certified arborist would provide protection measures for any trees that may be 
impacted.  He stated that the driveway meets the requirements of the City Code, and a condition has been 
added that a certified arborist would need to review and approve the impact.  He stated that the developer 
could also approach the neighboring property owner with an offer of settlement as well.  

Page 7 of 107



July 1, 2025, Mendota Heights City Council Page 6 of 12

Councilor Maczko commented that he would like the details hashed out in the final plat to address this 
concern.  He stated that there is a right to develop, but he also wants to ensure that what is planned could 
be constructed, so the onus is not passed to an unsuspecting property owner.

Mayor Levine asked if there is a place to do that in the resolution.

Community Development Manager Sarah Madden replied that the City can place a condition upon a 
preliminary plat related to wetland impacts and mitigation.  She stated that condition 16 addresses those 
concerns.  She stated that a timeline for the development of the individual homes is not required at this 
time in the process, and the level of impact to the wetlands has been shown as required.  

Mayor Levine restated that the city can put in a condition, because it is not known exactly where the 
driveway is going to go.

Councilor Lorberbaum recognized that lot six is viable even though there is a concern with harm to trees 
on a neighboring lot not in the development.  

City Attorney Amy Schmidt stated that by approving the preliminary plat, the Council is not saying this 
is a buildable lot as presented, but instead meets the dimensional requirements of the City Code and based 
upon the information provided and reviewed.  She stated that all of the information is public and would 
continue to be available.  She stated that it is important to note that it is not the duty of the City to protect 
every property owner into the future.  The application is designed to review and approve whether all 
requirements of the preliminary plat have been met.  She stated that conditions could be placed upon the 
preliminary plat approval to ensure that those could be addressed by the time of the final plat.

Public Works Director Ryan Ruzek stated that the developer could be asked to mark out the property line 
every 50 feet, and if there are significant trees on the neighboring property, an assessment could be done 
before the final plat.  

Mayor Levine commented that the Council has read the written comments and hopes that all questions 
have been answered.  She stated that the applicant would be invited to speak, and if a resident had a new 
concern or information, they could also speak.

Spencer McMillan, applicant, stated that he had sent a letter related to the extension of the right-of-way.  
He stated that in regard to park dedication, land versus fee, and noted that a requirement for land would 
place a burden on the development.  He explained that this process started 18 months ago with three lots 
to minimize impacts to the wetland and land, but that was not allowed by City Code.  He stated that the 
requirements to build the cul-de-sac added a large cost, which then led to this development proposal.  He 
stated that they are investing in the infrastructure, and the six lots support the cost to construct the cul-de-
sac.  He commented that they are dedicating all the land for the construction of the cul-de-sac, along with 
the right-of-way to Dakota County along Delaware.  He noted that there are 5.5 acres of wetland on the 
property as well, so, along with the dedicated land as mentioned, additional park dedication would impact 
the viability of the project.  He stated that the home on lot six would be further away from the existing 
homes than the existing homes are from each other.  He stated that they tried to minimize impacts to the 
wetlands and follow all requirements of the City Code.  

Page 8 of 107



July 1, 2025, Mendota Heights City Council Page 7 of 12

Councilor Mazzitello thanked the applicant for his letter, which mentions that the dedication of the right-
of-way to the northern property would adversely impact his proposed subdivision, and asked for more 
information.

Mr. McMillan stated that he has three young children, and he would like them to grow up and build a 
home at the end of the cul-de-sac.  He stated that if the cul-de-sac were extended north, that would impact 
the viability and value of their property.  He stated that it is not their intention to extend the cul-de-sac 
north, and he did not believe it was a requirement of the City Code or under Minnesota State law.

Jim Kolar, 1695 Delaware, stated that he has always been supportive of the development and would plan 
to match the density, but this would hold him hostage on the back portion of his property.  He stated that 
the right-of-way extension would be 88 feet.  He commented that statements have been made that access 
to his property could come from Delaware, but he did not believe that to be the case.  He believed that the 
alternative was unreasonable, as a 1,200-foot roadway would be required to support four homes.  He stated 
that the developers of Ridgewood were required to extend that nub, which provided Mr. McMillan to 
extend to his property, and was asking for the same opportunity to be provided to his property.  He stated 
that if the cul-de-sac were extended north to the Bader property and touched on Foxwood, potentially 
through an emergency gate, that would solve the issue of public safety concerns.  He stated that an L 
roadway would require his home to be torn down.  He stated that this would leave him as the only 
undeveloped ten-acre parcel, and the back portion would become landlocked.  He stated that the 88-foot 
right-of-way would harmonize the interests of everyone.  He referenced the statement that the extension 
would devalue the McMillan property, but noted that Mr. McMillan is doing the same to the properties 
currently on the cul-de-sac, which will be extended for his development.  He stated that failure to plan for 
this connection would significantly devalue his property and the ability to develop the property.  He stated 
that if he is provided with the right-of-way extension, he would do the same if/when his property is 
developed.  He stated that although the Council is not required to do certain things, they are also not 
precluded from doing so.  He asked the Council to balance the rights of all parties.  

Mike Bader, 1297 Knollwood Lane, commented that his parents purchased the property on Delaware and 
were held hostage by the poor planning of Foxwood.  He stated that the ability to develop is consistent 
with the Comprehensive Plan and makes sense.  He stated that private landowners should have the right 
to develop their property.  He echoed the comments of Mr. Koehler and asked the Council to make up for 
previous mistakes in Foxwood, which limited the ability of other properties to develop.  

Shawn Fahnhorst, 1767 Ridgewood Drive, stated that he has been advocating for the mitigation of 
disruptions in the neighborhood by the dedication of public space.  He suggested perhaps a multi-modal 
trail which could run along the street.  He stated that he would be willing to offer part of his front yard to 
continue the trail to Marie Avenue.  

John Weikert, 1737 Delaware Avenue, stated that the Council has a moral and ethical responsibility to the 
citizens now and the citizens of the future.  He stated that lot six will clearly have a negative impact on 
the property values of the surrounding neighbors.  He commented that people purchased their lots looking 
out onto the grasslands.  He asked if the proposed driveway would be at grade level, noting that the lot 
floods.

Mayor Levine thanked everyone who provided public input throughout the review process.

Councilor Mazzitello stated that there was a recent development that was controversial with neighboring 
property owners.  He stated that there is a luxury of time as the deadline is in the middle of August.  He 

Page 9 of 107



July 1, 2025, Mendota Heights City Council Page 8 of 12

asked if the Council would be interested in following a similar process to table the request and have a 
subcommittee of the Council meet with the residents and then approach the developers with an ask to 
determine if there is a middle ground.  He commented that process made the previous apartment project 
better as the concerns of the residents were met and the developer was allowed to construct their project.  

Councilor Maczko stated that, from his perspective, it would be the neighborly thing to do.  He was unsure 
of the level of neighborhood and developer interaction that had occurred.  He stated that it is clear that the 
developer has the right to develop the property, but neighbors do have concerns.  He believed that there 
is a responsibility to ensure the plans can be constructed as presented.  He did not believe a developer has 
the ability to physically impact things on neighboring properties, such as trees.  He stated that if there are 
conditions for lot six, those should be memorialized to ensure future property owners could find that 
information.  He stated that he would like to find something that everyone could accept and feel okay 
about, and would be open to the process described by Councilor Mazzitello.

Councilor Lorberbaum commented that she had met with several neighbors, and they would like the 
opportunity to speak with Mr. McMillan and discuss this matter.  She also supported the concept 
proposed by Councilor Mazzitello.  She stated that the Planning Commission did a wonderful job and 
understood their role that they must approve something if the plan follows ordinances, but it also hurt 
their hearts to vote yes.   She stated that two weeks ago, draft revisions to the city’s subdivision code 
were discussed by the City Council.   She reiterated that the purpose of the subdivision ordinance is to 
safeguard the best interests of the city, to assist the subdivider in harmonizing their interest with those of 
the city, provide for an attractive, orderly, economic, and safe development of land and urban services 
and facilities, and to protect the character and symmetry of the neighborhoods in the city while 
preserving and enhancing the value and economic use of property.  

Councilor Paper commented that he is open to that idea, as it resulted in a better project in the end.  He 
stated that he would prefer to accept the parkland dedication, which could create a nature trail in an 
incredible area.

Mr. McMillan stated that he is fully in support of the concept as he wants to work with neighbors and 
would like to collaborate.  

City Administrator Cheryl Jacobson commented that they would need to determine who on the Council 
would be a part of the discussions.  She noted that in the case of the Plaza, they had two Council members.  
She noted that there is an August 19th deadline for this application review.  

Councilor Mazzitello stated that part of the reason they are redoing Title 11 is to align the Zoning Code 
with the Comprehensive Plan.  He stated that there are at least three policy statements within the 
Comprehensive Plan related to future planning, proper planning for future growth and development, and 
connectivity.   He stated that the Comprehensive Plan trumps city code.  

Councilor Mazzitello moved to table CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2025-36 TO THE 
AUGUST 6, 2025, COUNCIL MEETING AND SCHEDULE A MEETING BETWEEN RESIDENTS 
AND THE DEVELOPER BETWEEN THEN AND NOW TO WORK OUT THE ISSUES.
Councilor Lorberbaum seconded the motion.

Further discussion: Mayor Levine appreciated all the comments that had been made and believes that this 
will result in a better product for the community.

Page 10 of 107



July 1, 2025, Mendota Heights City Council Page 9 of 12

Ayes: 5
Nays: 0

D) RESOLUTION 2025-37 APPROVING A VARIANCE TO ALLOW FOR THE CONSTRUCTION 
OF A FENCE EXCEEDING 6-FT IN HEIGHT FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1341 CHERRY 

HILL ROAD (PLANNING CASE 2025-07)

Community Development Manager Sarah Madden provided a brief background on this item. The Council 
was being asked to consider Resolution 2025-37 approving a variance to allow the construction of a nine-
foot fence on the property located at 1341 Cherry Hill Road.

Mayor Levine acknowledged that it would only be a portion of the fence that exceeds nine feet and noted 
that the condition sufficiently addresses the tapering.

Councilor Mazzitello asked about the distance of the taper and how that would be regulated.

Community Development Manager Sarah Madden explained that the Planning Commission discussed 
this, noting different methods of taper that could be chosen.  She stated that the Council could further 
define that within a condition if desired.  She stated that the applicant agrees with the taper method but 
was unsure what that would look like until information is provided by the contractor.  

Councilor Mazzitello asked how the distance of 15 feet was determined.

Community Development Manager Sarah Madden explained the methodology of her recommendation.  

Councilor Maczko stated that he would prefer to respond to the taper suggested by the applicant, as it 
would be hard to dictate what would look right and determine what that distance would be.

Community Development Manager Sarah Madden stated that when there is a taper, it is typically terraced, 
but that can vary, and that is why the condition was not specified.

Mayor Levine commented that staff and the Planning Commission did a great job.  She stated that the 
proposed fence will be an improvement over what currently exists.

Danny Michel, applicant, stated that he originally requested the nine-foot fence but prefers the taper 
method as discussed by staff.  He stated that it would perhaps make sense to have a straight-line taper to 
match the contours of the property.  He stated that he is not planning to have the taper along the length of 
his property and would like to taper after the 15 feet, perhaps to the midline, and then have six-foot fencing.  

Councilor Mazzitello stated that staff would then decide through the fence permit if the taper is reasonable.

Councilor Lorberbaum moved to adopt RESOLUTION NO. 2025-37 APPROVING A VARIANCE TO 
ALLOW FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A FENCE EXCEEDING 6-FT IN HEIGHT FOR THE 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1341 CHERRY HILL ROAD.
Councilor Mazzitello seconded the motion.
Ayes: 4
Nays: 0

Page 11 of 107



July 1, 2025, Mendota Heights City Council Page 10 of 12

E) RESOLUTION 2025-38 APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT AMENDMENT FOR 
GLENN BARON (REPRESENTING THE HEIGHTS RACQUET & SOCIAL CLUB) FOR THE 
OUTDOOR COMMERCIAL RECREATION USE LOCATED AT 1415 MENDOTA HEIGHTS 

ROAD (PLANNING CASE 2025-08)

Community Development Manager Sarah Madden provided a brief background on this item. The Council 
was being asked to consider Resolution 2025-38 approving a Conditional Use Permit Amendment for the 
outdoor commercial recreation use located at 1415 Mendota Heights Road.

Councilor Maczko asked and received confirmation that the parking would be paved and striped.

Councilor Mazzitello moved to adopt RESOLUTION NO. 2025-38 APPROVING A CONDITIONAL 
USE PERMIT AMENDMENT FOR THE OUTDOOR COMMERCIAL RECREATION USE 
LOCATED AT 1415 MENDOTA HEIGHTS ROAD (PLANNING CASE 2025-08).
Councilor Maczko seconded the motion.
Ayes: 4
Nays: 0

F) RESOLUTION 2025-39 APPROVING A VARIANCE TO THE REAR YARD SETBACK TO 
ALLOW FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW THREE-SEASON PORCH ADDITION 

LOCATED AT 2150 AZTEC LANE (PLANNING CASE 2025-09)

Community Development Manager Sarah Madden provided a brief background on this item. The Council 
was being asked to consider Resolution 2025-39, approving a variance request at 2150 Aztec Lane.

Councilor Mazzitello commented that he lives in a similar neighborhood with lots platted under the current 
minimum requirements.  He stated that he does have a four-season porch on his home, which also 
encroaches on the back setback.  He asked if a variance was previously approved for the deck and addition 
on this property.

Community Development Manager Sarah Madden replied that she was unable to find prior record of 
variance approvals for this address.  She stated that she did find a building permit record that the addition 
was constructed in 1978 or 1979, and a variance may not have been required at that time.  

Councilor Maczko stated that some of the Friendly Hills properties in his neighborhood back up to 
marshland that will never be developed.  He stated that this property similarly backs up to the CDA 
property, which may not be developed.  He stated that he wanted to ensure that this approval would not 
violate any past variance conditions.  

Councilor Mazzitello recognized that there are new impervious surface rules adopted with the Zoning 
Code and recognized the work of Planning Commissioner Johnson to ensure that this request would be 
compliant.  

Councilor Mazzitello moved to adopt RESOLUTION NO. 2025-39 APPROVING A VARIANCE TO 
THE REAR-YARD SETBACK TO ALLOW FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A THREE-SEASON 
PORCH ADDITION LOCATED AT 2150 AZTEC LANE (PLANNING CASE 2025-09).
Councilor Lorberbaum seconded the motion.

Page 12 of 107



July 1, 2025, Mendota Heights City Council Page 11 of 12

Further discussion: Mayor Levine commented that she is pleased to see residents improving their 
properties and neighbors supporting that action.  She recognized that this is a process, but noted that the 
Council wanted to provide an opportunity for residents to improve their homes and maintain the character 
of these areas.

Ayes: 4
Nays: 0

G) RESOLUTION 2025-40 APPROVING A MRCCA PERMIT AND CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT
AMENDMENT APPLICATION FOR NORTHERN STATES POWER COMPANY (XCEL ENERGY)

TO ALLOW FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW 24-FOOT X 24-FOOT CONCRETE PAD 
FOUNDATION AND PREFABRICATED STRUCTURE AT THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 800 

SIBLEY MEMORIAL HIGHWAY (PLANNING CASE 2025-10)

Community Development Manager Sarah Madden provided a brief background on this item. The Council 
was being asked to consider Resolution 2025-40, approving a MRCCA Permit and Conditional Use Permit 
(CUP) Amendment for Northern States Power Company (Xcel Energy) to allow site improvements at the 
property located at 800 Sibley Memorial Highway.

Councilor Maczko asked what the building will look like.

Grant Pinska, Xcel Energy, commented that the building would be like other buildings on the site and 
would be almost completely screened from most residential properties.  He stated that it would be a metal 
frame building painted blue.

Councilor Maczko commented that he is unhappy with the fence that was put on the other side of the 
property.

Mr. Pinska replied that it is part of the electrical portion of the site.

Councilor Lorberbaum asked for information on the red circles shown on one of the maps.

Community Development Manager Sarah Madden replied that it is a utility map.

Councilor Mazzitello moved to adopt RESOLUTION NO. 2025-40 APPROVING A MISSISSIPPI 
RIVER CORRIDOR CRITICAL AREA (MRCCA) PERMIT AND AMENDED CONDITIONAL USE 
PERMIT (CUP) TO XCEL ENERGY AND FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 800 SIBLEY 
MEMORIAL HIGHWAY (PLANNING CASE 2025-10).
Councilor Maczko seconded the motion.
Ayes: 4
Nays: 0

COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS

City Administrator Cheryl Jacobson announced upcoming community events and activities.

Page 13 of 107



July 1, 2025, Mendota Heights City Council Page 12 of 12

COUNCIL COMMENTS

Councilor Maczko recognized the lifesaving awards that were presented tonight and recognized the value 
that the public safety team provides to the community.  He recognized that the early intervention efforts 
of the spouse and neighbor made all the difference, also noting the quick response of a paid-on-call 
firefighter who lives in the area.  He encouraged all residents to become CPR knowledgeable and stop to 
help a neighbor in need.  He stated that he also shares the concern related to trail bikes, noting that he had 
a near miss on a trail with children on motorized bikes on the trail.  He stated that electric motors will 
need to be addressed, as it is creating a hazard on the trails.  He stated that he received many phone calls 
when the speed limit on 62 was increased and encouraged residents to attend or watch the July 15th Council 
meeting, where MnDOT will provide information on their practice to set speeds. 

Councilor Lorberbaum recognized an Islamic holiday observed on July 5th.  She encouraged everyone to 
come watch the fireworks on July 4th and reminded residents of the reason for the holiday.  

Councilor Mazzitello complimented the Planning Commission for its large agenda and thoughtful 
discussion the previous week.  He also recognized the work of Community Development Manager Sarah 
Madden for her outstanding work on the many planning cases.  He stated that while he enjoys the 
controlled fireworks displays, he cautioned residents against using fireworks on their personal property or 
in their neighborhoods, as some pets and veterans do not enjoy those sounds.  He commented that 56 
people signed the Declaration of Independence, some of whom are well known and others who are not, 
providing additional information on six lesser-known signers.  

Mayor Levine acknowledged all of those who were involved in the lifesaving award presentation and 
event.  She also recognized the heavy lift of staff in the items presented tonight.

ADJOURN

Councilor Mazzitello moved to adjourn.
Councilor Maczko seconded the motion.
Ayes: 4
Nays: 0

Mayor Levine adjourned the meeting at 8:56 p.m.

____________________________________
Stephanie B. Levine
Mayor

ATTEST:

_______________________________
Nancy Bauer
City Clerk

Page 14 of 107



CITY OF MENDOTA HEIGHTS, DAKOTA COUNTY, MINNESOTA

PARKS AND RECREATION MEETING MINUTES

MAY 13, 2025

The May meeting of the Mendota Heights Parks and Recreation Commission was held on 
Tuesday, May 13, 2025, at Mendota Heights City Hall, 1101 Victoria Curve.

1. Call to Order – Chair Jaffrey Blanks called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

2. Roll Call – The following Commissioners were present: Chair Jaffrey Blanks,
Commissioners: Jennifer Weichert, Jo Schifsky, Michelle Muller (arrived at 6:31 p.m.), Daniel
Van Lith, and Michael Toth; absent: Commissioner Dan Sherer and Student Representative
Evangeline Fuentes. Staff present: Parks and Recreation/Assistant Public Works Director
Meredith Lawrence, Recreation Program Coordinator Willow Eisfeldt, Recreation Facilities
Coordinator Trey Carlson, and Public Works Director Ryan Ruzek.

3. Pledge of Allegiance
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

4. Approval of Agenda
Motion Schifsky/second Weichert, to approve the agenda.  AYES 5: NAYS 0

Commissioner Muller arrived.

5.a Approval of Minutes from March 11, 2025, Regular Meeting
Motion Weichert/second Muller, to approve the minutes of the March 11, 2025, Parks and
Recreation Commission Regular Meeting. AYES 6: NAYS 0

6. Citizen Comment Period (for items not on the agenda)
None.

7. Acknowledgement of Reports
Chair Blanks read the titles of the three updates (Par 3, Park Improvement, Recreation, Park
System Master Plan, and Parks and Recreation Strategic Plan Updates) and polled the
Commissioners for questions.

7.a Parks Improvement Project Update
Parks and Recreation/Assistant Public Works Director Meredith Lawrence reviewed the parks
improvement projects that were approved as part of the 2025 budget and provided a status
update on each project.

7.b Recreation Update
Recreation Program Coordinator Willow Eisfeldt provided the recreation update, highlighting
recent and upcoming events and activities.  She noted that the Parks Celebration event has
been rebranded as Heights Fest and provided an overview of the planned activities.

Commissioner Toth asked for more information on the name change.

Page 15 of 107

7.b



Ms. Eisfeldt provided additional information on the rebranding of the event to better reflect 
Mendota Heights.

Commissioner Weichert stated that many young families in her neighborhood enjoyed the 
Touch a Truck event this past weekend.

7.c  Par 3 Update
Recreation Facilities Coordinator Trey Carlson reviewed the Par 3 update, noting the soft
opening at the end of March for a few days, which was very popular.  He stated that the season
officially opened on April 10 and provided statistics on the course so far this season.  The
implementation of the new software has been successful.  He provided an update on course
conditions, maintenance, summer programs, and leagues.

Commissioner Weichert asked how the rounds from March and April compare to the previous 
year.

Mr. Carlson replied that there was a slightly higher number of rounds in 2025. 

Ms. Lawrence replied that in 2024, they were open eight more days than in 2025.  She believed 
that the increase in rounds was due to the software, which allows customers to book a tee time 
online.  It was estimated that about 50 percent of the tee times are being made online.  She 
commended Mr. Carlson and his staff for making the software implementation a success, as this 
was a big step for the City and staff.  

Commissioner Schifsky asked how the new software is being advertised to users.

Mr. Carlson commented that they made customers aware of the new software at the soft 
opening in March, used social media and the City website, and have brochures available at the 
clubhouse.  

Commissioner Muller commented that the system is very user-friendly and is the same system 
used by another course.  She was impressed by the number of schools that are golfing at the 
Par 3 and asked how they coordinate with the school groups.

Mr. Carlson replied that the school groups call, and he works with them to schedule times.  He 
estimated 12 schools that use the course.  He stated that they have hosted a JV exhibition 
tournament and have another school tournament coming up.  

Commissioner Muller asked about Youth on Course and whether they would be implementing 
that.

Ms. Lawrence commented that the goal for this year is to get the online tee time software up 
and running well, and Youth on Course is a goal for next year.

Chair Blanks commented that it is great to see the continued growth of the course.

7.d Commission Work Plan Update
Parks and Recreation/Assistant Public Works Director Meredith Lawrence stated that the
Commission Work Plan, approved at the March meeting, was included in the packet.  She
provided an update on the status of items within the plan.

Page 16 of 107



Commissioner Weichert stated that she would like to work with Mr. Carlson to provide input on 
the desires of the senior community for programming opportunities.  She asked if there has 
been progress on seeking grant opportunities.

Ms. Lawrence identified grants that the City routinely applies for in the parks system.  She noted 
a new staff member has joined the city’s team and can assist with grant writing.  She stated that 
the Master Plan consultant also identified park grant opportunities that the City can pursue.  

Commissioner Schifsky suggested looking at opportunities that could combine both teen and 
senior programming.  

7.e Parks System Master Plan Update
Parks and Recreation/Assistant Public Works Director Meredith Lawrence stated that staff
continues to work with the consultant to complete the Parks System Master Plan, which will be
finalized, adopted, and implemented.  She stated that a draft was provided to the Commission
tonight to review prior to the release to the public.  She noted that a presentation of the final
plan will be made at the June 17 City Council meeting, and the Commission is invited to attend.

8. New Business

8.a Ivy Hills Playground Replacement Recommendation
Parks and Recreation/Assistant Public Works Director Meredith Lawrence provided background
information on the playground at Ivy Hills, the existing conditions, and why the playground is
planned for replacement.  She stated that the Commission provided consensus to staff to move
forward with the RFP and provided additional comments on the changes the City Council made
to the RFP in a desire to have more creativity in the proposals received.  She stated that six
proposals were received from five qualified vendors, which were reviewed by the subcommittee,
which narrowed the proposals to four for community engagement.  She presented the four
proposals.

Commissioner Weichert commented that woodchips are not accessible for people in 
wheelchairs.

Ms. Lawrence agreed and noted that although woodchips are considered accessible, they are 
not easy to traverse through.

Commissioner Schifsky stated that accessibility is not just related to wheelchairs, but can also 
include people who have an unsteady gait, people with walkers, seniors, and parents with 
strollers.  She agreed that it is challenging and also had input related to the merry-go-round 
being an accessible feature.

Ms. Lawrence reviewed the tactics for community engagement, the engagement that occurred 
for this project, and the input received on the different proposals.  She stated that the 2025 
budget for this project included $160,000 from the general fund for the project, along with 
$20,000 for the increased size of the playground from the special park fund, for a total of 
$180,000.  She asked that the Commission make a recommendation on this project tonight in 
order to move forward to the Council.  She commented that because of the delays at the 
Council level, it would be anticipated that this project would take place in September.

Chair Blanks invited residents to provide input.

Page 17 of 107



Adina Overbee, 1200 Sylvandale Rd, commented that they are frequent users of the parks with 
their grandchildren.  She stated that the park is not just for children, but for everyone.  She 
stated that she likes option three because of the colors, as she found that more attractive to the 
eye and in scale with the remainder of the park.  She understood that some people like bright 
colors, but asked if the rubber surface could be a lesser tone, such as green.  She stated that 
she would not put a lot of value in the online survey, as that encouraged people to vote multiple 
times.  She stated that people voted many times, which skewed the results, and believed the 
survey should have restricted users to only one vote.  She thanked the Commission and staff for 
their work and looked forward to the updated playground.  

Ms. Lawrence commented that any of the proposed colors can be changed if desired, but 
acknowledged that people may have voted for a playground proposal because of the colors.  
She asked the Commission to focus on the features rather than the colors, as the colors could 
be changed.  

Commissioner Toth stated that the Commission has been asked to recommend one of these 
proposals.  He commented that it appears the engagement system in place has failed them.  He 
stated that if there were residents who could consistently vote, that would seem to have been a 
waste of time.

Commissioner Muller commented that the residents who attended in person voted only one 
time.

Commissioner Toth asked how they could fix the system going forward and what the 
Commission should base its decision on.

Ms. Lawrence provided background information on the system used to complete previous park 
surveys and the negative input received from residents related to that system.  She stated that 
for this survey, they used the same process as Valley View Heights.  She stated that when she 
completed the survey, to get a better understanding of the user experience, she did not notice 
something that encouraged users to take the survey again.  She commented that there may be 
data available that shows the IP address of the user, but she did not pull that data for tonight’s 
meeting.  She stated that she would be open to using another platform.

Commissioner Weichert suggested allowing only one vote per household.

Chair Blanks commented that many households have more than one person, and they should 
each be allowed to vote.

Ms. Lawrence commented that there were children from the same household who were both 
allowed to vote for their choice.  She asked the Commission to look at the features and consider 
the input of the residents.  She commented that these are locked in prices, and if they start over, 
they may not receive the same quality.

Chair Blanks commented that they are basing this conversation on assumptions and fear that 
people were voting multiple times.  He stated that could have happened, but it is not a fact that 
occurred.  He stated that for his household, there could have been five responses because he 
would have voted, and he would have allowed each of his children to vote.

Commissioner Weichert asked why children are being allowed to vote.

Page 18 of 107



Chair Blanks replied that the children are the ones using the playground and, therefore, should 
have a voice.

Commissioner Weichert commented that the playground should be for more than just children.

Commissioner Muller commented that people on the Commission have children and 
grandchildren and will make a recommendation using the resources that have been provided.  

Commissioner Schifsky stated that the subcommittee had strong feelings about this playground 
being accessible and multigenerational, with equipment that many different ages can use.  She 
commented that language was removed from the RFP by the Council, which is frustrating.  She 
stated that there is a high senior population in this area, and they do not want to spin around, 
which is the accessible feature that has been proposed.  

Commissioner Muller commented that there are many options for color tones, and agreed there 
are more natural tones that could be chosen.  

Ms. Lawrence stated that if there are specific color tones, she can work with the vendor to have 
new renderings made before the Council meeting.  She stated that the vendors have not 
received any funds from the City to provide descriptions and renderings, and therefore wants to 
be fair in stating that any of the options could have different colors.  

Commissioner Van Lith recognized that this playground is in full sun and therefore would be 
interested in the recommendation of the vendor on what colors will be best to not be too hot in 
the sun.  

Ms. Lawrence stated that in the future, if they want specifics, it is best to provide that in the 
RFP.

Chair Blanks suggested that the discussion be narrowed to options two and three, and they 
received all the votes from the in-person survey and also scored highly in the online survey.  He 
stated that personally, he likes option three as he felt that was the closest to the requirement of 
accessibility.  

Commissioner Van Lith asked how the poured rubber holds up over time.

Ms. Lawrence replied that there is currently a dual surface of poured-in-place and woodchips at 
Mendakota, noting that has held up pretty well.  She recognized that the extreme temperature 
swings of Minnesota are tough on materials.  She noted that material is still in good shape 12 
years after installation.  

Commissioner Weichert suggested taking dollars away from a feature to provide the poured-in-
place surfacing to the swings, which a senior may use.  

Ms. Lawrence stated that she did ask all the vendors if it would be possible to change out the 
spinner with an accessible swing and reviewed the input she received from the vendors.  She 
noted that some vendors would need to redesign their proposal because of the required fall 
zone, or additional cost would be added to add more poured-in-place surfacing.  She noted that 
the swing does have a higher cost than the spinner.  She explained that it is not as easy as it 
sounds to remove a piece and add a piece in that spot.  She noted that shade was also 
something highly discussed, but was not required as part of the RFP.  She did not believe that 

Page 19 of 107



any of the playgrounds provide a sufficient amount of shade, which would push them forward for 
that reason.

Commissioner Weichert stated that perhaps some trees could be planted.

Ms. Lawrence commented that they could plant trees, but recognized that it will take time for 
them to provide shade.

Commissioner Muller commented that she had heavily used the Ivy Hills Park when her kids 
were younger.  She believed that option three is a similar design to the current playground and 
commented that younger children do like to spin.  She stated that option two does have monkey 
bars/climbing feature, which is a feature that users requested.  She stated that while she does 
not love the height of option two, that feature does seem to provide some shade within.  She did 
not believe that the survey results should be disregarded, as she only took the survey once.

Commissioner Toth commented that during the subcommittee, they thoroughly discussed the 
proposals, noting that it was not an easy process.  He stated that they attempted to find the best 
fit for all.  He stated that for option two, the tall tower was a feature people liked, while options 
one and two provide features for everyone.  He liked the gameboard feature, as that is 
something all users could enjoy.  

Commissioner Schifsky stated that kids voted from the schools as well, noting that her 
teenagers all liked the tall tower feature.  She commented that the miracle machines are cool 
but often become broken.  She stated that she thinks the music pieces provide a 
multigenerational feature that will also hold up well.  She was frustrated as she did not believe 
the proper information was relayed to vendors to get the results they wanted based on the City 
Council’s change in scope.

Ms. Lawrence agreed that option two was very popular with students.  She stated that she 
spoke with Webber Recreation, and there is a warranty on the feature.  She commented that 
while the City has not used all the vendors, she has received positive input from cities that have 
used them in terms of warranty.  She believed that each option has components for each age 
group and includes a warranty.  

Commissioner Toth asked if two proposals could be selected and sent to the City Council, 
allowing the City Council to make the final choice.

Ms. Lawrence stated that she is asking the Commission to make a recommendation, and the 
recommendation the Commission makes is its choice.   She stated that she would like to bring 
this to the Council next week to ensure they could complete a 2025 installation.  

Commissioner Weichert stated that perhaps they could narrow it to two vendors and 
communicate their concerns, which would allow them to adjust their proposals in order to 
provide the desired outcome.

Chair Blanks stated that there was a subcommittee that had already narrowed down to these 
options.

Ms. Lawrence stated that she sent the RFP to nine vendors, and they received six proposals 
from five vendors, which were narrowed to four proposals.  She stated that she then spoke with 
each vendor to ensure they met the requirements of the RFP.  She noted that public 

Page 20 of 107



engagement was then completed, and she followed up with the vendors to ask about switching 
pieces or adding poured-in-place surfacing.  She stated that if additional work is wanted, she 
would need very clear direction as to what they would want done.  She reminded the 
Commission that the budget is set for this project, and if there are additional delays, this would 
not be installed in 2025.  

Commissioner Schifsky stated that she felt there were clear expectations for the RFP, and the 
Council made different choices.

Ms. Lawrence stated that the RFP from the Parks Commission required an accessible swing, 
and the City Council had concerns that was too narrow of a scope and that the swing would not 
fit.  She stated that the Council wanted the proposals to be more open-ended, which is why, 
rather than requiring certain items, they were encouraged.  She confirmed that it was the 
direction of the Council that changed the RFP.  She stated that if there is a desire for the 
vendors to change the proposals, she would want to consult with the City Council to ensure the 
vendors are not wasting their time.

Commissioner Schifsky stated that the biggest reason for requiring the accessible swing was to 
provide a feature that would be multigenerational.  

Ms. Lawrence replied that staff did due diligence in estimating which features could fit within the 
space, and the Council was aware that there was potential for the features to fit, but did not 
want to limit the creativity and scope of the vendors.  

Commissioner Muller commented that this is the third playground she has been involved with 
and asked why this is different than the others.

Ms. Lawrence provided background information on the previous playground process and noted 
that Marie was the first playground they used the RFP process in 2020, and they did not require 
an accessible feature.  She stated that Valley View Heights also did not require an accessible 
feature.  She stated that this is the same process used for Valley View Heights and recognized 
that they began to bring in the accessible feature with this park, as that is a priority for the parks 
system.  She stated that it is important that they provide a playground that everyone can use 
and that will be a part of the parks system going forward.  She recognized that it might be a little 
more work, but she believes that every resident should have an opportunity to recreate.

Commissioner Van Lith stated that it sounds like the subcommittee came up with an idea, and 
the Council widened the scope.  He stated that he would support asking for more options for 
accessibility rather than the spinning feature, as it appears they would be settling.  

Chair Blanks commented that would impact the budget and therefore would most likely not be 
an option.

Commissioner Muller commented that it is frustrating when the Commission makes a 
recommendation, and that is changed by the City Council.  She stated that she would be 
nervous to make the request and waste time for the Council not to change its mind.  

Ms. Lawrence commented that the Council was not against a swing but did not want to limit the 
feature to only a swing.  She confirmed that the spinning feature is more affordable and fits 
within the proposals, which is most likely why three vendors chose that option.  

Page 21 of 107



Commissioner Weichert referenced the price of option one, which would have additional space 
within the budget, which may allow them to rework the concept.

Chair Blanks noted that option only received three percent of the votes, so that is not the option 
the residents want.

Ms. Lawrence stated that the cost option one did not include installation, noting that once 
installation is added, that would not leave space in the budget for another feature.  She stated 
that all proposals were within a few dollars of each other, with maintenance and installation.  

Commissioner Muller stated that she has three children and not all children like all features.  
She stated that some kids do like spinning.  She stated that a senior can spin their 
grandchildren on the feature.

Commissioner Weichert commented that seniors like the motion of swinging.   

Commissioner Muller asked if there is a price point for the spinning feature from Weber.

Commissioner Schifsky stated that she could not find that.

Commissioner Muller commented that could be a similar add-on request to the shade feature in 
a previous playground proposal.

Commissioner Schifsky stated that in terms of accessibility, the poured-in-place surface 
provides accessibility to the feature.  

Ms. Lawrence stated that the poured-in-place surface has a cost of about $30,000.  She stated 
that Webber submitted two proposals, as they could provide an inclusive feature and another 
without the feature.  

Commissioner Muller commented that the poured-in-place is a good feature.

Ms. Lawrence stated that in reviewing the proposals pretty closely and in speaking with 
residents, option three provides the most accessible playground, as it is not just one feature that 
becomes accessible with the poured-in-place surface.  She stated that option two provides the 
wow factor with the height and climbing features.  She stated that while option four is great, it 
does not include an accessible feature.  She stated that option one is great, but did not receive 
much support from the public.  She stated that it seems that, based on the conversation of the 
Commission, the input of the public, and a staff perspective it seems that options two and three 
best fit the vision for this playground.  

Commissioner Muller commented that she likes the net circle swing and the variety of the swing 
options provided in option three.  She stated that option three also provides different options to 
get on and off for those playing tag.  

Motion Blanks/second Schifsky to recommend option three for the playground replacement at 
Ivy Hills Park. AYES 6: NAYS 0

Chair Blanks asked if there is input on the color, noting that the City Council will ultimately 
choose the color, as they changed the colors during the last playground process.

Page 22 of 107



Commissioner Schifsky stated that she likes the colors as proposed, as they look fresh, inviting, 
and match the benches already there.

The resident commented that she would change out the white color as it will become dirty 
quickly.  

Ms. Lawrence commented that they can state they do not want white, but was unsure how 
specific they can be on the house feature.

Commissioner Schifsky noted that color options may not be a choice on the house feature.

Chair Blanks stated that he recommended leaving the choice of color for the City Council to 
decide, and the Commission agreed.

(Recreation Program Coordinator Willow Eisfeldt, Recreation Facilities Coordinator Trey 
Carlson, and Public Works Director Ryan Ruzek left)

8.b Preliminary Budget FY2026 Discussion
Parks and Recreation/Assistant Public Works Director Meredith Lawrence stated that staff have
begun the budget discussions for the upcoming season.  She explained that typically the budget
discussion spans two meetings, with a recommendation from the Commission being made at
the June meeting.  She reviewed the budget timeline for the City and noted that the parks and
Par 3 Capital Improvement Plans (CIPs) were included in the Commission packet.  She
recognized that not everything included in the CIP for each year will likely be included in the
final budget, but explained that once the Parks System Master Plan is completed, they will be
updating the Parks CIP to describe more accurately what can be done in each year.  She noted
that projects should be prioritized in the case that not all projects are accepted by the Council
for the budget.  She reviewed the projects that were included in the 2025 budget, which was a
total of about $318,000.  She reviewed the projects that were proposed for 2026 within the CIP.

Commissioner Weichert asked how often the Valley picnic shelter is used, as she could only 
recall two events in 34 years.  She noted that is a high cost for an item that is not often used.

Ms. Lawrence commented that she tends to think that shelter is not often used because of the 
poor condition and lack of power.  She stated that with the greenway and trails, she believed 
that the picnic shelter would be used more.

Commissioner Muller commented that the Girl Scouts use that facility for their bridging 
ceremonies.

Commissioner Weichert commented that the seniors are being ignored, along with football, 
lacrosse, and soccer.  

Chair Blanks asked that all Commissioners hold their comments until the presentation is 
completed.

Ms. Lawrence stated that the 2026 projects within the CIP have a total of $580,000, which is 
similar to other cities of this size spend annually on Parks capital, but that is a large number 
compared to what the Council has approved in the past.  She stated that it is the decision of the 
Commission as to how much discussion happens tonight, as this will continue to the next 
meeting as well.  She provided a brief overview of the approved 2025 projects and proposed 

Page 23 of 107



projects for 2026 and future years for the Par 3, noting that those items are discussed 
separately.  She confirmed that the 2025 and 2026 Par 3 projects are self-funded from the 
course revenue.  

Chair Blanks stated that ideally, he would like to hold a meeting to discuss this in June.

Ms. Lawrence commented that she does not yet have any topics for the June meeting, and 
therefore the June meeting could be solely focused on this topic.  

Commissioner Muller recognized that there were projects deferred from 2025 and suggested 
that at the June meeting, staff highlight the projects from 2025 that were deferred.  

Ms. Lawrence reviewed the 2025 budget priorities of the Commission and highlighted the items 
that were deferred.  

Commissioner Weichert stated that she would like information on how much the shelters are 
used, as that can help to determine whether shelters should be refurbished or removed.

Ms. Lawrence stated that she can bring forward that information, but not all people who use the 
shelters reserve them.  She noted that Mendakota does not allow shelter rentals during 
tournaments, which also skews results.  

Commissioner Weichert commented that she often has people approach her home for shelter 
from a storm because there is nothing available at the park.

Chair Blanks asked that all Commission members send a list of their questions to Ms. Lawrence 
prior to the June meeting.  A deadline of May 25 was provided to the Commission to provide that 
input.  

Commissioner Schifsky asked for input on whether the County would contribute to a shelter 
along the greenway.

Ms. Lawrence provided a brief update and noted that she can provide more information at the 
June meeting.  

9. Old Business
None.

10. Staff Announcements

Parks and Recreation/Assistant Public Works Director Meredith Lawrence shared the following 
announcements:

• Thanked her staff as it has been a busy spring preparing for programming and the 
opening of the facilities.  Touch-A-Truck was a big success, and she looked forward to 
the rebranded Heights Fest.  She encouraged the Commission to check out the website 
and see the updates that have been made.  

• Other events can be found on the City’s website

11. Student Representative Update

None.

Page 24 of 107



12. Commission Comments and Park Updates

Commissioner Weichert 
• It is wonderful to see people picking up trash in the parks.

Commissioner Schifsky
• Thanked everyone for the attention to Ivy Hills.  The park looks lovely as vegetation has

begun to bloom.
• Civic Center has been active with ball games.

Commissioner Muller
• Rogers Lake and Kensington both look great.

Commissioner Van Lith 
• Noticed a ball game at Victoria Highlands tonight.
• Marie is well-used by many different users and many different activities.

Commissioner Toth 
• Asked if the portable bathroom at Valley View could be tucked back a bit, as it is an

eyesore.

Ms. Lawrence commented that the bathroom was placed in that location because of the 
accessibility challenges at that park, but noted that they could review the location.

Chair Blanks
• Valley is getting lots of use.
• Excited to have Music in the Parks returning to Market Square.
• Appreciated the signs asking people to leave the ducks alone at Mendakota.

13. Adjourn
Motion Toth/second Schifsky to adjourn the meeting at 9:05 PM

AYES 6: NAYS 0

Minutes drafted by:
Amanda Staple

TimeSaver Off Site Secretarial, Inc. 

Page 25 of 107



This page is intentionally left blank



CITY OF MENDOTA HEIGHTS
DAKOTA COUNTY

STATE OF MINNESOTA

Minutes of the Parks and Recreation Commission Work Session
June 10, 2025

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a work session of the Parks and Recreation Commission, City of Mendota 
Heights, Minnesota was held at 1101 Victoria Curve, Mendota Heights, MN 55118.

CALL TO ORDER
Chair Jaffrey Blanks called the meeting to order at 6:33pm. Commissioners Jo Schifsky, Michael Toth, Jennifer Weichert, 
Daniel Van Lith and Dan Sherer (arrived at 8:11pm) were also present. Commissioner Michelle Muller and Student 
Representative Evangeline Fuentes were absent. 

City staff present included Meredith Lawrence, Parks and Recreation Director/Assistant Public Works Director, Trey 
Carlson, Recreation Facilities Coordinator, Willow Eisfeldt, Recreation Program Coordinator, and Eydie Myers, Parks and 
Recreation Intern. 

Department Updates
Director Lawrence introduced Parks and Recreation Intern Eydie Myers and discussed the projects she will be working 
on this Summer. 

Director Lawrence provided an update on the 2040 Park System Master Plan and invited Commissioners to attend the 
consultant’s presentation at the City Council meeting on Tuesday, June 17 at 6:00pm. 

Director Lawrence provided an update on the Ivy Hills Park Playground project, notifying Commissioners that the City 
Council decided to reject all project bids and a new Request for Proposals will be brought to the July 8 Parks and 
Recreation Commission for review. 

FY2026 Budget Recommendation 
Director Lawrence provided an overview of the budget process and answered questions about the specific projects 
listed in the Capital Improvement Plan.

After discussion, the Commission’s 2026 Project Recommendations include the following:
1. Dog Park Water Source
2. Tot Lot Water Source
3. Wentworth Park Hockey Board Replacement
4. Wentworth Park Basketball Court Expansion
5. Playground Replacement (based off staff recommendation)
6. Valley Park Picnic Shelter Refresh
7. Bocce Ball Court Addition to Park (staff will research potential locations)
8. Hagstrom-King Ballfield Infield Resurfacing

Staff let the Commission know they will notify them when the Parks, Recreation, and Par 3 budgets will be reviewed by 
the City Council so they can attend and listen to the discussion if they would like. 

The commission adjourned the meeting at 8:19pm. 

Minutes Taken By:
Meredith Lawrence, Parks and Recreation Director/Assistant Public Works Director 

Page 26 of 107

7.c



This page is intentionally left blank



7.d

REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

MEETING DATE: July 15, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM: Acknowledge the May Par 3 Financial Report 

ITEM TYPE: Consent Item  

DEPARTMENT: Parks and Recreation CONTACT: Meredith Lawrence, Parks and 
Recreation/Assistant Public 
Works Director 
Trey Carlson, Recreation Facilities 
Coordinator 

ACTION REQUEST: 
Acknowledge the May Par 3 Financial Report.  

BACKGROUND: 
The Monthly Par 3 Dashboard is attached for Council review.  

FISCAL AND RESOURCE IMPACT: 
Monthly Expenditure-May is attached. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. 2025 May P3 Budget to Actual
2. May Financial Dashboard Par 3

CITY COUNCIL PRIORITY: 
Premier Public Services & Infrastructure, Economic Vitality & Community Vibrancy 

Page 27 of 107



MONTHLY EXPENDITURE REPORT
MAY 2025

MENDOTA HEIGHTS PAR 3
BUDGET TO ACTUAL REPORT
May 2025 (41.67% OF YEAR)

May
REVENUES May YTD YTD YTD

BUDGET 2025 2025 % 2024
GREENS, LEAGUE & TOURN FEES $220,000 $42,165 $74,608 33.91% $61,454
RECREATION PROGRAMS $50,000 $1,964 $40,903 81.81% $36,723
CONCESSIONS $36,000 $7,585 $11,406 31.68% $9,695
SUNDRY REVENUE $0 $50 $75 100.00% $100
INTEREST $1,000 $0 $0 0.00% $0
INSURANCE CLAIM $0 $0 $0 0.00% $0

PAR 3 FUND REVENUE TOTAL $307,000 $51,764 $126,991 41.37% $107,972

EXPENDITURES May YTD YTD YTD
BUDGET 2025 2025 % 2024

CLUBHOUSE SALARIES $48,200 $5,418 $8,755 18.16% $12,009
ADMINISTRATIVE SALARIES $69,821 $5,115 $18,581 26.61% $14,715
FICA/PERA $21,137 $1,954 $4,632 21.91% $3,452
MEDICAL INSURANCE $18,517 $1,543 $4,286 23.15% $3,143
U/E & W/C INSURANCE $3,900 $6,931 $8,687 222.75% $4,928
RENTALS $8,000 $1,780 $1,780 22.26% $1,427
UTILITIES $16,483 $1,533 $4,858 29.47% $4,411
PROFESSIONAL FEES - AUDIT $3,500 $0 $0 0.00% $0
PROF FEES - CONSULTING FEES $3,100 $703 $1,866 0.00% $664
PROF FEES - GROUNDS MGMT $7,250 $0 $0 0.00% $0
PROF FEES - GROUNDS WAGES $27,000 $3,226 $4,927 18.25% $5,217
PROF FEES - TREE MAINTENANCE $5,000 $0 $0 0.00% $0
LIABILITY/AUTO INSURANCE $5,000 $0 $4,495 89.90% $4,100
OPERATING COSTS/SUPPLIES $17,300 $3,145 $5,327 30.79% $4,576
FUEL $3,000 $327 $609 20.32% $373
REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE $65,000 $10,022 $28,977 44.58% $13,607
SUNDRY/DUES/MILEAGE/CLOTHING $10,250 $950 $3,202 31.24% $3,058
ONLINE REG & CREDIT CARD FEES $11,600 $1,335 $4,213 36.32% $3,222

$16,191

PAR 3 EXPENDITURES TOTAL $344,058 $43,983 $105,196 30.58% $95,093

Page 28 of 107



Mendota Heights Par 3 Community Golf Course 
May 2025—Financial Summary

May—Tee Time Reservation Breakdown:
Online Tee Times=1574 (54% of Total Tee Times)
Phone/Walk in Tee Times= 1359 (46% of Total Tee Times)

Year to Date Budget Overview—May:

Current Operating Surplus as of May, 2025: $21,795
Operating Surplus as of May, 2024: $12,879

Monthly Revenues vs. Expenditures 
Month Revenues Expenditures Net

March 2025 $14,117 $10,742 $3,375
April 2025 $35,483 $16,671 $18,812
May 2025 $51,764 $43,983 $7,781

Golf Round Totals:  
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

March 748 0 0 261 308
April 1678 896 1181 1923 2078
May 2285 2797 2923 2664 3043
Total 4711 3693 4104 4848 5429

Golf Rounds by Category: 
2025 Regular Senior Junior Veteran Second 

Round
Senior 
Pass

Footgolf Punch 
Card

March 127 8 10 0 1 2 0 160
April 984 129 95 3 36 33 8 790
May 1858 311 131 10 56 23 34 620
Total 2969 448 236 13 93 58 42 1570

Monthly Notes:
o When accounting for total monthly rounds, staff track punch card sales as (10) rounds of golf. For

March the course sold 16 punch cards, in April the course sold 79 punch cards and in May the course
sold 62 which are then multiplied by 10 to get the total rounds tracked for that month—160, 790 and
620 respectively.

Category 2025 Budget 2025 YTD Actual % of Budget 2024 YTD
Revenues $307,000 $126,991 41.37% $107,972

Expenditures $344,058 $105,196 30.58% $95,093
Net Position - $21,795 - $12,879

Page 29 of 107



o When reporting the Tee Time Reservation Breakdown, the tee times booked reflect how the punch
card rounds are used.

o If someone buys a punch card in April, they may only use it four times. They also could use the
punch card one time for a call-in tee time and three times for separate online tee times

Page 30 of 107



7.e

REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

MEETING DATE: July 15, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM: Adopt Resolution 2025-42 Final Payment and Acceptance of Fire Station 
Roof Replacement 

ITEM TYPE: Consent Item 

DEPARTMENT: Engineering CONTACT: Ryan Ruzek, Public Works 
Director 

ACTION REQUEST: 
Approve Resolution 2025-42, to accept the work and approve the final payment for the Fire 
Station Roof Replacement. 

BACKGROUND: 
A complete replacement of the roof over the original fire station footprint was recently 
completed.  The project was awarded to Palmer West Construction for their low bid of 
$318,800.  City Council also approved a change order of $5,746 to install a safety railing 
($2,558) and modify a portion of the roof on the fire station addition ($3,188).  The total 
construction costs are $324,546.  In addition to the roof replacement, the solar system was 
required to be removed and reinstalled.  The reinstallation of the solar system is scheduled for 
completion on July 3 under a contract with Ideal Energies for $23,228.  The third-party 
consultant fee of $23,218 will also be able to be closed upon the solar installation. 

FISCAL AND RESOURCE IMPACT: 
The City Council awarded this project to Palmer West Construction Company at their March 
18, 2025, City Council meeting for the low bid of $318,800.00.  The final payment for this 
contract is $43,156.00 including the previously approved change orders of $5,746.   The total 
project cost of $367,246 is under the estimated budget of $400,000. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution 2025-42 Accepting Final Payment and Fire Station Roof Replacement

CITY COUNCIL PRIORITY: 
Premier Public Services & Infrastructure 

Page 31 of 107



CITY OF MENDOTA HEIGHTS 
DAKOTA COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

RESOLUTION 2025-42 
RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE WORK AND APPROVE THE FINAL PAYMENT FOR THE 

FIRE STATION ROOF REPLACEMENT. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to a written contract with the City of Mendota Heights on the 25 day of 
March, 2025, with Palmer West Construction Company, has satisfactorily completed the 
improvements for the Fire Station Roof Replacement, in accordance with such contract.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mendota Heights City Council that work 
completed under said contract is hereby accepted and approved; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby directed to issue a 
proper order for the final payment on such contract in the amount of $43,156.00, taking the 
contractor’s receipt in full.   

Adopted by the Mendota Heights City Council this 15 day of July, 2025. 

CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF MENDOTA HEIGHTS 

______________________________ 
Stephanie B. Levine, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Nancy Bauer, City Clerk 

Page 32 of 107



7.f

REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

MEETING DATE: July 15, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM: Approve the Hiring of a Public Works Maintenance Worker 

ITEM TYPE: Consent Item  

DEPARTMENT: Administration CONTACT: 

ACTION REQUEST: 
Approve the hire of Andrew Phomphakdy as a Public Works Maintenance Worker at a rate of 
$30.20 per hour per the 2024-2025 Teamsters Union contract. 

BACKGROUND: 
The City conducted a robust hiring process including two rounds of interviews for the Public 
Works Maintenance Worker position. The new Public Works Maintenance Worker employee 
will join the parks maintenance team in Public Works. Staff selected Andrew Phomphakdy to 
recommend to City Council for the position. Andrew has previously worked for the City of St. 
Louis Park public works in the streets department. Prior to that, he has also worked both as a 
business analyst and served in the National Guard. Staff are confident that Andrew will make a 
great addition to the public works team. 

FISCAL AND RESOURCE IMPACT: 
The Public Works Maintenance Worker position is a budgeted position. The pay for this 
position will follow the 2024-2025 Teamsters union contract, which has a range of hourly pay 
for 2025 of (step one) $30.20 to $39.69 (Step 4). Staff recommends hiring Andrew Phomphakdy 
at step one ($30.20 per hour) of the maintenance worker pay scale. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
None 

CITY COUNCIL PRIORITY: 
Premier Public Services & Infrastructure 

Page 33 of 107



This page is intentionally left blank



7.g

REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

MEETING DATE: July 15, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM: Adopt Resolution 2025-44 Formally Accepting Donations from the Heussner 
Family 

ITEM TYPE: Consent Item 

DEPARTMENT: Police CONTACT: Kelly McCarthy, Police Chief

ACTION REQUEST: 
Approve Resolution 2025-44 Accepting donations from the Heussner family. 

BACKGROUND: 
Minnesota State Statutes §465.03 "Gifts to Municipalities" requires that all donations be 
accepted by resolution.  

On July 1, 2025, after the lifesaving awards, members of the Heussner family wanted to show 
their appreciation to first responders and left donations at the Police Department. Nate 
Heussner donated $100 in Chipotle gift cards and $100 in Door Dash gift cards, and Carol and 
Ralph Heussner left a check for $50.00.  The police department does not solicit monetary 
donations and does not normally accept them.  

In this instance, and if the council agrees, it feels appropriate to accept the donations and 
distribute the gift cards to the Mendota Heights Fire Department and MHealth responders, 
and to put the $50.00 towards food for the next police department meeting. 

FISCAL AND RESOURCE IMPACT: 
None 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Res. 2025-44 Heussner Donation Acceptance

CITY COUNCIL PRIORITY: 
Inclusive and Responsive Government 

Page 34 of 107



CITY OF MENDOTA HEIGHTS
DAKOTA COUNTY, MINNESOTA

RESOLUTION 2025-44
ACCEPTING DONATIONS FROM THE HEUSSNER FAMILY

WHEREAS, the City of Mendota Heights desires to follow Minnesota Statute §465.03, “Gifts 
to Municipalities”; and 

WHEREAS, Minnesota State Statutes require a resolution to accept gifts to municipalities; and 

WHEREAS, the city has previously acknowledged gifts with a resolution; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mendota Heights has duly considered this matter 
and wishes to acknowledge the civic-mindedness and generosity of citizens and officially recognizes 
their donations.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Mendota 
Heights formally accepts a donation of gift cards for $100 to Chipotle, and $100 to Door Dash from 
Nate Heussner, and $50 from Carol and Ralph Heussner to be distributed to the Mendota Heights Fire 
Department, MHealth responders and the Mendota Heights Police Department.  

Adopted by the Mendota Heights City Council this 15th day of July, 2025.

CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF MENDOTA HEIGHTS

______________________________
Stephanie B. Levine, Mayor

ATTEST:

Nancy Bauer, City Clerk

Page 35 of 107



7.h

REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

MEETING DATE: July 15, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM: Adopt Resolution 2025-43 to Reject Bids for the Kensington East Street 
Improvements 

ITEM TYPE: Consent Item  

DEPARTMENT: Engineering CONTACT: Lucas Ritchie, Assistant City 
Engineer 
Ryan Ruzek, Public Works 
Director 

ACTION REQUEST: 
Adopt Resolution 2025-43 rejecting bids for the Kensington East Street Improvements project. 

BACKGROUND: 
Council ordered the Kensington East Street Improvements in adopting Resolution 2025-26 at 
their May 6, 2025, meeting, and directed staff to prepare plans and specifications for this 
street reconstruction project.  The plans were approved and authorized to bid at the June 17, 
2025, meeting. 
Two (2) bids, detailed below, were received in the Mendota Heights Council Chambers on 
Wednesday, July 9, 2025, at 10:00 a.m. for the Kensington East Street Improvements.   

NAME OF BIDDER AMOUNT OF 
BID 

Minnesota Paving & Materials $1,125,703.68 

McNamara Contracting $1,422,035.00 

Minnesota Paving & Materials submitted the lowest responsible bid of $1,125,703.68, which is 
approximately 16% higher than the Engineer's Estimate of $974,225.22. 

The Kensington East Street Improvements were initially proposed as part of a larger project, 
which included adjacent roadways to the north of Mendota Heights. This larger project was 
divided into two phases, one in 2025 and one in 2026, due to funding and staffing limitations 
during the 2025 construction season.  

As larger roadway improvement projects typically benefit from economies of scale and yield 

Page 36 of 107



more competitive unit pricing and overall bids submitted, staff are recommending rejecting 
the bids received for the Kensington East Street Improvements and instead recombining this 
project with its northern counterpart, anticipated for construction in 2026. Additional Council 
action will be required in the future to approve the combined project. 

FISCAL AND RESOURCE IMPACT: 
The estimated project costs and low bidder anticipated costs are further expanded below 
including indirect costs for administration, engineering, finance, legal, etc.: 

Project Total Total 
Estimated 
Costs 

Minnesota 
Paving – Low 
Bid Costs 

Percent 
Difference 

Street Improvements $614,488.81 $728,890.42 - 

Indirect Costs for Street 
Improvements (20%)* 

$122,897.76 $145,778.08 - 

Total Costs for Street 
Improvements 

$737,386.57 $874,668.51 +19%

Trail Improvements $81,090.41 $93,495.47 - 

Indirect Costs Trail Improvements 
(20%)* 

$16,218.08 $18,699.09 - 

Total Costs for Park 
Improvements 

$97,308.50 $112,194.56 +15%

Storm Sewer Improvements $159,003.45 $132,761.02 -17%

Water Improvements $10,587.00 $14,025.07 +32%

Sanitary Improvements $34,398.75 $26,325.07 -23%

Total Cost for Utility 
Improvements 

$203,989.20 $173,111.16 -15%

Saint Paul Regional Water Service 
Watermain Replacement 

$74,603.97 $130,144.78 - 

Indirect Costs for SPRWS (15%) $11,190.59 $19,521.72 - 

Total Cost for SPRWS 
Improvements 

$85,794.56 $149,666.50 +74%

Total Improvement Cost $974,172.39 $1,125,641.84 - 

Total Indirect Costs for City* $150,306.44 $183,998.90 - 

Total Cost $1,124,478.83 $1,309,640.73 +16%

Rounded Total Cost $1,124,480 $1,309,640 - 

Page 37 of 107



While City utility funding sources are showing a net negative from estimated bid prices to bid 
prices received, street and trail improvement, of which are funded through the Municipal Levy, 
reflect a significant net increase and represent a larger share of the overall cost burden. Since 
special assessment amounts are derived from the total street improvements costs based on 
the City’s current policy, the estimated special assessment amounts have increased by nearly 
20% following the bid opening. 

Staff recommends that the City Council reject all bids received for the Kensington East Street 
Improvements. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Res. 2025-43 to Reject Bids for the Kensington East Street Improvements
2. Kensington East Bid Abstract

CITY COUNCIL PRIORITY: 
Premier Public Services & Infrastructure 

Page 38 of 107



CITY OF MENDOTA HEIGHTS
DAKOTA COUNTY, MINNESOTA

RESOLUTION 2025-43

RESOLUTION REJECTING BIDS FOR THE KENSINGTON EAST STREET 
IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT (PROJECT #202506) 

WHEREAS, pursuant to an advertisement for bids for the proposed construction of bituminous 
pavement reclamation, aggregate base, concrete curb and gutter, concrete curb and gutter repair, catch 
basin repair, bituminous surfacing, storm sewer, ADA improvements, water main maintenance, and 
appurtenant work of rehabilitating Abbey Way, Canton Court, Haverton Circle, Haverton Road, Morson 
Circle, and Winthrop Court, bids were received, opened, and tabulated according to law and the following 
bids were received complying with said advertisement:

NAME OF BIDDER AMOUNT OF BID

Minnesota Paving & Materials $1,125,703.68
McNamara Contracting $1,872,576.00

and
WHEREAS, the Public Works Director recommended that the lowest responsible bid submitted 

by Minnesota Paving and Materials of Rogers, Minnesota, along with all other submitted bids be rejected.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mendota Heights City Council as follows:

1. That the bids for Kensington East Street Improvements project are hereby received and rejected.

2. That the bid of Minnesota Paving and Materials of Rogers, Minnesota, submitted for the
construction of the above described improvements be and the same is hereby rejected.

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Mendota Heights this fifteenth day of July, 2025.

CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF MENDOTA HEIGHTS

Stephanie B. Levine, Mayor
ATTEST

_________________________
Nancy Bauer, City Clerk

Page 39 of 107



CITY OF MENDOTA HEIGHTS
Kensington East Street Improvements
MH202506
7/9/2025

ITEM NO. SPEC. NO. ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT

ENGINEER'S 
ESTIMATED 
QUANTITY

ENGINEER'S 
ESTIMATED UNIT 

PRICE

ENGINEER'S 
ESTIMATED 

AMOUNT BID UNIT PRICE BID AMOUNT BID UNIT PRICE BID AMOUNT
1 2021.501 MOBILIZATION L.S. 1.0 $69,000.00 $69,000.00 $54,000.00 $54,000.00 $50,000.00 $50,000.00
2 2101.502 CLEARING AND GRUBBING 4" AND LARGER DIAMETER TREE 5 $1,075.00 $5,375.00 $1,002.83 $5,014.15 $1,100.00 $5,500.00
3 2101.502 TREE TRIMMING Each 5 $532.50 $2,662.50 $501.41 $2,507.05 $550.00 $2,750.00
4 2104.503 REMOVE CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER - B618 L.F. 2,750 $5.30 $14,574.02 $10.67 $29,342.50 $20.00 $55,000.00
5 2104.503 REMOVE CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER - B624 L.F. 30 $5.83 $174.89 $28.09 $842.70 $20.00 $600.00
6 2104.503 REMOVE STORM SEWER PIPE (12"-15" RCP) L.F. 123 $16.86 $2,073.25 $20.22 $2,487.06 $25.00 $3,075.00
7 2104.503 REMOVE STORM SEWER STRUCTURE (2x: 2'x3' CBs +  2x 48" CBMHs) Each 4 $2,000.00 $8,000.00 $611.38 $2,445.52 $1,100.00 $4,400.00
8 2104.503 SAWING CONCRETE DRIVEWAY L.F. 188 $5.00 $940.00 $4.22 $793.36 $1.00 $188.00
9 2104.503 SAWING BITUMINOUS DRIVEWAY L.F. 285 $3.00 $855.00 $3.02 $860.70 $1.00 $285.00

10 2104.503 SAWING BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT (FULL DEPTH) L.F. 572 $3.00 $1,716.00 $2.82 $1,613.04 $1.00 $572.00
11 2104.504 REMOVE BITUMINOUS TRAIL PAVEMENT S.Y. 137 $1.50 $205.50 $18.35 $2,513.95 $30.00 $4,110.00
12 2104.504 REMOVE CONCRETE TRAIL PAVEMENT S.Y. 50 $15.09 $754.57 $17.22 $861.00 $50.00 $2,500.00
13 2104.504 REMOVE CONCRETE DRIVEWAY PAVEMENT S.Y. 261 $17.38 $4,535.71 $13.97 $3,646.17 $50.00 $13,050.00
14 2104.504 REMOVE BITUMINOUS DRIVEWAY PAVEMENT S.Y. 469 $11.37 $5,330.69 $11.75 $5,510.75 $30.00 $14,070.00
15 2104.518 SALVAGE BRICK PAVERS S.F. 300 $9.30 $2,788.93 $16.05 $4,815.00 $10.00 $3,000.00
16 2106.507 EXCAVATION - COMMON C.Y. 1,775 $19.75 $35,056.25 $25.95 $46,061.25 $30.00 $53,250.00

17 2106.507

SUBGRADE/AGGREGATE BASE CORRECTION EXCAVATION OUTSIDE 
THE AREA OF INFLUENCE OF CONTRACTOR INSTALLED UTILITY 
TRENCHES (SEE SPECIAL CONDITIONS - SECTION 2) C.Y. 1,032 $25.00 $25,800.00 $30.06 $31,021.92 $30.00 $30,960.00

18 2108.504 GEOTEXTILE FABRIC, TYPE 5 S.Y. 3,406 $2.00 $6,812.00 $2.01 $6,846.06 $2.00 $6,812.00
19 2123.510 ADA COMPLIANCE SUPERVISOR L.S. 1 $1,750.00 $1,750.00 $100.28 $100.28 $300.00 $300.00
20 2123.510 COMMON LABOR HR 10 $91.00 $910.00 $100.28 $1,002.80 $75.00 $750.00
21 2123.510 DOZER WITH OPERATOR HR 10 $202.50 $2,025.00 $198.22 $1,982.20 $125.00 $1,250.00
22 2123.510 2 CU YD FRONT END LOADER WITH OPERATOR HR 10 $187.50 $1,875.00 $153.51 $1,535.10 $125.00 $1,250.00
23 2123.510 SKID STEER (BOBCAT) WITH OPERATOR HR 10 $160.00 $1,600.00 $135.04 $1,350.40 $125.00 $1,250.00
24 2123.510 BACK HOE WITH OPERATOR HR 10 $240.00 $2,400.00 $204.38 $2,043.80 $125.00 $1,250.00
25 2123.510 STREET SWEEPER (WITH PICKUP BROOM) HR 10 $125.00 $1,250.00 $212.60 $2,126.00 $125.00 $1,250.00
26 2215.504 BITUMINOUS STREET PAVEMENT RECLAMATION (8" NOMINAL DEPTH) S.Y. 12,384 $4.47 $55,328.17 $8.00 $99,072.00 $17.00 $210,528.00
27 2215.509 AGGREGATE BASE CLASS 5 (RECYCLED, ON-SITE), IN PLACE (P) TON 948 $28.00 $26,544.00 $10.61 $10,058.28 $15.00 $14,220.00
28 2215.509 1 1/2" SCREENED CLEAN ROCK TON 155 $43.00 $6,665.00 $42.94 $6,655.70 $45.00 $6,975.00

29 2232.504 MILL BITUMINOUS SURFACE (1.5" NOMINAL DEPTH) (PRIOR TO WEAR 
COURSE) S.Y. 191 $9.00 $1,719.00 $2.01 $383.91 $10.00 $1,910.00

30 2360.504 3" TYPE SPWEA240B WEARING COURSE FOR TRAILS S.Y. 137 $28.25 $3,870.25 $56.14 $7,691.18 $90.00 $12,330.00
31 2360.504 3" TYPE SPWEA240B WEARING COURSE FOR DRIVEWAYS S.Y. 469 $25.00 $11,725.00 $55.75 $26,146.75 $90.00 $42,210.00
32 2360.509 TYPE SPWEA340C WEARING COURSE, IN-PLACE (FIRST LIFT = 2.5") TON 1,916 $70.50 $135,078.00 $86.74 $166,193.84 $90.00 $172,440.00
33 2360.509 TYPE SPWEA340C WEARING COURSE, IN-PLACE (SECOND LIFT = 1.5") TON 1,150 $88.50 $101,775.00 $87.80 $100,970.00 $90.00 $103,500.00
34 2451.507 GRANULAR BACKFILL (CV) C.Y. 459 $20.00 $9,180.00 $48.00 $22,032.00 $40.00 $18,360.00
35 2502.501 IRRIGATION SYSTEM REPAIR Each 49 $375.00 $18,375.00 $476.34 $23,340.66 $335.00 $16,415.00
36 2503.503 4" PVC STORM SEWER PIPE DRAIN L.F. 60 $65.99 $3,959.55 $38.13 $2,287.80 $40.00 $2,400.00
37 2503.503 12" RCP STORM SEWER DESIGN 3006 CLASS V L.F. 129 $75.03 $9,678.65 $72.34 $9,331.86 $75.00 $9,675.00
38 2503.503 15" RCP STORM SEWER DESIGN 3006 CLASS V L.F. 15 $75.03 $1,125.42 $79.43 $1,191.45 $82.00 $1,230.00

39 2506.502 CONNECT 4" PVC STORM SEWER PIPE DRAIN TO EXISTING STORM 
STRUCTURE Each 2 $850.00 $1,700.00 $917.22 $1,834.44 $415.00 $830.00

40 2506.502 CONNECT TO EXISTING STORM SEWER PIPE (12"-15" RCP) Each 4 $1,572.39 $6,289.54 $1,045.51 $4,182.04 $1,715.00 $6,860.00
41 2506.502 CONSTRUCT DRAINAGE STRUCTURE (2'x3' CATCH BASIN) Each 2 $4,250.00 $8,500.00 $2,327.15 $4,654.30 $7,500.00 $15,000.00

42 2506.502 CONSTRUCT DRAINAGE STRUCTURE (48" DIA. CATCH BASIN MANHOLE) Each 2 $5,500.00 $11,000.00 $3,209.02 $6,418.04 $9,000.00 $18,000.00

43 2506.502 CONSTRUCT DRAINAGE STRUCTURE (48" DIA. STORM SEWER 
MANHOLE) Each 2 $5,500.00 $11,000.00 $3,210.35 $6,420.70 $9,500.00 $19,000.00

44 2506.502 ADJUST FRAME & RING CASTING (STORM SEWER MANHOLE) Each 1 $1,065.00 $1,065.00 $995.38 $995.38 $1,500.00 $1,500.00
45 2506.502 ADJUST FRAME & RING CASTING (STORM SEWER CATCH BASIN) Each 23 $1,437.75 $33,068.25 $600.00 $13,800.00 $1,500.00 $34,500.00
46 2506.502 ADJUST FRAME & RING CASTING (SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE) Each 19 $1,597.50 $30,352.50 $1,200.00 $22,800.00 $1,500.00 $28,500.00

47 2506.502 INSTALL CASTING (NEW), INCLUDING CRETEX PLASTIC ADJUSTMENT 
RINGS Each 2 $1,265.00 $2,530.00 $4,797.71 $9,595.42 $2,000.00 $4,000.00

48 2506.502 CONSTRUCT RAIN GARDEN S.Y. 300 $75.04 $22,511.34 $82.58 $24,774.00 $20.00 $6,000.00
49 2506.502 REPLACE VALVE BOX, INCLUDING PARTS Each 5 $1,005.50 $5,027.50 $2,500.00 $12,500.00 $3,500.00 $17,500.00
50 2506.502 ADJUST VALVE BOX, INCLUDING PARTS Each 10 $654.08 $6,540.75 $1,050.00 $10,500.00 $1,500.00 $15,000.00
51 2506.502 ADJUST CURB STOP, INCLUDING PARTS Each 7 $505.50 $3,538.50 $500.00 $3,500.00 $500.00 $3,500.00
52 2506.502 SACRIFICIAL ANODE RETRO-FIT (2x 32# MAGNEISIUM ANODES) Each 15 $1,352.88 $20,293.26 $3,603.75 $54,056.25 $3,500.00 $52,500.00

53 2521.518 6" CONCRETE WALK (PEDESTRIAN RAMPS, LANDINGS, & TRANSITION 
PANELS) S.Y. 267 $84.89 $22,665.08 $122.07 $32,592.69 $190.00 $50,730.00

54 2521.518 TRUNCATED DOME PANEL S.F. 157 $71.36 $11,203.30 $60.17 $9,446.69 $60.00 $9,420.00
55 2531.503 CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER DESIGN B618 (HAND FORMED) L.F. 2,750 $29.13 $80,095.52 $30.00 $82,500.00 $45.00 $123,750.00
56 2531.503 CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER DESIGN B624 (HAND FORMED) L.F. 30 $34.95 $1,048.52 $32.09 $962.70 $45.00 $1,350.00

57 2531.503 CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER DESIGN VALLEY GUTTER (3FT)  (HAND 
FORMED) S.Y. 305 $82.50 $25,162.50 $132.12 $40,296.60 $84.00 $25,620.00

58 2531.504 6" CONCRETE DRIVEWAY PAVEMENT S.Y. 261 $83.00 $21,663.00 $89.20 $23,281.20 $180.00 $46,980.00
59 2540.618 INSTALL SALVAGED PAVER DRIVEWAY S.F. 300 $18.38 $5,514.75 $32.09 $9,627.00 $25.00 $7,500.00
60 2564.502 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. 1.0 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $16,000.00 $16,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00
61 2564.502 INSTALL SIGN POST Each 7 $65.00 $455.00 $250.71 $1,754.97 $105.00 $735.00
62 2564.502 INSTALL SIGN TYPE C Each 5 $52.50 $262.50 $50.14 $250.70 $210.00 $1,050.00
63 2564.502 INSTALL SIGN TYPE SPECIAL Each 14 $52.50 $735.00 $45.13 $631.82 $265.00 $3,710.00
64 2564.518 SIGN TYPE C S.F. 45 $28.50 $1,282.50 $32.09 $1,444.05 $42.00 $1,890.00
65 2564.518 SIGN TYPE SPECIAL S.F. 124 $32.00 $3,968.00 $30.08 $3,729.92 $37.00 $4,588.00
66 2573.501 EROSION CONTROL SUPERVISOR L.S. 1 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $750.00 $750.00
67 2573.501 STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION EXIT(S) L.S. 1.00 $3,925.00 $3,925.00 $501.41 $501.41 $1,500.00 $1,500.00
68 2573.502 STORM DRAIN INLET PROTECTION DURING CONSTRUCTION Each 27 $85.01 $2,295.14 $125.35 $3,384.45 $168.00 $4,536.00
69 2573.503 SEDIMENT CONTROL LOG TYPE COMPOST L.F. 504 $3.65 $1,839.60 $3.01 $1,517.04 $4.00 $2,016.00
70 2574.507 SELECT TOPSOIL BORROW (LV) C.Y. 127 $50.17 $6,371.01 $62.57 $7,946.39 $65.00 $8,255.00
71 2574.508 FERTILIZER TYPE 3 LB. 19 $1.83 $34.71 $0.98 $18.62 $4.00 $76.00
72 2575.508 SEED MIXTURE 25-151 LB. 19 $7.51 $142.75 $4.86 $92.34 $10.00 $190.00
73 2575.508 HYDROLIC STABILIZED FIBER MATRIX LB. 297 $2.15 $638.87 $1.21 $359.37 $10.00 $2,970.00
74 2575.508 SODDING TYPE LAWN S.Y. 847 $16.02 $13,568.94 $19.00 $16,093.00 $17.00 $14,399.00
75 2575.523 APPLICATION OF WATER FOR TURF, AFTER 30 DAYS MG 46 $60.60 $2,787.75 $66.06 $3,038.76 $65.00 $2,990.00
76 2582.503 12" SOLID LINE WHITE-EPOXY L.F. 345 $12.36 $4,264.20 $7.02 $2,421.90 $7.00 $2,415.00
77 2582.503 4" SOLID LINE WHITE-EPOXY L.F. 110 $8.16 $897.60 $10.03 $1,103.30 $21.00 $2,310.00

TOTAL $974,225.22 $1,125,703.68 $1,422,035.00

Minnesota Paving & Materials McNamara Contracting

BID ABSTRACT
PROJECT:

PROJECT #:
Date:

PROJECT TOTAL

Page 40 of 107



This page is intentionally left blank



7.i

REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

MEETING DATE: July 15, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM: Approve Developer's Agreement for the Cobalt Business Center 

ITEM TYPE: Consent Item  

DEPARTMENT: Engineering CONTACT: Ryan Ruzek, Public Works 
Director 

ACTION REQUEST: 
Approve the Developer's Agreement for the Cobalt Business Center. 

BACKGROUND: 
A building permit has been submitted for the redevelopment of Le Cordon Blue at 1315 
Mendota Heights Road.  A Developer's Agreement is not typically used for this type of activity, 
but with the relocation of a city-owned pond, staff determined an agreement would better 
protect the city.   

The Developer's Agreement requires Letters of Credit (LOC) for the installation of the public 
and private storm sewer improvements at twenty-five percent (25%) of the total cost of the 
improvements.  The cost of this work is estimated at $289,530, resulting in a LOC of 
$72,382.50.  The city also requires security for Erosion and Sediment control, which is 
calculated at one hundred and twenty-five percent (125%) of the erosion and restoration 
costs, estimated at $81,207 for a LOC of $101,508.75. 

In addition to the above site costs, the forest preservation permit for this site requires an 
escrow of $71,800 which will be provided under a third LOC.  This amount is calculated at $100 
per caliper inch of the total 718 caliper inches required to be replaced. 

FISCAL AND RESOURCE IMPACT: 
Endeavor Development is providing Letters of Credit naming the City of Mendota Heights for 
improvements at the Cobalt Business Center. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Cobalt Business Center - Development Agreement - 07.07.2025

CITY COUNCIL PRIORITY: 
Economic Vitality & Community Vibrancy, Premier Public Services & Infrastructure, 
Environmental Sustainability & Stewardship 

Page 41 of 107



173594522v3 

Page 1 

CITY OF MENDOTA HEIGHTS 
DAKOTA COUNTY, MINNESOTA

DEVELOPER'S AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this __ day of July, 2025, by and between 
the City of Mendota Heights, a municipal corporation under the laws of the State of Minnesota 
(the "City"), and Cobalt Business Center, LLC, (the "Developer"). 

 WHEREAS, the Developer has made application to the City Council for approval of the 
Cobalt Business Center located at 1315 Mendota Heights Road within the corporate limits of the City 
legally described on Exhibit A, attached hereto (the "Development"); and,  

 WHEREAS, the City Council has on June 17, 2025, granted vacation of a drainage and utility 
easement for storm water purposes to relocate a storm water storage pond on Lot 7, Block 1, Mendota 
Heights Industrial Park Plat, hereinafter described, all in accordance with the terms and conditions 
hereinafter set forth.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual promises and 
conditions hereinafter contained, it is hereby agreed as follows:  

1. DEVELOPER IMPROVEMENTS:  The Developer will construct at Developer's expense
the following improvements according to the following terms and conditions:

A. The Developer shall do all site grading, common greenway and open spaces, storm
water storage ponds, surface drainage ways and the sodding of boulevards, all in
accordance with the grading, drainage, landscaping and site plans attached as Exhibit
B (“Plans”).  The Plans are hereby approved by the City, except for building permit
review and approval by City staff.  Any changes to the Plans during construction shall
be submitted to the City for approval and no changes shall be made by the Developer
until approval is obtained from the City.

B. The Developer shall control soil erosion ensuring:

1. The Developer has submitted an erosion control plan, detailing all
erosion control measures to be implemented during construction as
part of the Plans.

2. Appropriate control measures as required by the City Engineering
Department shall be installed prior to development and as may be
necessary to control erosion.

3. Land shall be developed such that adequate erosion and siltation
controls can be provided as construction progresses.

4. The Developer shall not locate its equipment within the public right-
of-way adjacent to this development without the express written

Page 42 of 107



173594522v3 

Page 2 

consent of the Public Works Director.  

C. The Developer shall be responsible for maintaining the location of and protecting curb
stops, water services and sewer services.  Any service or curb stop damaged as a result
of the construction work being performed by the Developer or any of its contractors
or subcontractors shall be repaired or replaced, at the Developer’s expense, as
specified by the City.  The Developer shall make all adjustments to the curb stops to
bring them flush with the topsoil (after grading) or driveway surface.

D. The Developer shall be responsible for street maintenance resulting from construction
work being performed by the Developer or any of its contractors or subcontractors,
including maintenance of curbs, boulevards, sod and street sweeping until the project
is complete.  The Developer shall maintain all streets free of debris and soil that has
resulted from the work being performed by the Developer or any of its contractors or
subcontractors until the development is completed.  Warning signs shall be placed
when hazards develop in streets and directing attention to detours.  The repair of any
damage done to the streets or public utilities by Developer or any of its contractors or
subcontractors, shall be at the cost of the Developer.

E. The Developer shall dedicate by easement the drainage and storm water holding pond
required by the City via a separate easement agreement.  The Developer shall be
responsible for storm sewer cleaning and holding pond dredging within the
Development, as required, by the City. The City and Developer shall enter into a
drainage, utility, and storm water holding pond easement prior to issuance of a
certificate of occupancy for the Development in a form agreed upon by City and
Developer.  The easement shall be recorded against the Development.  The City will
retain future pond maintenance responsibilities unless the maintenance is caused from
negligence of the Developer.

F. The Developer shall be responsible for securing all necessary approvals and permits
from all appropriate federal, state, regional and local jurisdictions prior to the
commencement of site grading or construction.

G. Tree Protection and Clearing.  The Devloper shall submit a Forest Management Plan.
Prior to the clearing operation being initiated, all clearing limits and trees to be
protected as determined by Developer shall be clearly marked. Tree protection fencing
shall be installed and maintained until after grading is complete.

H. Warranty of Title.  By its execution hereof, Developer hereby warrants and represents
that it has the exclusive and marketable fee title to the subject property. Developer
further warrants and represents that there are no liens or encumbrances against the
title, and that it is fully authorized to execute this agreement as the fee owner of the
subject lands.

I. Fire Hydrants.  Fire Hydrants shall meet the requirements of the standards for the
Installation of Water Mains from Saint Paul Regional Water Services.

Page 43 of 107



173594522v3 

Page 3 

2. DESCRIPTION OF DEVELOPER IMPROVEMENTS ESTIMATED COST:
As allowed by Title 12-1G-4(B) of the City Code of the City of Mendota Heights,
performance of construction elements required to comply with this chapter shall be given
in amounts determined to be sufficient to reasonably ensure compliance in the construction
of the following Developer Improvements:

A. Site infrastructure (storm water storage pond and related storm water inflow and
outflow utilities and improvements):  $289,530

B. Erosion control:  $81,207

SECURITY REQUIREMENTS FOR EROSION CONTROL (125%):  $101,508.75

SECURITY REQUIREMENT FOR SITE INFRASTRUCTURE (25%):  $72,382.50

TOTAL DEVELOPER ESCROW:   $173,891.25

3. CONSTRUCTION OF DEVELOPER IMPROVEMENTS.

A. Construction.  The construction, installation, materials and equipment shall be in
accordance with the plans and specifications approved by the City.

B. Inspection.  All of the work shall be under and subject to the inspection and approval
of the City and, where appropriate, any other governmental agency having
jurisdiction.

C. Faithful Performance of Construction Contracts and Security.  The Developer will
fully and faithfully comply with all terms and conditions of any and all contracts
entered into by the Developer for the installation and construction of all Developer
Improvements.  Concurrently with the execution of this Agreement, for the purpose
of guaranteeing the performance by Developer of the construction of the Developer
Improvements in a timely and proper manner, Developer or its general contractor shall
furnish the City with the security defined in Section 2 above  (“Security”) in the form
of one the following as determined by Developer:  (i) a Performance Bond to the City
of Mendota Heights in a form to be approved by the City Attorney; or (ii) a letter of
credit in a form reasonably agreed upon by the parties, from a bank acceptable to the
City; or (iii) a cash escrow.  The City may draw down the Security for any violation
of the terms of this Agreement upon written notice and 30 day opportunity to
commence and continue to cure any default provided to Developer, and notice as
required under the letter of credit.  If the Security is drawn down, the draw shall be
used to cure the default.  Additionally, Developer guarantees and agrees that, should
the City of Mendota Heights need to apply a claim on said Security, that Developer
shall pay all attorney's fees and administrative expenses associated with said action.

D. Security Terms.  The Security provided by the Developer or its general contractor's

Page 44 of 107



173594522v3 

Page 4 

shall be issued for a period of time not less than one (1) year in duration and shall be 
reduced as setforth herein.  With City administrative approval, the Security shall be 
reduced from time to time as Developer Improvements are completed and financial 
obligations are paid, but in no case shall the security be reduced to a point less than 
10% of the original estimated construction costs of the Development Improvements 
until: (1) all Developer Improvements have been completed; (2) all financial 
obligations to the City satisfied; and (3) the required “as-built” drawings have been 
received by the City.Any reduction in the Security shall be made by City staff in 
accordance with the following procedure.  Developer shall provide written notice 
to the City requesting a reduction in the Security.  The Developer notice shall 
include evidence of completion and payment of the Developer Improvements for 
which a reduction is requested, together with the cost of the completed Developer 
Improvements.  The City shall inspect the improvements and evidence provided by 
the Developer and shall approve or deny any requested reduction in the Security 
with specific reasons for denial within 30 days.    

E. Warranty.  Developer hereby guarantees the workmanship and materials for a period
of one year following the City's final written administrative acceptance of the
Developer Improvements; provided that the City shall inspect and administratively
accept or reject the Developer Improvements in writing with 30 days after notice of
completion from the Developer.  Security shall be reduced down to 10% during the
one-year warranty period.

F. Binding Effect.  The terms and provisions hereof shall be binding upon and inure to
the benefit of the heirs, representatives, successors and assigns of the parties hereto
and shall be binding upon all future owners of all or any part of the Development and
shall be deemed covenants running with the land.  References herein to Developer, if
there be more than one, shall mean each and all of them.  The Agreement, at the option
of the City, shall be placed on record so as to give notice hereof to subsequent
purchasers and encumbrances of all or any part of the Development and all recording
fees, if any, shall be paid by the Developer.

4. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

A. Landscaping.  A final landscaping plan has been developed and submitted to the
Community Development Manager by Developer as part of the Plans.  In addition the
following modifications to the landscape plan shall be implemented subject to final
modifications by the Community Development Manager:

1. As allowed by Title 12-1D-13-2(D)(4) of the City Code of the City of
Mendota Heights, Security shall be provided by the Developer in an
amount equal $71,800, which amount is calculated as $100 per caliper
inch for the 718 caliper inches required to be replaced. The Security
shall be conditioned upon reimbursement of all expenses incurred by
the City for engineering, legal or other fees in connection with making
or completing such improvements.  The Security shall be provided

Page 45 of 107



173594522v3 

Page 5 

prior to the issuance of any building permit and shall be valid for a 
period of time equal to one full growing season after the date of 
installation of the landscaping.  The City may accept a letter of credit, 
cash escrow or equivalent as Security in an amount and under such 
conditions as the City may determine to be appropriate.    Upon 
expiration of the time period, inspections will be conducted by City 
staff to verify satisfactory completion of all conditions.  After 
satisfactory inspection, the Security shall be returned.  If the 
requirements are not satisfied, the City may use the Security to satisfy 
the requirements.  The City may also use the Security for maintenance 
of erosion control or to satisfy any other requirements of this 
Agreement or the City Code.   

2. The owner, tenant and their respective agents shall be jointly and
responsible for the maintenance of all landscaping in a condition
presenting a healthy, neat and orderly appearance and free from refuse
and debris.  Plants and ground cover which are shown on the approved
landscape plan and which have died within one (1) year after
completion and acceptance by the City shall be replaced as soon as
seasonal or weather conditions allow.

B. Trash Receptacles. Two trash receptacle areas have been designated on the site plan
for the entire building.  All tenants of the building will be required to utilize these trash
receptacles or will be required to store trash internally.

C. Signage.  A signage plan shall be submitted by the Developer and submitted and
subject to review and specific approval of City Staff.  All proposed signage for the
development shall conform to the signage plan before any sign permits can be issued.

D. Rooftop Mechanical Units.  The Developer shall provide additional information
regarding any potential visibility of rooftop mechanical units to ensure compliance
with the City Code requirements.       

E. Indemnification.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Developer shall
indemnify and hold harmless the City of Mendota Heights, its agents and
employees from and against any and all claims, damages, losses or expenses,
including but not limited to attorney's fees, arising out of the issuance of this
Developer's Agreement by the City of Mendota Heights and/or arising out of the
performance or non-performance of its obligations hereunder by Developer.

F. Certificate of Occupancy.  After the Developer has completed the construction of the
Developer Improvements and other work required of it under this Agreement, the City
shall issue a certificate of occupancy with 21 days after written request from the
Developer or other lot owner within the Development, unless denied as set forth
below.  The certificate of occupancy shall be in recordable form and may be
recorded against the Development.  Upon issuance of a certificate of occupancy,

Page 46 of 107



173594522v3 

Page 6 

the Developer, its successors and assigns, and all future owners of the property shall 
be released from all obligations to construct the Developer Improvements under 
this Agreement, except that any warranty and maintenance obligations remaining 
thereafter shall continue to remain.  If the City shall refuse or deny to provide a 
certificate of occupancy in accordance with the provisions of this Section, the City 
shall provide the requesting party with a written statement indicating in detail in 
what respects the construction of the Developer Improvements are not completed, 
or any other failure or default under this Agreement, and what measures or acts will 
be necessary, in the opinion of the City, in order to obtain a certificate of occupancy. 
The written refusal or denial of the issuance of a certificate of occupancy shall be 
provided by the City within the same 21- day period during which a certificate of 
occupancy would be issued. 

G. Transfer of Property.  In the event that the Developer sells the Development to an
independent third party, then, within 15 days after request by Developer, the City
shall acknowledge and certify certain facts in connection with this Agreement and
the status of construction of the Developer Improvements.  The City shall provide
this certification to Developer and any potential buyer of the Development.   The
certification shall reference the following:  (i) that the Developer and buyer may
rely on the representations and agreements made by the City in the certification; (ii)
the status of the completion of the Developer Improvements; (iii) the amount of any
Security remaining and that any remaining amounts will be returned to Developer
and not the buyer; (iv) that the Developer and not the buyer remain responsible for
obligations under this Agreement, and that buyer and any subsequent owners of the
Development are hereby released from all obligations under this Agreement; (v)
whether or not there exists any defaults, events of default, or conditions which with
the passage of time or giving of notice would constitute a default under this
Agreement; and (vi) if applicable, that this Agreement is completed and hereby
terminated and of no further force and effect.

Page 47 of 107



173594522v3 

Page 7 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and Developer have caused this Agreement to be duly 
executed on the date and year first above written.  

In the presence of: CITY OF MENDOTA HEIGHTS 

Stephanie B. Le vine 
Mayor  

Nancy Bauer 
City Clerk 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and Developer have caused this Agreement to be duly 
executed on the date and year first above written.  

In the presence of: COBALT BUSINESS CENTER LLC 

Its 

Page 48 of 107



173594522v3 

Page 8 

Exhibit A to Developer’s Agreement 

Legal Description of Development 

Lot 6, Block 1, MENDOTA HEIGHTS INDUSTRIAL PARK, Dakota County, Minnesota. 

AND 

That part of Lot 7, Block 1, MENDOTA HEIGHTS INDUSTRIAL PARK, lying South of 
the Easterly extension of the South line of Lot 5, Block 1, MENDOTA HEIGHTS 
INDUSTRIAL PARK, through Lot 7 to the East line of said Lot 7, Dakota County, 

Minnesota. 

(Abstract Property) 

Page 49 of 107



173594522v3 

Page 9 

Exhibit B to Developer’s Agreement 

Plans 

Page 50 of 107



S
TO

R
M

W
A

TE
R

 P
O

N
D

PROPOSED BUILDING
623' x 280'

174,288  S.F.

SITE

C-0.0

P
E

R
M

IT
 S

E
T

C
O

V
E

R
 S

H
E

E
T

733 Marquette Avenue

Minneapolis, MN 55402
612.758.3080

www.alliant-inc.com

Suite 700
COBALT BUSINESS CENTER

MENDOTA HEIGHTS,  MINNESOTA

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

SHEET INDEX

COVER SHEET
EXISTING CONDITIONS

C-0.0
C.1.0

SWPPP NOTES AND DETAILS

SHEET TITLENO.

ARCHITECT              
MOHAGEN HANSEN
1000 TWELVE OAKS CNETER DRIVE STE 200
WAYZATA, MN 55391
CONTACT: BRIAN HUNKE
EM: bhunke@mohangenhansen.com

PROJECT
LOCATION

GENERAL CONTRACTOR    

DEVELOPER
ENDEAVOR DEVELOPMENT 
200 SOUTHDALE CENTER
MINNEAPOLIS, MN 55435
CONTACT: EVAN MATTSON 
EM: evan@endeavorshield.com

PH: 952-426-7400

PH: 651-343-1118

PERMIT SET

SITE PLANC-3.0
GRADING PLANC-4.0

C-4.2
C-5.0 UTILITY PLAN

C-6.0
C-6.1

DETAIL SHEET 1 

FOREST MANAGEMENT PLANL-1.0
L-1.1

ALLIANT ENGINEERING, INC.
733 MARQUETTE AVE STE 700 

PH: 612-758-3080 / FX: 612-758-3099

CONSULTANT

CIVIL ENGINEER
CLARK WICKLUND
LICENSE NO.  40922

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT
EM: cwicklund@alliant-inc.com

MARK KRONBECK, PLA, ASLA
LICENSE NO.  26222
EM: mkronbeck@alliant-inc.com

MINNEAPOLIS, MN 55402-2340

SURVEYOR 

DETAIL SHEET 2 
DANIEL EKREM 
LICENSE NO.  57366
EM: dekrem@alliant-inc.com

TREE INVENTORY

EROSION CONTROL PLANC-4.1

LANDSCAPE PLANL-2.0
L-2.1

PHOTOMETRIC PLAN
LANDSCAPE DETAILS

P-1.0

C
O

B
A

LT
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 C
E

N
TE

R

DEMOLITION PLANC-2.0

C-6.2 MNDOT DETAILS

TBD

C-5.1 WATERMAIN PLAN AND PROFILE

Page 51 of 107

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEXINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
Rogers Lake

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
Lemay

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
Lake

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
MEDALLION

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
LAKEVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
R.

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
NOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
LAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
MENDOTA

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
HEIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
BOURN LA.

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
PILOT

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
KNOB

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
HIGHVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
KENNETH

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
BEATRICE

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
McKEE

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
AVALON  AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
VI

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
AS

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
LA.

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
BURNSIDE AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
TRAPP  AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
EN

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
TER

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
13 

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
35E 

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
494 

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
31 

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
31 

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
43 

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
31 

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
13 

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
55 

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
ENTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
PRISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
NORTHLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
EAGANDALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
EAGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
PORA

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
NTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
EAGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
WOODS DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
1st

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
EXEC

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
UTIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
SERVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
LEMAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
LAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
WAT

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
ER'S

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
PERRON

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
E.

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
Union

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
Pacific

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
Railroad

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
NORTHLAND    DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
JUPITER

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
BUFFET

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
EAGAN INDUSTRIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
INDUSTRIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
CU

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
VE

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
CORPORATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
TER.

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
SIBLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
HILLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
BEAM

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
LA.

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
SOU

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
THRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
TER.

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
TER.

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
EW

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
VI

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
DESIGNED:

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
I hereby certify that this plan,

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
specification, or report was

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
prepared by me or under my

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
direct supervision and that I

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
am a duly Licensed

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
under

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
SCALE      IN      FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
160

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
the laws of the State of 

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
PROJECT TEAM DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
MINNESOTA

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
MK

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
TLM

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
4000651

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
1315 MENDOTA HEIGHTS RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
MENDOTA HEIGHTS, MN 55120

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
05-09-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
CITY SUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
54821

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
License No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
QUALITY ASSURANCE/CONTROL

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
06-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
PROGRESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
06-30-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
06-16-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
PERMIT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
DANIEL SJOBLOM, PE

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
07-01-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
WATER COMMENTS & CURB WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
N



85
4 85
6

85
8

86
0

86
2 86
4

86
6

86
8

86
6

86
8

882880878

876
87

4

872870
86

886
6

86
4

862

86085
8

856854

852

848

850
852
854

856 858

860

848

850
852
854
856
858
860

862

86
4

864

862

86
2

862

85
2

86
0

850

850

87
0

87
0

872

874

876

87
8

88
0

88
2

88
4

88
6

89
0

89
2

87
4

87
6

87
8

88
0

88
2

88
4

868

864
862

860

86
6

86
6

866

N89°52'24"E 881.26

N
0°

11
'5

3"
W

 5
00

.0
3

N89°52'24"E 888.46

N
0°

15
'1

6"
W

 4
23

.9
4

R=434.70
L=76.50

Δ=10°04'59"
C.Brg=N5°17'45"W

C=76.40

MENDOTA HEIGHTS RD

EN
TE

R
PR

IS
E 

D
R

SITE

C-1.0

C
O

B
A

LT
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 C
E

N
TE

R

P
E

R
M

IT
 S

E
T

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
S

733 Marquette Avenue

Minneapolis, MN 55402
612.758.3080

www.alliant-inc.com

Suite 700

Lot 6, Block 1, MENDOTA HEIGHTS INDUSTRIAL PARK, Dakota County, Minnesota.

AND

That part of Lot 7, Block 1, MENDOTA HEIGHTS INDUSTRIAL PARK, lying South of the Easterly
extension of the South line of Lot 5, Block 1, MENDOTA HEIGHTS INDUSTRIAL PARK, through Lot 7
to the East line of said Lot 7, Dakota County, Minnesota.

(Abstract Property)

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

1. Monuments placed (or a reference monument or witness to the corner) at all major corners of the
boundary of the property, unless already marked or referenced by existing monuments or
witnesses to the corner are shown hereon.

2. Address of the property is 1315 Mendota Heights Road and indicated on map.
3. The property lies within Zone X (unshaded - areas determined to be outside the 0.2% annual

chance floodplain) of Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Flood Insurance
Community Panel No. 27037C0081E, effective December 2, 2011.

4. The area of the above described property is 440,946 square feet or 10.123 acres.
5. Contour lines depicted hereon are based on ground measurements and referenced to North

American Vertical Datum of 1988(NAVD88). Benchmark: Top nut of Hydrant located at the
southeast corner of subject property and has a elevation of 882.97 ft.

6(a). No zoning information provided.
7(a). Exterior dimensions of all buildings are shown at ground level.
8. Substantial features observed in the process of conducting fieldwork, are shown hereon.
9. There are 524 regular parking stalls and 13 handicapped parking stalls on site.
11(a). The locations of existing public utilities on or serving the property are depicted based on Gopher

State One Call Ticket Nos. 250761178 & 250761125, available city maps, records and observed
evidence locations. Lacking excavation, underground utility locations may not be exact. Verify
critical utilities prior to construction or design

13. Names of adjoining owners are depicted based on Dakota County GIS tax information.
16. There was no observed evidence of earth moving work or building construction at the time of our

field work.
17. We are not aware of any proposed changes in street right of way lines or observable evidence of

recent street or sidewalk construction or repairs.

TABLE A ITEMS

The following are survey related exceptions set forth in Schedule B, Part II of the herein referenced Title
Commitment:

Item No. 12: Drainage and utility easements as shown on the recorded plat of Mendota Heights Industrial Park,
recorded July 22, 1969, as Document No. 363029.    Depicted on survey.

NOTE: As evidenced by Declaration Vacating Private Easements dated October 3, 1978, recorded
January 9, 1979, as Document No. 529936, all railway easements shown on the plat which were
not dedicated as a public easement were vacated.

Item No. 13: Declaration of Covenants by Northland Land Company, a Minnesota corporation, dated October
31, 1978, recorded December 21, 1978, as Document No. 528779.   Affects property; not
plottable.

As amended by Amended, Extended and Restated Declaration of Covenants dated July 31, 1987,
recorded August 6, 1987, as Document No. 799509. As affected by Waiver Letter dated May 3,
2004, recorded November 17, 2004, as Document No. 2268025.    Affects property; not plottable.

Item No. 14: Declaration of Covenants by The Northland Company, a Minnesota corporation, dated December
23, 1986, recorded January 15, 1987, as Document No. 762195.

As amended by Amended, Extended and Restated Declaration of Covenants dated July 31, 1987,
recorded August 6, 1987, as Document No. 799509.    Affects property; not plottable.

Item No. 15: Easement for drainage and utility for storm water purposes, together with any incidental rights, in
favor of the City of Mendota Heights, a municipal corporation, as contained in the Easement
Agreement, dated October 15, 1996, recorded November 6, 1996, as Document No. 1386087.
Depicted on survey.

Item No. 16: Memorandum of Ground Lease Agreement by and between CEC Investment LLC, as Landlord,
and CEC Holdings LLC, as Tenant, dated September 30, 2004, recorded December 13, 2004, as
Document No. 2275506.

As affected by Limited Warranty Deed dated February 1, 2011, recorded May 3, 2011, as
Document No. 2798820.   Affects property; not plottable.

Item No. 17: Terms, conditions, covenants, reservations, regulations and easements as contained in the Private
Water Main Agreement, dated March 22, 2005, recorded July 12, 2005, as Document No. 2338919.
Depicted on survey.

Item No. 18: Terms and conditions as contained in the Resolution No. 10-103, Approving a Conditional Use
Permit for a Restaurant and Cafe, recorded December 17, 2010, as Document No. 2773148.
Affects property; not plottable.

Item No. 19: Riparian rights of others in and to wetlands crossing or abutting premises.   No wetland flags
were observed in the process of conducting the fieldwork.

SCHEDULE B, PART II EXCEPTIONS

VICINITY MAP

LEGEND

1. This survey and the property description shown here on are based upon information found in the
commitment for title insurance prepared by First American Title Insurance Company National
Commercial Services, file no. NCS-1253903-MPLS, dated March 13, 2025.

2. The south line of Lot 6, Block 1, MENDOTA HEIGHTS INDUSTRIAL PARK is assumed to have a
bearing of N89°52'24"E

3. All distances are in feet.

4. The property has vehicular access to Mendota Heights Rd and Enterprise Dr, public rights of way, via
curb cuts.

NOTES

To Endeavor Holdings, LLC, a Minnesota limited liability company and First American Title Insurance
Company National Commercial Services:

This is to Certify that this map or plat and the survey on which it is based were made in accordance with
the 2021 Minimum Standard Detail Requirements for ALTA/NSPS Land Title Surveys, jointly established
and adopted by ALTA and NSPS, and includes Items 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6(a), 7(a), 8, 9, 11(a), 13, 16 and 17 of
Table A thereof. The field work was completed on April 17, 2025.

Date of Plat or Map: __________________________________________

__________________________________________________________
Daniel Ekrem, Professional Land Surveyor
Minnesota License No. 57366
Email: dekrem@alliant-inc.com

CERTIFICATION

Know what's below.
Call before you dig.

R

Dial 811
0

SCALE      IN      FEET

25 50 100

N

Page 52 of 107

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
LOT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
BLOCK 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
MENDOTA

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
HEIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
INDUSTRIAL 

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
LOT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
DRAINAGE & UTILITY EASEMENT FOR STORMWATER PURPOSES PER DOC. NO. 1386087

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
DRAINAGE & UTILITY EASEMENT PER PLAT OF MENDOTA HEIGHTS INDUSTRIAL PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
DRAINAGE & UTILITY EASEMENT PER PLAT OF MENDOTA HEIGHTS INDUSTRIAL PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
EAST LINE OF LOT 7, BLOCK 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
EASTERLY EXT. OF SOUTH LINE OF LOT 5, BLOCK 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
SOUTH LINE OF LOT 5, BLOCK 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
15 

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
15 

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
15 

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
15 

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
15 

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
15 

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
15 

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
15 

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
15 

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
15 

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
15 

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
EASEMENT FOR WATERMAIN PURPOSES PER DOC. NO. 2338919

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
EASEMENT FOR WATERMAIN PURPOSES PER DOC. NO. 2338919

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
P.O.C. DOC. NO. 2338919

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
P.O.B. DOC. NO. 2338919

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
1315 MENDOTA HEIGHTS RD 1-STORY BRICK BUILDING 69,488 SQ. FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
10"PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
10"PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
8" PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
8" PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
8" PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
36"

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
36"

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
36"

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
36"

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
30" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
24" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
30" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
12" HDPE

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
18" HDPE

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
12" HDPE

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
12" HDPE

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
12" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
12" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
15" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
15" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
12" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
12" HDPE

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
8" PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
8" PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
8" DIP

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
BENCHMARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
RETAINING WALL 2.2' N OF PROP. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
CONC. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
CONC. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
CONC. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
CONC. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
RIP RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
RIP RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
EDGE OF WATER AS OF 3/24/2025

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
BIT SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
BIT SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
BIT SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
BIT SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
(PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
(PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
BUILDING HEIGHT=26.4 FT

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
COLUMNS

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
CONC. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
15" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
8" DIP

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
8" 

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
PT. "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
24" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
SOUTH LINE OF LOT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
EAST LINE OF LOT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
GRASS/LANDSCAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
UNABLE TO REMOVE COVER FOR INVERTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
30"

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
LEMAY'S ADDITION

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
LEMAY'S ADDITION

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
882

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
CABLE BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
GAS METER

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
UNDERGROUND FIBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
IRON MONUMENT FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
WATER VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
SANITARY MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
HAND HOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
TELEPHONE BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
GAS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
WATERMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
SANITARY SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
STORM MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
SET IRON MONUMENT RLS 57366

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
GM

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
TR

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
TELEPHONE MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
FIRE HOOKUP

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
TRANSFORMER

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
CLEANOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
FLAG POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
PARKING COUNT

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
TREE WITH TAG NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
SCHEDULE B-II EXCEPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
FIRE HOOKUP

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
ROOF DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
TREE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
CONTOUR

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
882

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
SANITARY FORCEMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
LEXINGTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
Rogers Lake

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
Lemay

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
Lake

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
MEDALLION

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
LAKEVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
R.

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
NOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
LAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
MENDOTA

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
MENDOTA

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
HEIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
BOURN LA.

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
PILOT

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
KNOB

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
TRAPP  AVE.

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
EN

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
TER

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
13 

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
35E 

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
494 

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
31 

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
31 

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
43 

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
31 

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
13 

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
55 

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
ENTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
PRISE

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
NORTHLAND

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
EAGANDALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
EAGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
PORA

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
NTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
EAGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
WOODS DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
EXEC

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
UTIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
LEMAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
LAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
WAT

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
ER'S

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
PERRON

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
E.

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
Union

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
Pacific

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
Railroad

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
NORTHLAND    DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
JUPITER

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
BUFFET

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
EAGAN INDUSTRIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
CU

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
VE

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
CORPORATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
TER.

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
TER.

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
DESIGNED:

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
I hereby certify that this plan,

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
specification, or report was

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
prepared by me or under my

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
direct supervision and that I

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
am a duly Licensed

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
under

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
the laws of the State of 

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
PROJECT TEAM DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
MINNESOTA

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
MK

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
TLM

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
4000651

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
1315 MENDOTA HEIGHTS RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
MENDOTA HEIGHTS, MN 55120

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
05-09-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
CITY SUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
License No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
QUALITY ASSURANCE/CONTROL

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
06-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
PROGRESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
06-30-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
06-16-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
PERMIT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
07-01-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
WATER COMMENTS & CURB WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
DANIEL EKREM, PLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
57366



N89°52'24"E 881.26

N
0°

11
'5

3"
W

 5
00

.0
3

N89°52'24"E 888.46

N
0°

15
'1

6"
W

 4
23

.9
4

R=434.70
L=76.50

Δ=10°04'59"
C.Brg=N5°17'45"W

C=76.40

MENDOTA HEIGHTS RD

EN
TE

R
PR

IS
E 

D
R

C-2.0

C
O

B
A

LT
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 C
E

N
TE

R

P
E

R
M

IT
 S

E
T

D
E

M
O

LI
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N

733 Marquette Avenue

Minneapolis, MN 55402
612.758.3080

www.alliant-inc.com

Suite 700

Know what's below.
Call before you dig.

R

Dial 811

LEGEND:DEMOLITION NOTES:

Page 53 of 107

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
LOT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
BLOCK 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
MENDOTA

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
HEIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
INDUSTRIAL 

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
LOT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
DRAINAGE & UTILITY EASEMENT FOR STORMWATER PURPOSES PER DOC. NO. 1386087

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
DRAINAGE & UTILITY EASEMENT PER PLAT OF MENDOTA HEIGHTS INDUSTRIAL PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
DRAINAGE & UTILITY EASEMENT PER PLAT OF MENDOTA HEIGHTS INDUSTRIAL PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
EAST LINE OF LOT 7, BLOCK 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
EASTERLY EXT. OF SOUTH LINE OF LOT 5, BLOCK 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
SOUTH LINE OF LOT 5, BLOCK 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
EASEMENT FOR WATERMAIN PURPOSES PER DOC. NO. 2338919

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
EASEMENT FOR WATERMAIN PURPOSES PER DOC. NO. 2338919

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
P.O.C. DOC. NO. 2338919

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
P.O.B. DOC. NO. 2338919

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
1315 MENDOTA HEIGHTS RD 1-STORY BRICK BUILDING 69,488 SQ. FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
10"PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
10"PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
8" PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
8" PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
8" PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
36"

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
36"

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
36"

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
36"

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
30" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
24" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
30" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
18" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
12" HDPE

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
18" HDPE

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
12" HDPE

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
12" HDPE

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
12" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
12" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
15" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
15" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
12" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
12" HDPE

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
8" PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
8" PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
8" DIP

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
BENCHMARK

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
RETAINING WALL 2.2' N OF PROP. LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
CONC. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
CONC. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
CONC. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
CONC. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
RIP RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
RIP RAP

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
EDGE OF WATER AS OF 3/24/2025

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
BIT SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
BIT SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
BIT SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
BIT SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
(PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
(PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
BUILDING HEIGHT=26.4 FT

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
COLUMNS

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
CONC. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
15" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
8" DIP

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
8" 

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
PT. "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
24" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
SOUTH LINE OF LOT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
EAST LINE OF LOT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
GRASS/LANDSCAPE

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
UNABLE TO REMOVE COVER FOR INVERTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
30"

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
LEMAY'S ADDITION

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
LEMAY'S ADDITION

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
EXISTING FIBER OPTIC UTILITY TO REMAIN, PROTECT DURING CONSTRUCTION 

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
EXISTING FIBER OPTIC UTILITY TO REMAIN, PROTECT DURING CONSTRUCTION 

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
EXISTING FIBER OPTIC UTILITY TO REMAIN, PROTECT DURING CONSTRUCTION 

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
EXISTING BUILDING TO BE REMOVED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
EXISTING BUILDING TO BE REMOVED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
EXISTING BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT TO BE REMOVED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
EXISTING CURB TO BE REMOVED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
EXISTING CURB TO REMAIN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
EXISTING CURB TO REMAIN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
EXISTING RETAINING WALL TO REMAIN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
EXISTING RETAINING WALL TO REMAIN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
EXISTING CONCRETE APRON TO BE REMOVED

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
REMOVE EXISTING CURB TO NEAREST CONTROL JOINT, TYP. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
EXISTING BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT TO BE REMOVED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
EXISTING CURB ISLANDS TO BE REMOVED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
EXISTING CURB ISLANDS TO BE REMOVED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
EXISTING BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT TO BE REMOVED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
EXISTING CURB TO REMAIN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
EXISTING SIDEWALKS TO BE REMOVED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
EXISTING SIDEWALKS TO BE REMOVED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
EXISTING SANITARY SEWER TO BE REMOVED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
EXISTING WATER SERVICE TO BE REMOVED TO TEE

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
EXISTING GAS LINES INTERNAL TO SITE TO BE REMOVED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
EXISTING STORM SEWER INTERNAL TO SITE TO BE REMOVED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
EXISTING UTILITY SERVICES WITHIN R.O.W. TO REMAIN, PROTECT DURING CONSTRUCTION. COORDINATE WITH CIVIL BEFORE DEMOLITION ACTIVITIES BEGIN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
EXISTING UTILITY SERVICES WITHIN R.O.W. TO REMAIN, PROTECT DURING CONSTRUCTION. COORDINATE WITH CIVIL BEFORE DEMOLITION ACTIVITIES BEGIN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
EXISTING UTILITY SERVICES ALONG NORTH OF SITE TO REMAIN, PROTECT DURING CONSTRUCTION. COORDINATE WITH CIVIL BEFORE DEMOLITION ACTIVITIES BEGIN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
EXISTING STORM SEWER INTERNAL TO SITE TO BE REMOVED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
EXISTING TREES TO BE REMOVED, REFER TO FOREST MANAGEMENT PLAN FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION, SEE SHEET L-1.0 

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
EXISTING TREES TO BE REMOVED, REFER TO FOREST MANAGEMENT PLAN FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION, SEE SHEET L-1.0 

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
EXISTING TRANSFORMERS, METERS AND CONNECTION CABINETS TO BE REMOVED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
RETAINING WALL TO BE REMOVED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
EXISTING CONCRETE APRON AND CURBING TO REMAIN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
EXISTING CONCRETE APRON AND CURBING TO REMAIN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
EXISTING ELECTRICAL SERVICE TO BE REMOVED COORDINATE WITH SERVICE PROVIDER  

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
EXISTING POLE LIGHT TO BE REMOVED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
EXISTING POLE LIGHT TO BE REMOVED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
EXISTING SIDEWALKS TO BE REMOVED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
EXISTING MONUMENT SIGN TO BE REMOVED

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
EXISTING WATER SERVICES INTERNAL TO SITE TO BE REMOVED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
SAW CUT AND REMOVE EXISTING BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT WITHIN R.O.W. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
EXISTING CURB TO BE REMOVED TO APRON, RESET CASTINGS INTO PROPOSED CURB 

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
DEMOLITION LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
DEMOLITION LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
DEMOLITION LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
DEMOLITION LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
DEMOLITION LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
DEMOLITION LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
DEMOLITION LIMITS

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
EXISTING STRUCTURE TO BE REMOVED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
EXISTING STORM SEWER TO REMAIN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
EXISTING STRUCTURE TO REMAIN, PROTECT DURING DEMOLITION 

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
EXISTING FIBER OPTIC UTILITY TO REMAIN, PROTECT DURING CONSTRUCTION 

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
PROTECT EXISTING 8" WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
EXISTING CURB TO REMAIN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
CAP WM TEE, (CONVERT TO 90°)

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
PROTECT EXISTING 8" WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
REMOVE EX. WM TO BEND

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
REMOVE EX. WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
SAW CUT AND REMOVE EXISTING BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT/ APRON WITHIN R.O.W. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
EXISTING STRUCTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
EXISTING CONCRETE PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
EXISTING CURBING 

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
EXISTING TREES AND  

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
VEGETATION TO BE REMOVED

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
TO BE REMOVED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
 TO BE REMOVED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
TO BE REMOVED 

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
DEMOLITION LIMITS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
POWER POLE W/ LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
SANITARY MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
STORM MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
SANITARY SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
WATERMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
EXISTING CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
LIGHT POLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
FOUND IRON MONUMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
UNDERGROUND FIBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
POWER POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
GAS METER

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
BOLLARD

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
WATER MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
PER RECORD DRAWING

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
ELECTRIC METER

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
EM

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
GM

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
WATER VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
SET IRON MONUMENT W/ CAP MARKED PLS 44110

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
SET MAG NAIL W/ BRASS WASHER MARKED PLS 44110

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
FOUND IRON NAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
DESIGNED:

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
I hereby certify that this plan,

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
specification, or report was

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
prepared by me or under my

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
direct supervision and that I

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
am a duly Licensed

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
under

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
SCALE      IN      FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
the laws of the State of 

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
PROJECT TEAM DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
MINNESOTA

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
MK

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
TLM

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
4000651

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
1315 MENDOTA HEIGHTS RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
MENDOTA HEIGHTS, MN 55120

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
05-09-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
CITY SUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
54821

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
License No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
QUALITY ASSURANCE/CONTROL

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
06-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
PROGRESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
06-30-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
06-16-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
PERMIT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text_766
DANIEL SJOBLOM, PE

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
07-01-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
WATER COMMENTS & CURB WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
1. PRIOR TO STARTING CONSTRUCTION, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE PRIOR TO STARTING CONSTRUCTION, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE TO MAKE SURE THAT ALL REQUIRED PERMITS AND APPROVALS HAVE BEEN OBTAINED. NO CONSTRUCTION OR FABRICATION SHALL BEGIN UNTIL THE CONTRACTOR HAS RECEIVED AND THOROUGHLY REVIEWED ALL PLANS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS APPROVED BY ALL OF THE PERMITTING AUTHORITIES. 2. ALL DIMENSIONS, GRADES, EXISTING AND PROPOSED INFORMATION ALL DIMENSIONS, GRADES, EXISTING AND PROPOSED INFORMATION SHOWN ON THE PLANS SHALL BE FIELD VERIFIED BY THE CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGER IF ANY DISCREPANCIES EXIST PRIOR TO PROCEEDING WITH CONSTRUCTION FOR NECESSARY PLAN OR GRADE CHANGES.  NO EXTRA COMPENSATION SHALL BE PAID TO THE CONTRACTOR FOR WORK HAVING TO BE REDONE DUE TO INFORMATION SHOWN INCORRECTLY ON THESE PLANS IF SUCH NOTIFICATION HAS NOT BEEN GIVEN.  3. NOTIFY GOPHER STATE ONE CALL 48 HOURS PRIOR TO START OF NOTIFY GOPHER STATE ONE CALL 48 HOURS PRIOR TO START OF CONSTRUCTION. PRIOR TO STARTING CONSTRUCTION, ALL PERIMETER EROSION CONTROL DEVICES MUST BE INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GRADING & EROSION CONTROL PLAN AND THE CITY OF MENDOTA HEIGHTS. 4. REMOVAL CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PROPERLY REMOVAL CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PROPERLY LOCATING AND PROTECTING ALL UTILITY LINES PRIOR TO DIGGING AND DEMOLITION. OWNER AND ENGINEER SHALL NOT BE HELD RESPONSIBLE FOR PUBLIC OR PRIVATE UTILITY LOCATIONS. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
6. DEMOLITION CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR PROPER DISPOSAL OF ALL DEMOLITION CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR PROPER DISPOSAL OF ALL DEMOLISHED MATERIALS.  7. REMOVAL CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE DEMOLITION AND REMOVAL CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE DEMOLITION AND REMOVAL OF ALL EXISTING STRUCTURES AND OBJECTS THAT INTERFERE WITH THE PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION AS SHOWN IN THIS DRAWING PACKAGE. MATERIALS SALVAGED FOR REUSE ON-SITE SHALL NOT BE STORED ON ANY PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY. 8. ALL WORK SHALL BE PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THESE PLANS AND ALL WORK SHALL BE PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THESE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS AND THE REQUIREMENTS AND STANDARDS OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA HEIGHTS.   9. ALL WORK WITHIN THE PUBLIC R.O.W. SHALL COMPLY WITH THE CITY OF MENDOTA ALL WORK WITHIN THE PUBLIC R.O.W. SHALL COMPLY WITH THE CITY OF MENDOTA HEIGHTS DESIGN STANDARDS. 10. CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING UTILITIES AND TOPOGRAPHIC FEATURES, SUCH AS EXISTING GUTTER GRADES AT THE PROPOSED DRIVEWAYS CONNECTIONS, PRIOR TO THE START OF SITE WORK. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE ENGINEER OF ANY DISCREPANCIES OF VARIATIONS FROM THE PLANS. 11. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE TRAFFIC CONTROL IN ACCORDANCE WITH MN MUTCD CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE TRAFFIC CONTROL IN ACCORDANCE WITH MN MUTCD AND/ OR MNDOT TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL ZONE LAYOUTS MANUAL, DURING DEMOLITION OF EXISTING CURB CUT ACCESSES ON PUBLIC R.O.W. 12. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE HELD FULLY RESPONSIBLE TO PREVENT AND ELIMINATE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE HELD FULLY RESPONSIBLE TO PREVENT AND ELIMINATE ANY DUST NUISANCE OCCASIONED BY AND DURING CONSTRUCTION, UNTIL THE PROJECT HAS BEEN COMPLETED.    

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
13. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT ADJOINING PROPERTIES AND STRUCTURES CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT ADJOINING PROPERTIES AND STRUCTURES FROM HAZARDS ASSOCIATED WITH HIS CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES AND SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL DAMAGES TO PROPERTIES AND STRUCTURES THAT OCCUR AS A RESULT OF THESE ACTIVITIES.      14. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT IMPEDE EXISTING TRAFFIC CIRCULATION TO CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT IMPEDE EXISTING TRAFFIC CIRCULATION TO ADJACENT BUSINESSES.    15. ANY DAMAGED PUBLIC R.O.W. PAVEMENT AND CURBING SHALL BE ANY DAMAGED PUBLIC R.O.W. PAVEMENT AND CURBING SHALL BE REPLACED WITH THE EQUIVALENT PAVEMENT SECTION. 16. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL OF THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL OF THE EXISTING BITUMINOUS. BITUMINOUS SHALL BE SAWCUT OR JACK HAMMERED FOR STRAIGHT EDGES. TACK SHALL BE USED ON BITUMINOUS EDGE PRIOR TO PATCHING. MATCH EXISTING GRADES.  17. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE PRIVATE/PUBLIC UTILITIES RELOCATES, CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE PRIVATE/PUBLIC UTILITIES RELOCATES, SUCH AS TRAFFIC SIGNAL HANDHOLES, AND WIRING, ETC. 18. IF BITUMINOUS IS NEEDED TO BE REMOVED FOR CURB REPLACEMENT, IF BITUMINOUS IS NEEDED TO BE REMOVED FOR CURB REPLACEMENT, SAW CUT TO HAVE CLEAN EDGE. TACK EDGE AND PLACE NEW BITUMINOUS IN EVEN LIFTS NOT TO EXCEED 3" 

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
1



MENDOTA HEIGHTS RD

EN
TE

R
PR

IS
E 

D
R

S
TO

R
M

W
A

TE
R

 P
O

N
D

PROPOSED BUILDING
623' x 280'

174,288  S.F.

20' FRONT PARKING SETBACK

40' YARD BUILDING SETBACK

20' FRONT PARKING SETBACK

40' YARD BUILDING SETBACK

10
' F

RO
NT

 P
AR

KI
NG

 S
ET

BA
CK

30
' Y

AR
D 

BU
ILD

IN
G 

SE
TB

AC
K

10' FRONT PARKING SETBACK

50' YARD BUILDING SETBACK

C-3.0

C
O

B
A

LT
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 C
E

N
TE

R

P
E

R
M

IT
 S

E
T

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

733 Marquette Avenue

Minneapolis, MN 55402
612.758.3080

www.alliant-inc.com

Suite 700

Know what's below.
Call before you dig.

R

Dial 811

SITE NOTES:

SITE LEGEND:

SITE DATA:

Page 54 of 107

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
(PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
(PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
COLUMNS

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
TRUCK DOCKS

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
R10'

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
R8'

AutoCAD SHX Text_784
R10'

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
R10'

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
R10'

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
R5'

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
R5'

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
R5'

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
R5'

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
R5'

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
R5'

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
R5'

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
R5'

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
R4.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
R4.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
R4.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
R4.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
R4.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
R5'

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
R4.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
R4.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
R8'

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
R8'

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
R8'

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
R25'

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
R25'

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
R25'

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
EXISTING RETAINING  WALL TO REMAIN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
ACCESSIBLE PARKING STALLS AND ACCESS ISLES WITH REQUIRED SIGNAGE SEE DETAIL 4&5 SHEET C-6.0 

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
EXISTING CURB AND GUTTER TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
MODULAR CONCRETE BLOCK RETAINING WALL SEE DETAIL 8 SHEET C-6.0  

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
TRUCK ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
TRUCK ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
VEHICLE ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
CONCRETE DRIVEWAY APRON PER CITY STANDARDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
DRIVE IN TRUCK RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
DRIVE IN TRUCK RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
TIE INTO EXISTING  CURB AND GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
LIGHT DUTY BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT IN PARKING STALLS SEE DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
HEAVY DUTY BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT SEE DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
LIGHT DUTY BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT SEE DETAIL 3 SHEET C-6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
HEAVY DUTY BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT IN DRIVE  AISLES SEE DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
HEAVY DUTY BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT IN DRIVE  AISLES SEE DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
BUILDING ENTRANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
GRASSPAVE2 FOR FIRE TRUCK ACCESS SEE DETAIL 5,6 & 7 SHEET C-6.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
PROPOSED POND EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_830
PROPOSED POND EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
STOP SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
STOP SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
PROPOSED 48" HT. VINYL COATED BLACK CHAIN LINK  FENCE ALONG TOP OF WALL 

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
PROPOSED 48" HT. VINYL COATED BLACK CHAIN LINK  FENCE ALONG TOP OF WALL 

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
LANDSCAPE BOULDERS  SEE LANDSCAPE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
CURB RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
STOP SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
ACCESSIBLE PARKING STALL AND ACCESS ISLE WITH REQUIRED SIGNAGE SEE DETAIL 10&11 SHEET C-6.0 

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
4' CONCRETE SPILLWAY, SEE DETAIL 9 SHEET C-6.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
4' CONCRETE SPILLWAY, SEE DETAIL 9 SHEET C-6.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
BUILDING ENTRY 

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
BUILDING ENTRY 

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
PRIMARY BUILDING ENTRY 

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
BUILDING ENTRY 

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
CONCRETE SIDEWALK SEE DETAIL 3 SHEET C-6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
LIGHT DUTY BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT SEE DETAIL 3 SHEET C-6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
LIGHT DUTY BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT SEE DETAIL 3 SHEET C-6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
HEAVY DUTY BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT AT TRUCK DOCK SEE DETAIL 3 SHEET C-6.0  

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
B612 CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER SEE DETAIL 1 SHEET C-6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
B612 CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER SEE DETAIL 1 SHEET C-6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE DOLLY PAD SEE DETAIL 3 SHEET C-6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE DOLLY PAD SEE DETAIL 3 SHEET C-6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
B612 CONCRETE OUTFALL CURB AND GUTTER SEE DETAIL 2 SHEET C-6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
B612 CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER SEE DETAIL 1 SHEET C-6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
B612 CONCRETE OUTFALL CURB AND GUTTER SEE DETAIL 2 SHEET C-6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
B612 CONCRETE OUTFALL CURB AND GUTTER SEE DETAIL 2 SHEET C-6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
5' CONCRETE APRON AT DRIVE IN DOORS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
5' CONCRETE APRON AT DRIVE IN DOORS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
"NO PARKING" PAVEMENT STRIPING 

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
5 CONCRETE STEPS, PROVIDE HANDRAIL THAT EXTENDS 1' BEYOND TOP AND BOTTOM OF STAIRCASE SEE DETAIL 10 SHEET C-6.0 

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
EXISTING CONCRETE APRON TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
EXISTING CONCRETE APRON TO REMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
CONCRETE CURB RETAINING WALL, SEE DETAIL 11 SHEET C-6.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
PROPOSED POND EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
PROVIDE MOUNTABLE CURB ALONG GRASS PAVE ACCESS POINT SEE DETAIL 2.2 SHEET C-6.0 

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
6' MIN. TRANSITION BETWEEN CURBING TYPES 

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
LIMITS OF CONSTRUCTION 

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
LIMITS OF CONSTRUCTION 

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
LIMITS OF CONSTRUCTION 

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
PROVIDE VALLEY GUTTER ACROSS ACCESS PER CITY STANDARDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
REPLACE CURBING IN R.O.W. PER CITY STANDARDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_875
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_879
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
PARALLEL CONCRETE PEDESTRIAN RAMPS SEE DETAILS SHEET C-6.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_887
PARALLEL CONCRETE PEDESTRIAN RAMPS SEE DETAILS SHEET C-6.2

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
CONCRETE SIDEWALK SEE DETAIL 3 SHEET C-6.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
EXISTING CURB AND GUTTER TO REMAIN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
DESIGNED:

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
I hereby certify that this plan,

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
specification, or report was

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
prepared by me or under my

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
direct supervision and that I

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
am a duly Licensed

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
under

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
SCALE      IN      FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_903
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
the laws of the State of 

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
PROJECT TEAM DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
MINNESOTA

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
MK

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
TLM

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
4000651

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
1315 MENDOTA HEIGHTS RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
MENDOTA HEIGHTS, MN 55120

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
05-09-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
CITY SUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
54821

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
License No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_921
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_922
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_923
QUALITY ASSURANCE/CONTROL

AutoCAD SHX Text_924
06-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_925
PROGRESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_926
06-30-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_927
06-16-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_928
PERMIT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text_929
DANIEL SJOBLOM, PE

AutoCAD SHX Text_930
07-01-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_931
WATER COMMENTS & CURB WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_932
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_933
1. PRIOR TO STARTING CONSTRUCTION, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE PRIOR TO STARTING CONSTRUCTION, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE TO MAKE SURE THAT ALL REQUIRED PERMITS AND APPROVALS HAVE BEEN OBTAINED. NO CONSTRUCTION OR FABRICATION SHALL BEGIN UNTIL THE CONTRACTOR HAS RECEIVED AND THOROUGHLY REVIEWED ALL PLANS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS APPROVED BY ALL OF THE PERMITTING AUTHORITIES.  2. CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING UTILITIES AND TOPOGRAPHIC FEATURES, SUCH AS EXISTING GUTTER GRADES AT THE PROPOSED DRIVEWAYS, PRIOR TO THE START OF SITE GRADING. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE ENGINEER OF ANY DISCREPANCIES OR VARIATIONS FROM THE PLANS.  3. ALL WORK TO BE PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THESE PLANS ALL WORK TO BE PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THESE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS AND THE REQUIREMENTS AND STANDARDS OF THE LOCAL GOVERNING AUTHORITY.  4. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR DEMOLITION & REMOVAL OF ALL CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR DEMOLITION & REMOVAL OF ALL EXISTING STRUCTURES WHICH INTERFERE WITH NEW WORK AS SHOWN.  5. ALL DIMENSIONS, GRADES, EXISTING AND PROPOSED INFORMATION  ALL DIMENSIONS, GRADES, EXISTING AND PROPOSED INFORMATION  SHOWN ON THE PLANS SHALL BE FIELD VERIFIED BY THE CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGER IF ANY DISCREPANCIES EXIST PRIOR TO PROCEEDING WITH CONSTRUCTION FOR NECESSARY PLAN OR GRADE CHANGES. NO EXTRA COMPENSATION SHALL BE PAID TO THE CONTRACTOR FOR WORK HAVING TO BE REDONE DUE TO INFORMATION SHOWN INCORRECTLY ON THESE PLANS IF SUCH NOTIFICATION HAS NOT BEEN GIVEN.  6. DIMENSIONS SHOWN ARE TO FACE OF CURB, CENTER OF DIMENSIONS SHOWN ARE TO FACE OF CURB, CENTER OF STRUCTURE, EDGE OF SIDEWALK OR EXTERIOR OF BUILDING.  7. ALL CONCRETE SIDEWALK ADJACENT TO BUILDING SHALL BE ALL CONCRETE SIDEWALK ADJACENT TO BUILDING SHALL BE SEPARATED BY A 1/2" EXPANSION JOINT.  8. PROTECT EXISTING CONCRETE SIDEWALKS DURING ALL PHASES OF PROTECT EXISTING CONCRETE SIDEWALKS DURING ALL PHASES OF CONSTRUCTION. CONTRACTOR TO REPLACE ANY CRACKED OR BROKEN PANELS CAUSED BY SITE CONSTRUCTION.  9. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE REMOVAL & DISPOSAL OF CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE REMOVAL & DISPOSAL OF THE EXISTING BITUMINOUS. BITUMINOUS SHALL BE SAW CUT OR JACK HAMMERED FOR STRAIGHT EDGES. TACK SHALL BE USED ON BITUMINOUS EDGE PRIOR TO PATCHING. MATCH EXISTING GRADES.  10. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT ADJOINING PROPERTIES & STRUCTURES CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT ADJOINING PROPERTIES & STRUCTURES FROM HAZARDS ASSOCIATED WITH HIS CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES & SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL DAMAGES TO PROPERTIES & STRUCTURES THAT OCCUR AS A RESULT OF THESE ACTIVITIES.  11. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT IMPEDE EXISTING TRAFFIC CIRCULATION TO CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT IMPEDE EXISTING TRAFFIC CIRCULATION TO ADJACENT BUSINESSES. PROVIDE TRAFFIC CONTROL DURING CONSTRUCTION PER MNDOT STANDARDS. 12. CONTRACTOR SHALL PERFORM SWEEPING ON PRIVATE PARKING CONTRACTOR SHALL PERFORM SWEEPING ON PRIVATE PARKING AREAS AND PUBLIC STREETS AT LEAST ONCE A WEEK, ONCE A DAY IF NEEDED.  13. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE HELD FULLY RESPONSIBLE TO PREVENT AND CONTRACTOR SHALL BE HELD FULLY RESPONSIBLE TO PREVENT AND ELIMINATE ANY DUST NUISANCE OCCASIONED BY AND DURING CONSTRUCTION, UNTIL THE PROJECT HAS BEEN COMPLETED AND HANDED OVER. 14. REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS FOR CONCRETE STOOPS REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS FOR CONCRETE STOOPS ADJACENT TO PROPOSED BUILDING.   15. CONTINUOUS CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER WHICH CHANGES TYPE CONTINUOUS CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER WHICH CHANGES TYPE SHALL HAVE A FIVE FOOT TRANSITION.  16. ALL CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER ADJACENT TO CONCRETE WALK ALL CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER ADJACENT TO CONCRETE WALK SHALL BE SEPARATED BY A 1/2 INCH EXPANSION JOINT.  17. PARKING LOT STRIPING SHALL BE 4 INCH WHITE.  PARKING LOT STRIPING SHALL BE 4 INCH WHITE.  18. ALL WORK WITHIN THE R.O.W. STALL COMPLY WITH THE CITY OF ALL WORK WITHIN THE R.O.W. STALL COMPLY WITH THE CITY OF MENDOTA HEIGHTS ENGINEERING DESIGN STANDARDS.  19. ALL CURB AND GUTTER TO BE CONCRETE B612 CURB UNLESS ALL CURB AND GUTTER TO BE CONCRETE B612 CURB UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. 20. CONCRETE APRONS TO BE INSTALLED AT ACCESS DRIVES WHERE CONCRETE APRONS TO BE INSTALLED AT ACCESS DRIVES WHERE SHOWN ONTO PUBLIC STREETS PER CITY STANDARDS.  

AutoCAD SHX Text_934
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_935
EXISTING ZONING       =  I- INDUSTRIAL       =  I- INDUSTRIAL 

AutoCAD SHX Text_936
EXISTING PARCEL AREA:	440,986 SQ FT		10.12 AC440,986 SQ FT		10.12 AC10.12 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text_937
LIGHT DUTY BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_938
HEAVY DUTY BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_939
BUILDING SETBACKS FRONT    = 40 FEET   = 40 FEET   BACK   = 50 FEET = 50 FEET SIDE      = 30 FEET = 30 FEET 

AutoCAD SHX Text_940
PARKING SETBACKS FRONT  = 20 FEET   = 20 FEET   BACK/SIDE    = 10 FEET CORNER LOTS: EASH SIDE ABUTTING PUBLIC STREET TO BE TREATEDAS FRONT

AutoCAD SHX Text_941
MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT = 45' = 45'

AutoCAD SHX Text_942
PROPOSED POLE MOUNTED LIGHT FIXTURE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_943
PROPOSED HYDRANT OR RELOCATED HYDRANT 

AutoCAD SHX Text_944
EXISTING CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_945
B612 CURB & GUTTER (EXCEPT IN ROW)

AutoCAD SHX Text_946
OUTFALL CURB AND GUTTER 

AutoCAD SHX Text_947
PARKING:   

AutoCAD SHX Text_948
OFFICE: (1/200 S.F.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_949
WAREHOUSE: (1/2000 S.F.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_950
TOTAL PARKING PROVIDED:

AutoCAD SHX Text_951
183 STALLS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_952
IMPERVIOUS COVERAGE:

AutoCAD SHX Text_953
TOTAL PARKING REQUIRED:

AutoCAD SHX Text_954
20,000 S.F. / 200 =  100 STALLS REQ.

AutoCAD SHX Text_955
154,288 S.F. / 2000 =	77 STALLS REQ.77 STALLS REQ.

AutoCAD SHX Text_956
177 STALLS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_957
TOTAL SITE AREA: 

AutoCAD SHX Text_958
PROPOSED PERVIOUS AREA:

AutoCAD SHX Text_959
PROPOSED IMPERVIOUS AREA:

AutoCAD SHX Text_960
440,986 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text_961
 122,586 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text_962
 318,400 S.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text_963
(72% IMP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_964
CONSTRUCTION LIMITS



85
4 85
6

85
8

86
0

86
2 86
4

86
6

86
8

86
6

86
8

880878

876
87

4

872870

86
886
6

86
4

862

86085
8

856854

852

848

850
852
854

856 858

860

848

850
852
854

856
858

860

862
86

4

864

862

86
2

862

85
2

86
0

850

850

87
0

87
0

872

874

876

87
8

88
0

88
2

88
4

88
6

89
0

89
2

87
4

87
6

87
8

88
0

88
2

88
4

868

864

862
860

86
6

86
6

866

N89°52'24"E 881.26

N
0°

11
'5

3"
W

 5
00

.0
3

N89°52'24"E 888.46

N
0°

15
'1

6"
W

 4
23

.9
4

R=434.70
L=76.50

Δ=10°04'59"
C.Brg=N5°17'45"W

C=76.40

S
TO

R
M

W
A

TE
R

 P
O

N
D

PROPOSED BUILDING
623' x 280'

174,288  S.F.

85
0

85
2

85
2

85
2

85
2

85
0

84
8

84
5

856
854

852
850

848
846

845

84
4

84
6

83
8

844

838

xB
E

R
M

:8
52

.4

C-4.0

C
O

B
A

LT
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 C
E

N
TE

R

P
E

R
M

IT
 S

E
T

G
R

A
D

IN
G

 P
LA

N

733 Marquette Avenue

Minneapolis, MN 55402
612.758.3080

www.alliant-inc.com

Suite 700

LEGEND:

GRADING NOTES:

EROSION CONTROL SCHEDULE:

EROSION MAINTENANCE: 

Page 55 of 107

AutoCAD SHX Text_965
PROTECT EXISTING FIBER OPTIC LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_966
PROTECT EXISTING FIBER OPTIC LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_967
PROTECT EXISTING FIBER OPTIC LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_968
DD

AutoCAD SHX Text_969
DD

AutoCAD SHX Text_970
2.2%

AutoCAD SHX Text_971
2.5%

AutoCAD SHX Text_972
5.2%

AutoCAD SHX Text_973
6.0%

AutoCAD SHX Text_974
DD

AutoCAD SHX Text_975
DD

AutoCAD SHX Text_976
PROPOSED FFE 868.0 (EXISTING FFE 866.3)

AutoCAD SHX Text_977
NWL:843.5 HWL:852.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_978
845

AutoCAD SHX Text_979
852

AutoCAD SHX Text_980
DD

AutoCAD SHX Text_981
DD

AutoCAD SHX Text_982
DD

AutoCAD SHX Text_983
DD

AutoCAD SHX Text_984
866

AutoCAD SHX Text_985
868

AutoCAD SHX Text_986
870

AutoCAD SHX Text_987
872

AutoCAD SHX Text_988
874

AutoCAD SHX Text_989
876

AutoCAD SHX Text_990
878

AutoCAD SHX Text_991
870

AutoCAD SHX Text_992
868

AutoCAD SHX Text_993
866

AutoCAD SHX Text_994
864

AutoCAD SHX Text_995
866

AutoCAD SHX Text_996
862

AutoCAD SHX Text_997
864

AutoCAD SHX Text_998
862

AutoCAD SHX Text_999
860

AutoCAD SHX Text_1000
858

AutoCAD SHX Text_1001
856

AutoCAD SHX Text_1002
854

AutoCAD SHX Text_1003
860

AutoCAD SHX Text_1004
862

AutoCAD SHX Text_1005
864

AutoCAD SHX Text_1006
858

AutoCAD SHX Text_1007
860

AutoCAD SHX Text_1008
862

AutoCAD SHX Text_1009
864

AutoCAD SHX Text_1010
866

AutoCAD SHX Text_1011
862

AutoCAD SHX Text_1012
866

AutoCAD SHX Text_1013
2.2%

AutoCAD SHX Text_1014
1.7%

AutoCAD SHX Text_1015
1.5%

AutoCAD SHX Text_1016
1.7%

AutoCAD SHX Text_1017
2.0%

AutoCAD SHX Text_1018
1.9%

AutoCAD SHX Text_1019
2.0%

AutoCAD SHX Text_1020
2.4%

AutoCAD SHX Text_1021
1.9%

AutoCAD SHX Text_1022
864

AutoCAD SHX Text_1023
DD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1024
872

AutoCAD SHX Text_1025
870

AutoCAD SHX Text_1026
870

AutoCAD SHX Text_1027
DD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1028
8%

AutoCAD SHX Text_1029
10%

AutoCAD SHX Text_1030
5-6" STEPS, 12" TREADS WITH RAILINGS BOTH SIDES

AutoCAD SHX Text_1031
10%

AutoCAD SHX Text_1032
4.8%

AutoCAD SHX Text_1033
4' CONCRETE SPILLWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1034
4' CONCRETE SPILLWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1035
866

AutoCAD SHX Text_1036
864

AutoCAD SHX Text_1037
866

AutoCAD SHX Text_1038
866

AutoCAD SHX Text_1039
871.00 870.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_1040
5%

AutoCAD SHX Text_1041
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1042
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1043
DESIGNED:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1044
I hereby certify that this plan,

AutoCAD SHX Text_1045
specification, or report was

AutoCAD SHX Text_1046
prepared by me or under my

AutoCAD SHX Text_1047
direct supervision and that I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1048
am a duly Licensed

AutoCAD SHX Text_1049
under

AutoCAD SHX Text_1050
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1051
SCALE      IN      FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1052
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1053
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1054
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1055
the laws of the State of 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1056
PROJECT TEAM DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1057
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1058
MINNESOTA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1059
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1060
MK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1061
TLM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1062
4000651

AutoCAD SHX Text_1063
1315 MENDOTA HEIGHTS RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1064
MENDOTA HEIGHTS, MN 55120

AutoCAD SHX Text_1065
05-09-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1066
CITY SUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1067
54821

AutoCAD SHX Text_1068
License No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1069
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_1070
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1071
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1072
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1073
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1074
QUALITY ASSURANCE/CONTROL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1075
06-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1076
PROGRESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1077
06-30-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1078
06-16-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1079
PERMIT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1080
DANIEL SJOBLOM, PE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1081
07-01-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1082
WATER COMMENTS & CURB WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1083
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1084
DIRECTION OF DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1085
PROPOSED CATCH BASINS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1086
PROPOSED CONTOUR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1087
964

AutoCAD SHX Text_1088
TOP OF WALL ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_1089
BOTTOM OF WALL ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_1090
TW 964.5 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1091
BW 961.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1092
EMERGENCY OVERFLOW ROUTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1093
PROPOSED STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1094
2.00%

AutoCAD SHX Text_1095
RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1096
PROPOSED SPOT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_1097
PROPOSED EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1098
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1099
PROPOSED LIMITS OF

AutoCAD SHX Text_1100
DD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1101
DRAINAGE DIVIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1102
964.5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1103
964.0 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1104
EXISTING CONTOUR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1105
964

AutoCAD SHX Text_1106
PROPOSED LUMINARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text_1107
EXISTING CATCH BASINS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1108
EXISTING STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1109
CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_1110
1. ALL PAVEMENTS SHALL SLOPE AWAY FROM PROPOSED BUILDING AT MINIMUM GRADE OF ALL PAVEMENTS SHALL SLOPE AWAY FROM PROPOSED BUILDING AT MINIMUM GRADE OF 2.0%. 2. ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACE NOT TO EXCEED 2.0% IN ANY DIRECTION. ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACE NOT TO EXCEED 2.0% IN ANY DIRECTION. 3. ALL CURB AND GUTTER AT ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACES TO BE DEPRESSED WITH 5' ALL CURB AND GUTTER AT ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACES TO BE DEPRESSED WITH 5' TAPER. 4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL KEEP THE ADJACENT ROADWAYS FREE OF DEBRIS AND PREVENT THE CONTRACTOR SHALL KEEP THE ADJACENT ROADWAYS FREE OF DEBRIS AND PREVENT THE OFF-SITE TRACKING OF SOIL IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE CITY/COUNTY. 5. NOTIFY GOPHER STATE ONE CALL 48 HOURS PRIOR TO START OF CONSTRUCTION. NOTIFY GOPHER STATE ONE CALL 48 HOURS PRIOR TO START OF CONSTRUCTION. 6. ALL IMPROVEMENTS TO CONFORM WITH CITY AND COUNTY CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS ALL IMPROVEMENTS TO CONFORM WITH CITY AND COUNTY CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS SPECIFICATION, LATEST EDITION. 7. STABILIZED VEHICLE EXITS SHALL BE PROVIDED AT ALL CONSTRUCTION ACCESS POINTS. STABILIZED VEHICLE EXITS SHALL BE PROVIDED AT ALL CONSTRUCTION ACCESS POINTS. 8. CONTRACTOR TO KEEP A COPY OF THE FINAL DRAINAGE REPORT ON SITE AT ALL TIMES. CONTRACTOR TO KEEP A COPY OF THE FINAL DRAINAGE REPORT ON SITE AT ALL TIMES. 9. CONTRACTOR TO SEED ALL ROUGH GRADED AREAS & FUTURE PAD SITES W/ APPROVED CONTRACTOR TO SEED ALL ROUGH GRADED AREAS & FUTURE PAD SITES W/ APPROVED DOT TEMPORARY SEED MIX. 10. SURVEYOR TO VERIFY BENCHMARK ELEVATION PRIOR TO START OF CONSTRUCTION. SURVEYOR TO VERIFY BENCHMARK ELEVATION PRIOR TO START OF CONSTRUCTION. 11. REFER TO GEOTECHNICAL REPORT AND PROJECT MANUAL, FOR SOIL CORRECTION REFER TO GEOTECHNICAL REPORT AND PROJECT MANUAL, FOR SOIL CORRECTION REQUIREMENTS AND TESTING REQUIREMENTS. 12. STRIP TOPSOIL PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION. REUSE STOCKPILE ON SITE. STRIP TOPSOIL PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION. REUSE STOCKPILE ON SITE. 13. REFER TO SITE DESIGN CRITERIA SECTION OF PROJECT MANUAL FOR ADDITIONAL REFER TO SITE DESIGN CRITERIA SECTION OF PROJECT MANUAL FOR ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS. 14. CONTRACTOR TO LOOSEN SUBSOIL WITHIN ALL PROPOSED INFILTRATION AREAS TO A DEPTH CONTRACTOR TO LOOSEN SUBSOIL WITHIN ALL PROPOSED INFILTRATION AREAS TO A DEPTH OF 24 INCHES OR GREATER, TO A MAXIMUM COMPACTION OF 85% STANDARD PROCTOR DENSITY. 15. PRIOR TO STARTING CONSTRUCTION, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE TO MAKE PRIOR TO STARTING CONSTRUCTION, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE TO MAKE SURE THAT ALL REQUIRED PERMITS AND APPROVALS HAVE BEEN OBTAINED.  NO CONSTRUCTION OR FABRICATION SHALL BEGIN UNTIL THE CONTRACTOR HAS RECEIVED AND THOROUGHLY REVIEWED ALL PLANS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS APPROVED BY ALL OF THE PERMITTING AUTHORITIES.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1111
1. PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION OR DEMOLITION, SILT FENCE AND FILTERS SHALL BE PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION OR DEMOLITION, SILT FENCE AND FILTERS SHALL BE INSTALLED AS SHOWN TO INTERCEPT RUNOFF. 2. IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING GRADING OF SIDE SLOPES, WOOD FIBER BLANKET (OR OTHER IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING GRADING OF SIDE SLOPES, WOOD FIBER BLANKET (OR OTHER SLOPE STABILIZING METHOD APPROVED BY ENGINEER) SHALL BE APPLIED OVER APPROVED SEED MIXTURE AND A MINIMUM OF 4" TOPSOIL. 3. ALL EROSION CONTROL INSTALLATIONS SHALL REMAIN IN PLACE AND BE MAINTAINED IN ALL EROSION CONTROL INSTALLATIONS SHALL REMAIN IN PLACE AND BE MAINTAINED IN GOOD CONDITION BY THE CONTRACTOR UNTIL THE SITE HAS BEEN RE-VEGETATED.  CONTRACTOR MAY REMOVE NECESSARY SILT FENCING/FILTERS TO CONSTRUCT ROADWAYS, WHILE MAINTAINING ADEQUATE EROSION CONTROL IN ADJACENT AREA. 4. SUFFICIENT TOPSOIL SHALL BE STOCKPILED TO ALLOW FOR THE REPLACEMENT OF 4" OF SUFFICIENT TOPSOIL SHALL BE STOCKPILED TO ALLOW FOR THE REPLACEMENT OF 4" OF TOPSOIL FOR DISTURBED AREAS TO BE RE-VEGETATED. 5. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SCHEDULE SITE GRADING, UTILITY INSTALLATION AND ROADWAY THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SCHEDULE SITE GRADING, UTILITY INSTALLATION AND ROADWAY CONSTRUCTION SO THAT THE GENERAL SITE CAN BE MULCHED AND RE-SEEDED SOON AFTER DISTURBANCE. AREAS THAT WILL NOT BE SUBJECT TO CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC SHALL BE SEEDED AND MULCHED OR SODDED WITHIN THREE (3) DAYS OF BEING DISTURBED. 6. THE GRASSES UTILIZED IN THE SEED AND SOD AREAS SHALL BE OF A SHADE TOLERANT THE GRASSES UTILIZED IN THE SEED AND SOD AREAS SHALL BE OF A SHADE TOLERANT TYPE APPROVED BY THE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION. 7. STREET SWEEPING REQUIRED AS DIRECTED BY CITY OF MENDOTA HEIGHTS.STREET SWEEPING REQUIRED AS DIRECTED BY CITY OF MENDOTA HEIGHTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1112
1. INSPECT SILT FENCES IMMEDIATELY AFTER EACH RAINFALL AND AT LEAST DAILY DURING INSPECT SILT FENCES IMMEDIATELY AFTER EACH RAINFALL AND AT LEAST DAILY DURING PROLONGED RAINFALL.  IMMEDIATELY REPAIR FAILED OR FAILING SILT FENCE. 2. REPLACEMENT - FABRIC SHALL BE REPLACED PROMPTLY WHEN IT DECOMPOSES OR REPLACEMENT - FABRIC SHALL BE REPLACED PROMPTLY WHEN IT DECOMPOSES OR BECOMES INEFFECTIVE BEFORE THE BARRIER IS NO LONGER NECESSARY. 3. SEDIMENT REMOVAL - SEDIMENT DEPOSITS SHOULD BE REMOVED AFTER EACH STORM SEDIMENT REMOVAL - SEDIMENT DEPOSITS SHOULD BE REMOVED AFTER EACH STORM EVENT.  THEY MUST BE REMOVED WHEN DEPOSITS REACH APPROXIMATELY ONE-HALF THE       HEIGHT OF THE BARRIER.  ANY SEDIMENT REMAINING IN PLACE AFTER THE SILT FENCE OR FILTER FABRIC IS NO LONGER REQUIRED SHALL BE DRESSED TO CONFORM WITH EXISTING GRADE, PREPARED, AND SEEDED WITH THE APPROPRIATE SEED MIX, AS DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER. 4. REMOVAL OF SILT FENCE - SILT FENCES SHALL BE REMOVED WHEN THEY HAVE SERVED REMOVAL OF SILT FENCE - SILT FENCES SHALL BE REMOVED WHEN THEY HAVE SERVED THEIR USEFUL PURPOSE, BUT NOT BEFORE THE UPWARD SLOPING AREA HAS BEEN PERMANENTLY STABILIZED.  IF THE UPWARD SLOPING AREA IS TO BE EXPOSED LONGER THAN SIX (6) MONTHS, THAT AREA SHALL BE COVERED WITH TEMPORARY VEGETATION WHEN FIRST EXPOSED.



85
4 85
6

85
8

86
0

86
2 86
4

86
6

86
8

86
6

86
8

882880878

876
87

4

872870

86
886
6

86
4

862

86085
8

856854

852

848

850
852
854

856 858

860

848

850
852
854

856
858

860

862

86
4

864

862

86
2

862

85
2

86
0

850

850

87
0

87
0

872

874

876

87
8

88
0

88
2

88
4

88
6

89
0

89
2

87
4

87
6

87
8

88
0

88
2

88
4

868

864

862
860

86
6

86
6

866

S
TO

R
M

W
A

TE
R

 P
O

N
D

PROPOSED BUILDING
623' x 280'

174,288  S.F.

85
0

85
2

85
2

85
2

85
2

85
0

84
8

84
5

856
854

852
850

848
846

845

84
4

84
6

83
8

844

838

xB
E

R
M

:8
52

.4

C-4.1

C
O

B
A

LT
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 C
E

N
TE

R

P
E

R
M

IT
 S

E
T

E
R

O
S

IO
N

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

P
LA

N

733 Marquette Avenue

Minneapolis, MN 55402
612.758.3080

www.alliant-inc.com

Suite 700

LEGEND:

Page 56 of 107

AutoCAD SHX Text_1113
PROTECT EXISTING FIBER OPTIC LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1114
PROTECT EXISTING FIBER OPTIC LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1115
PROTECT EXISTING FIBER OPTIC LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1116
PROPOSED FFE 868.0 (EXISTING FFE 866.3)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1117
NWL:843.5 HWL:852.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1118
845

AutoCAD SHX Text_1119
852

AutoCAD SHX Text_1120
866

AutoCAD SHX Text_1121
868

AutoCAD SHX Text_1122
870

AutoCAD SHX Text_1123
872

AutoCAD SHX Text_1124
874

AutoCAD SHX Text_1125
876

AutoCAD SHX Text_1126
878

AutoCAD SHX Text_1127
870

AutoCAD SHX Text_1128
868

AutoCAD SHX Text_1129
866

AutoCAD SHX Text_1130
864

AutoCAD SHX Text_1131
866

AutoCAD SHX Text_1132
862

AutoCAD SHX Text_1133
864

AutoCAD SHX Text_1134
862

AutoCAD SHX Text_1135
860

AutoCAD SHX Text_1136
858

AutoCAD SHX Text_1137
856

AutoCAD SHX Text_1138
854

AutoCAD SHX Text_1139
860

AutoCAD SHX Text_1140
862

AutoCAD SHX Text_1141
864

AutoCAD SHX Text_1142
858

AutoCAD SHX Text_1143
860

AutoCAD SHX Text_1144
862

AutoCAD SHX Text_1145
864

AutoCAD SHX Text_1146
866

AutoCAD SHX Text_1147
862

AutoCAD SHX Text_1148
866

AutoCAD SHX Text_1149
864

AutoCAD SHX Text_1150
872

AutoCAD SHX Text_1151
870

AutoCAD SHX Text_1152
870

AutoCAD SHX Text_1153
866

AutoCAD SHX Text_1154
864

AutoCAD SHX Text_1155
866

AutoCAD SHX Text_1156
866

AutoCAD SHX Text_1157
ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1158
ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1159
INLET PROTECTION, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1160
INLET PROTECTION, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1161
SILT FENCE, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1162
INLET PROTECTION, TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1163
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1164
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1165
DESIGNED:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1166
I hereby certify that this plan,

AutoCAD SHX Text_1167
specification, or report was

AutoCAD SHX Text_1168
prepared by me or under my

AutoCAD SHX Text_1169
direct supervision and that I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1170
am a duly Licensed

AutoCAD SHX Text_1171
under

AutoCAD SHX Text_1172
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1173
SCALE      IN      FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1174
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1175
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1176
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1177
the laws of the State of 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1178
PROJECT TEAM DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1179
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1180
MINNESOTA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1181
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1182
MK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1183
TLM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1184
4000651

AutoCAD SHX Text_1185
1315 MENDOTA HEIGHTS RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1186
MENDOTA HEIGHTS, MN 55120

AutoCAD SHX Text_1187
05-09-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1188
CITY SUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1189
54821

AutoCAD SHX Text_1190
License No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1191
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_1192
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1193
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1194
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1195
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1196
QUALITY ASSURANCE/CONTROL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1197
06-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1198
PROGRESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1199
06-30-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1200
06-16-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1201
PERMIT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1202
DANIEL SJOBLOM, PE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1203
07-01-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1204
WATER COMMENTS & CURB WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1205
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1206
ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1207
INLET PROTECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_1208
PROPOSED SILT FENCE (PRE-GRADING)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1209
DIRECTION OF DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1210
PROPOSED CATCH BASINS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1211
PROPOSED CONTOUR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1212
EXISTING CONTOUR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1213
985

AutoCAD SHX Text_1214
985

AutoCAD SHX Text_1215
PROPOSED STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1216
PROPOSED EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1217
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1218
LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1219
RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1220
SETBACK LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1221
MASS GRADING CONTOUR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1222
985



C-4.2

C
O

B
A

LT
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 C
E

N
TE

R

P
E

R
M

IT
 S

E
T

S
W

P
P

P
 N

O
TE

S
 A

N
D

 D
E

TA
IL

S

733 Marquette Avenue

Minneapolis, MN 55402
612.758.3080

www.alliant-inc.com

Suite 700

EROSION CONTROL SCHEDULE:
EROSION CONTROL GENERAL NOTES:

”

WINTER STABLIZATION:

DEWATERING:

ACTIVE SWPPP LEGEND

CONTRACTOR:

OWNER/DEVELOPER:
EROSION CONTROL RESPONSIBLE PARTIES:

SWPPP INSPECTION:

ENGINEER:

USGS TOPOGRAPHIC MAP

WEB SOIL SURVEY MAP

SEDIMENT CONTROL PRACTICES

‐

‐

‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

INSPECTIONS AND MAINTENANCE        

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐
‐

POLLUTION PREVENTION

‐

FINAL STABLIZATION
‐

MANAGEMENT MEASURE           

CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCE

INFILTRATION BMP NOTES:

WEB SOIL SURVEY LEGEND

IMPAIRED WATER
SPECIAL REQUIREMENT:

Page 57 of 107

AutoCAD SHX Text_1223
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1224
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1225
DESIGNED:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1226
I hereby certify that this plan,

AutoCAD SHX Text_1227
specification, or report was

AutoCAD SHX Text_1228
prepared by me or under my

AutoCAD SHX Text_1229
direct supervision and that I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1230
am a duly Licensed

AutoCAD SHX Text_1231
under

AutoCAD SHX Text_1232
the laws of the State of 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1233
PROJECT TEAM DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1234
MINNESOTA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1235
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1236
MK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1237
TLM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1238
4000651

AutoCAD SHX Text_1239
1315 MENDOTA HEIGHTS RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1240
MENDOTA HEIGHTS, MN 55120

AutoCAD SHX Text_1241
05-09-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1242
CITY SUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1243
54821

AutoCAD SHX Text_1244
License No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1245
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_1246
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1247
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1248
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1249
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1250
QUALITY ASSURANCE/CONTROL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1251
06-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1252
PROGRESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1253
06-30-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1254
06-16-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1255
PERMIT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1256
DANIEL SJOBLOM, PE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1257
07-01-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1258
WATER COMMENTS & CURB WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1259
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1260
1. PRIOR TO ANY CONSTRUCTION OR DEMOLITION, SILT FENCE AND FILTERS SHALL BE INSTALLED AS SHOWN TO INTERCEPT RUNOFF.    2. CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL EROSION CONTROL DEVICES AS INDICATED ON THIS EROSION CONTROL PLAN AND ANY ADDITIONAL REQUIRED BASED ON MEANS, METHODS AND SEQUENCES OF CONSTRUCTION. 3. ALL EROSION CONTROL INSTALLATIONS SHALL REMAIN IN PLACE AND BE MAINTAINED IN GOOD CONDITION BY THE CONTRACTOR UNTIL THE SITE HAS BEEN RE-VEGETATED. CONTRACTOR MAY REMOVE NECESSARY SILT FENCING/FILTERS TO CONSTRUCT ROADWAYS, WHILE MAINTAINING ADEQUATE EROSION CONTROL IN ADJACENT AREA.  4. SUFFICIENT TOPSOIL SHALL BE STOCKPILED TO ALLOW FOR THE REPLACEMENT OF 6" OF TOPSOIL FOR DISTURBED AREAS TO BE RE-VEGETATED.  5. SOIL COMPACTION SHALL BE MINIMIZED IN PROPOSED PERVIOUS AREAS ONSITE AND AVOID ALTOGETHER IN PROPOSED INFILTRATION BASINS. SOIL SURFACES IN PROPOSED PERVIOUS AREAS COMPACTED DURING CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE DECOMPACTED THROUGH SOIL AMENDMENT OR DEEP RIPPING TO AN 18” DEPTH.     DEPTH.    6. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SCHEDULE SITE GRADING, UTILITY INSTALLATION AND PAVEMENT CONSTRUCTION SO THAT THE GENERAL SITE CAN BE MULCHED AND RE-SEEDED SOON AFTER DISTURBANCE. AREAS THAT WILL NOT BE SUBJECT TO CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC SHALL BE SEEDED (MN STATE SEED MIX 22-112 @ 40 LBS/AC AND MULCHED OR SODDED WITHIN SEVEN (7) DAYS OF BEING DISTURBED. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1261
1. NO LAND DISTURBING ACTIVITY SHALL OCCUR UNTIL A GRADING PERMIT HAS BEEN ISSUED FROM THE MENDOTA NO LAND DISTURBING ACTIVITY SHALL OCCUR UNTIL A GRADING PERMIT HAS BEEN ISSUED FROM THE MENDOTA MENDOTA HEIGHTS AND THE LOWER MISSISSIPPI RIVER WMO WATERSHED DISTRICT.    AND THE LOWER MISSISSIPPI RIVER WMO WATERSHED DISTRICT.   LOWER MISSISSIPPI RIVER WMO WATERSHED DISTRICT.    WATERSHED DISTRICT.   2. BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (BMP'S) REFER TO EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PRACTICES DEFINED BY BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES (BMP'S) REFER TO EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PRACTICES DEFINED BY THE MPCA PROTECTING WATER QUALITY IN URBAN AREAS AND THE MINNESOTA CONSTRUCTION SITE EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL PLANNING HANDBOOK.   3. ALL BMP'S SELECTED SHALL BE APPROPRIATE FOR THE TIME OF YEAR, SITE CONDITIONS, AND ESTIMATED ALL BMP'S SELECTED SHALL BE APPROPRIATE FOR THE TIME OF YEAR, SITE CONDITIONS, AND ESTIMATED DURATION OF USE.   4. ALL WORK AND MATERIALS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED ACCORDING TO THE APPROVED PLANS. ANY DEVIATION FROM ALL WORK AND MATERIALS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED ACCORDING TO THE APPROVED PLANS. ANY DEVIATION FROM THE APPROVED PLANS SHALL REQUIRE WRITTEN APPROVAL FROM THE ENGINEER OF RECORD.  5. A COPY OF THESE PLANS MUST BE ON THE JOB SITE WHENEVER CONSTRUCTION IS IN PROGRESS.  A COPY OF THESE PLANS MUST BE ON THE JOB SITE WHENEVER CONSTRUCTION IS IN PROGRESS.  6. THE BOUNDARIES OF THE LAND DISTURBANCE LIMITS SHOWN ON THE PLANS SHALL BE CLEARLY FLAGGED IN THE BOUNDARIES OF THE LAND DISTURBANCE LIMITS SHOWN ON THE PLANS SHALL BE CLEARLY FLAGGED IN THE FIELD PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. NO DISTURBANCE ALLOWED BEYOND THE DISTURBED LIMITS.  7. WHEREVER POSSIBLE, PRESERVE THE EXISTING TREES, GRASS, AND OTHER VEGETATIVE COVER TO HELP FILTER WHEREVER POSSIBLE, PRESERVE THE EXISTING TREES, GRASS, AND OTHER VEGETATIVE COVER TO HELP FILTER RUNOFF.  8. ESTABLISH A PERMANENT VEGETATIVE COVER ON ALL EXPOSED SOILS WHERE LAND IS COMING OUT OF ESTABLISH A PERMANENT VEGETATIVE COVER ON ALL EXPOSED SOILS WHERE LAND IS COMING OUT OF AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTION. PLANT AS SOON AS POSSIBLE TO ESTABLISH DENSE GRASS FILTER PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION AND TO MINIMIZE WEED GROWTH.  9. ALL TREES NOT LISTED FOR REMOVAL SHALL BE PROTECTED. DO NOT OPERATE EQUIPMENT WITHIN THE ALL TREES NOT LISTED FOR REMOVAL SHALL BE PROTECTED. DO NOT OPERATE EQUIPMENT WITHIN THE DRIPLINE, ROOT ZONES OR WITHIN TREE PROTECTION FENCE AREAS.  10. ALL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL FACILITIES (BMP'S) SHALL BE INSTALLED AND IN OPERATION PRIOR TO ALL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL FACILITIES (BMP'S) SHALL BE INSTALLED AND IN OPERATION PRIOR TO LAND DISTURBANCE ACTIVITIES AND THEY SHALL BE SATISFACTORILY MAINTAINED UNTIL CONSTRUCTION IS COMPLETED AND THE POTENTIAL FOR EROSION HAS PASSED.  11. SILT FENCE IS REQUIRED AT DOWN GRADIENT PERIMETER OF DISTURBED AREAS AND STOCKPILES.  PROTECT SILT FENCE IS REQUIRED AT DOWN GRADIENT PERIMETER OF DISTURBED AREAS AND STOCKPILES.  PROTECT ADJACENT WATERBODIES AND ADJACENT PROPERTIES FROM SEDIMENTATION AND STORM WATER RUNOFF.  12. THE BMP'S SHOWN ON THE PLANS ARE THE MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS FOR THE ANTICIPATED SITE CONDITIONS.  THE BMP'S SHOWN ON THE PLANS ARE THE MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS FOR THE ANTICIPATED SITE CONDITIONS.  AS CONSTRUCTION PROGRESSES AND UNEXPECTED OR SEASONAL CONDITIONS DICTATE, THE PERMITTEE/CONTRACTOR SHALL ANTICIPATE THAT MORE BMP'S WILL BE NECESSARY TO ENSURE EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL ON THE SITE. DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION, IT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE PERMITTEE/CONTRACTOR TO ADDRESS ANY NEW CONDITIONS THAT MAY BE CREATED BY CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES AND/OR CLIMATIC EVENTS AND TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL BMP'S OVER AND ABOVE THE MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS SHOWN ON THE PLANS, AS MAY BE NEEDED TO PROVIDE EFFECTIVE PROTECTION OF WATER AND SOIL RESOURCES.  13. THE BMP'S SHALL BE INSPECTED DAILY BY THE PERMITTEE/CONTRACTOR AND MAINTAINED AS NECESSARY TO THE BMP'S SHALL BE INSPECTED DAILY BY THE PERMITTEE/CONTRACTOR AND MAINTAINED AS NECESSARY TO ENSURE THEIR CONTINUED FUNCTIONING. SILT FENCES SHALL BE CLEANED OR REPLACED AT SEDIMENT BUILDUP OF 1/3 OF THE FENCE HEIGHT.  14. LAND DISTURBING ACTIVITIES SHALL OCCUR IN INCREMENTS OF WORKABLE SIZE SUCH THAT ADEQUATE BMP LAND DISTURBING ACTIVITIES SHALL OCCUR IN INCREMENTS OF WORKABLE SIZE SUCH THAT ADEQUATE BMP CONTROL CAN BE PROVIDED THROUGHOUT ALL PHASES OF CONSTRUCTION. THE SMALLEST PRACTICAL AREA SHALL BE EXPOSED OR OTHERWISE DISTURBED AT ANY ONE TIME.  15. OPERATE TRACK EQUIPMENT (DOZER) UP AND DOWN EXPOSED SOIL SLOPES ON FINAL PASS, LEAVING TRACK OPERATE TRACK EQUIPMENT (DOZER) UP AND DOWN EXPOSED SOIL SLOPES ON FINAL PASS, LEAVING TRACK GROOVES PERPENDICULAR TO THE SLOPE. DO NOT BACK-BLADE. LEAVE A SURFACE ROUGH TO MINIMIZE EROSION.   16. ALL AREAS DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE STABILIZED FROM EROSION WITHIN 7 DAYS OF SUBSTANTIAL ALL AREAS DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE STABILIZED FROM EROSION WITHIN 7 DAYS OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION OF GRADING IN THAT AREA. TEMPORARY SEED AND MULCH SHALL COVER ALL EXPOSED SOILS IF GRADING COMPLETION IS DELAYED LONGER THAN 7 DAYS. PERMANENT SEED AND MULCH OR SOD IS REQUIRED WITHIN 3 DAYS OF COMPLETION OF FINAL GRADING.  17. GENERAL TEMPORARY SEED SHALL BE MN STATE SEED MIX 22-112 @ 40 LBS. PER ACRE OR APPROVED GENERAL TEMPORARY SEED SHALL BE MN STATE SEED MIX 22-112 @ 40 LBS. PER ACRE OR APPROVED EQUAL.  PERMANENT SEED SHALL BE MN STATE SEED MIX 25-151 @ 120 LBS. PER ACRE OR APPROVED EQUAL.  (PLANTING DATES PER MNDOT SEED MIX MANUAL) MULCH SHALL BE MNDOT TYPE 1 (CLEAN OAT STRAW) @ 2 TONS PER ACRE AND DISK ANCHORED IN PLACE OR APPROVED EQUAL. FERTILIZER SHALL BE 10-10-10 NPK PER ACRE (UNLESS P RESTRICTIONS APPLY) AND INCORPORATED INTO THE SEED BED.  18. ALL TEMPORARY EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE PROPERLY DISPOSED OF WITHIN THIRTY ALL TEMPORARY EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE PROPERLY DISPOSED OF WITHIN THIRTY (30) DAYS AFTER FINAL SITE STABILIZATION IS ACHIEVED OR AFTER THE TEMPORARY MEASURES ARE NO LONGER NEEDED.  19. ALL CONSTRUCTION SITE WASTE SUCH AS DISCARDED BUILDING MATERIALS, CONCRETE TRUCK WASHOUT, ALL CONSTRUCTION SITE WASTE SUCH AS DISCARDED BUILDING MATERIALS, CONCRETE TRUCK WASHOUT, CHEMICALS, LITTER, AND SANITARY WASTE MUST BE PROPERLY MANAGED AND COMPLY WITH THE MPCA, MRNDOTA HEIGHTS AND LOWER MISSISSIPPI RIVER WMO WATERSHED DISTRICT RULES AND REQUIREMENTS.  AND LOWER MISSISSIPPI RIVER WMO WATERSHED DISTRICT RULES AND REQUIREMENTS. LOWER MISSISSIPPI RIVER WMO WATERSHED DISTRICT RULES AND REQUIREMENTS.  WATERSHED DISTRICT RULES AND REQUIREMENTS. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1262
GRADING CONTRACTOR REQUIREMENTS IN THE CASE WHERE THE ONSET OF WINTER DOES NOT ALLOW FOR COMPLETION OF MASS GRADING AND FINAL SOIL STABLIZATION IN THE FALL: 1. MASS GRADING ACTIVITIES SHALL BE PLANNED AND PHASED IN A MANNER TO AVOID ANY MASS GRADING ACTIVITIES SHALL BE PLANNED AND PHASED IN A MANNER TO AVOID ANY UNNECESSARY SOIL DISTURBANCE PRIOR TO WINTER SHUT DOWN. 2. ALL FINAL GRADED AREAS SHALL BE STABILIZED PERMANENTLY BY GRADING CONTRACTOR WITH ALL FINAL GRADED AREAS SHALL BE STABILIZED PERMANENTLY BY GRADING CONTRACTOR WITH SEEDING, MULCHING, BLANKET, ETC. IN ACCORDANCE WITH PLANS PRIOR TO CONTRACTOR LEAVING THE SITE AT WINTER SHUT DOWN. 3. THE GRADING CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO ENSURE THAT ALL TEMPORARY OR INCOMPLETE THE GRADING CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO ENSURE THAT ALL TEMPORARY OR INCOMPLETE GRADING AREAS INCLUDING ALL STOCKPILES ARE STABILIZED WITH TEMPORARY SEEDING (MN STATE SEED MIX 22-112 @ 40/AC, MULCH (MNDOT TYPE 1) BEFORE LEAVING THE SITE AT WINTER SHUT DOWN. 4. ALL SIGNIFICANT DRAINAGE SWALES (TEMPORARY OR PERMANENT) SHALL BE STABILIZED WITH ALL SIGNIFICANT DRAINAGE SWALES (TEMPORARY OR PERMANENT) SHALL BE STABILIZED WITH MNDOT CATEGORY 3 EROSION CONTROL BLANKET BY GRADING CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO LEAVING THE SITE AT WINTER SHUT DOWN.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1263
1. IF UTILITY INSTALLATION WORK ENCOUNTERS GROUNDWATER, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE A PLAN TO THE IF UTILITY INSTALLATION WORK ENCOUNTERS GROUNDWATER, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE A PLAN TO THE CITY AND PROJECT ENGINEER FOR REVIEW.  THE PLAN MUST BE SUBMITTED TO THE CITY FOR APPROVAL AT LEAST 10 DAYS PRIOR TO DISCHARGING INTO RECEIVING WATERS.  THE PLAN AT MINIMUM SHALL INCLUDING A DEWATERING SYSTEM, WATER ROUTING, STORAGE, AND DISCHARGE LOCATION. THE DEWATERING PLAN MUST ENSURE THAT DISCHARGE WATER IS FREE OF SEDIMENT AND TURBID WATER IN ACCORDANCE WITH STATE AND LOCAL PERMIT REQUIREMENTS.  2. IF ANY TEMPORARY DEWATERING IS REQUIRED ONSITE THE CONTRACTOR SHALL DISPOSE OF STORMWATER OR IF ANY TEMPORARY DEWATERING IS REQUIRED ONSITE THE CONTRACTOR SHALL DISPOSE OF STORMWATER OR GROUND WATER BY USE OF PUMPS AND HOSES TO ACCEPTABLE DISCHARGE POINTS APPROVED BY THE CITY AND PROJECT ENGINEER.   3. ANY ACCUMULATED SEDIMENT ALONG EXISTING CURB AND GUTTER THAT HAS COLLECTED AS A RESULT OF ANY ACCUMULATED SEDIMENT ALONG EXISTING CURB AND GUTTER THAT HAS COLLECTED AS A RESULT OF DISCHARGING DEWATERING HOSES SHALL BE IMMEDIATELY REMOVED AND PROPERLY DISPOSED OF AFTER EACH DISCHARGING EVENT.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1264
CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1265
APR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1266
MAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1267
JUN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1268
JUL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1269
AUG

AutoCAD SHX Text_1270
SEP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1271
OCT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1272
NOV

AutoCAD SHX Text_1273
DEC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1274
JAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1275
FEB

AutoCAD SHX Text_1276
MAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1277
APR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1278
MULCH BERM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1279
FIBER ROLLS / MULCH SOCKS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1280
SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1281
TEMPORARY MULCH COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1282
TEMPORARY HYDROMULCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1283
EROSION CONTROL BLANKET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1284
ROCK DRIVEWAY / ROCK PADS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1285
INLET PROTECTION DEVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text_1286
PAVEMENT (DRIVEWAY/ROADS)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1287
SOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1288
STOCKPILES

AutoCAD SHX Text_1289
NOTE: CONTRACTOR, GENERAL CONTRACTOR OR SWPPP INSPECTOR TO COMPLETE TABLE AS GRADING PROGRESSES

AutoCAD SHX Text_1290
1.  SILT FENCE (MnDOT 3886)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1291
2.  CURB LOG

AutoCAD SHX Text_1292
%%UINLET PROTECTION DEVICES

AutoCAD SHX Text_1293
1.  WIMCO (MnDOT TYPE A & C)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1294
2.  INFRASAFE STORM DRAIN/CULVERT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1295
%%UANTI-TRACKING CONTROL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1296
%%UTEMPORARY SEED MIX

AutoCAD SHX Text_1297
1.  MN STATE SEED MIX 21-112

AutoCAD SHX Text_1298
   (WINTER WHEAT COVER CROP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1299
%%UPERMANENT SEED MIX/STABILIZATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_1300
1.  MN STATE SEED MIX 25-151

AutoCAD SHX Text_1301
2.  SOD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1302
%%USTABILIZATION BMP'S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1303
3.  ROCK WEEPER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1304
2.  MN STATE SEED MIX 22-111

AutoCAD SHX Text_1305
%%UGRADING ACTIVITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1306
1.	CONCRETE WASHOUT IS DONE TRUCK BY CONCRETE WASHOUT IS DONE TRUCK BY TRUCK WITH A MOBILE WASHOUT SYSTEM PROVIDED AND COMPLETED BY THE CONCRETE CONTRACTOR.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1307
1.  2" CRUSHED CLEAR ROCK (LAND DEVELOPMENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1308
%%USEDIMENT BARRIERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1309
CLARK WICKLUND, PE ALLIANT ENGINEERING, INC. 733 MARQUETTE AVE S. SUITE 700 MINNEAPOLIS, MN 55402 CWICKLUND@ALLIANT-INC.COM PH 612-758-3080

AutoCAD SHX Text_1310
1. THE CONTRACTOR MUST EMPLOY SEDIMENT CONTROL PRACTICES AS NECESSARY TO MINIMIZE SEDIMENT FROM THE CONTRACTOR MUST EMPLOY SEDIMENT CONTROL PRACTICES AS NECESSARY TO MINIMIZE SEDIMENT FROM ENTERING SURFACE WATERS, INCLUDING CURB AND GUTTER SYSTEMS AND STORM SEWER INLETS.  a. TEMPORARY OR PERMANENT DRAINAGE DITCHES AND SEDIMENT BASINS THAT ARE DESIGNED AS PART OF A TEMPORARY OR PERMANENT DRAINAGE DITCHES AND SEDIMENT BASINS THAT ARE DESIGNED AS PART OF A SEDIMENT CONTAINMENT SYSTEM (E.G., DITCHES WITH ROCK‐CHECK DAMS) REQUIRE SEDIMENT CONTROL CHECK DAMS) REQUIRE SEDIMENT CONTROL PRACTICES ONLY AS APPROPRIATE FOR SITE CONDITIONS.  b. IF THE DOWN GRADIENT SEDIMENT CONTROLS ARE OVERLOADED (BASED ON FREQUENT FAILURE OR EXCESSIVE IF THE DOWN GRADIENT SEDIMENT CONTROLS ARE OVERLOADED (BASED ON FREQUENT FAILURE OR EXCESSIVE MAINTENANCE REQUIREMENT), THE CONTRACTOR MUST INSTALL ADDITIONAL UPGRADIENT SEDIMENT CONTROL PRACTICES OR REDUNDANT BMPS TO ELIMINATE THE OVERLOADING, AND THE SWPPP MUST BE AMENDED TO IDENTIFY THESE ADDITIONAL PRACTICES AS REQUIRED IN PART III.B 1.‐3.  3.  2. SEDIMENT CONTROL PRACTICES MUST BE ESTABLISHED ON ALL DOWN GRADIENT PERIMETERS AND BE LOCATED SEDIMENT CONTROL PRACTICES MUST BE ESTABLISHED ON ALL DOWN GRADIENT PERIMETERS AND BE LOCATED UPGRADIENT OF ANY BUFFER ZONES. THE PERIMETER SEDIMENT CONTROL PRACTICE MUST BE IN PLACE BEFORE ANY UPGRADIENT LAND‐DISTURBING ACTIVITIES BEGIN. THESE PRACTICES SHALL REMAIN IN PLACE UNTIL FINAL DISTURBING ACTIVITIES BEGIN. THESE PRACTICES SHALL REMAIN IN PLACE UNTIL FINAL STABILIZATION HAS BEEN ESTABLISHED IN ACCORDANCE WITH PART IV.G.  A FLOATING SILT CURTAIN PLACED IN THE WATER IS NOT A SEDIMENT CONTROL BMP TO SATISFY PERIMETER CONTROL REQUIREMENTS IN THIS PART EXCEPT WHEN WORKING ON A SHORELINE AND BELOW THE WATERLINE.  IN THOSE CASES, A FLOATING SILT CURTAIN CAN BE USED AS A PERIMETER CONTROL PRACTICE IF THE FLOATING SILT CURTAIN IS INSTALLED AS CLOSE TO SHORE AS POSSIBLE. IMMEDIATELY AFTER THE SHORT TERM CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY (E.G. INSTALLATION OF RIP RAP ALONG THE SHORELINE) IN THAT AREA IS COMPLETE, AN UPLAND PERIMETER CONTROL PRACTICE MUST BE INSTALLED IF EXPOSED SOILS STILL DRAIN TO THE SURFACE WATER.  3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL RE‐INSTALL ALL SEDIMENT CONTROL PRACTICES THAT HAVE BEEN ADJUSTED OR REMOVED THE CONTRACTOR SHALL RE‐INSTALL ALL SEDIMENT CONTROL PRACTICES THAT HAVE BEEN ADJUSTED OR REMOVED INSTALL ALL SEDIMENT CONTROL PRACTICES THAT HAVE BEEN ADJUSTED OR REMOVED TO ACCOMMODATE SHORT‐TERM ACTIVITIES SUCH AS CLEARING OR GRUBBING, OR PASSAGE OF VEHICLES, TERM ACTIVITIES SUCH AS CLEARING OR GRUBBING, OR PASSAGE OF VEHICLES, IMMEDIATELY AFTER THE SHORT‐TERM ACTIVITY HAS BEEN COMPLETED. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLETE ANY TERM ACTIVITY HAS BEEN COMPLETED. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLETE ANY SHORT‐TERM ACTIVITY THAT REQUIRES REMOVAL OF SEDIMENT CONTROL PRACTICES AS QUICKLY AS POSSIBLE. THE TERM ACTIVITY THAT REQUIRES REMOVAL OF SEDIMENT CONTROL PRACTICES AS QUICKLY AS POSSIBLE. THE CONTRACTOR MUST RE‐INSTALL SEDIMENT CONTROL PRACTICES BEFORE THE NEXT PRECIPITATION EVENT EVEN IF INSTALL SEDIMENT CONTROL PRACTICES BEFORE THE NEXT PRECIPITATION EVENT EVEN IF THE SHORT‐TERM ACTIVITY IS NOT COMPLETE.  TERM ACTIVITY IS NOT COMPLETE.  4. ALL STORM DRAIN INLETS MUST BE PROTECTED BY APPROPRIATE BMPS DURING CONSTRUCTION UNTIL ALL SOURCES ALL STORM DRAIN INLETS MUST BE PROTECTED BY APPROPRIATE BMPS DURING CONSTRUCTION UNTIL ALL SOURCES WITH POTENTIAL FOR DISCHARGING TO THE INLET HAVE BEEN STABILIZED. INLET PROTECTION MAY BE REMOVED FOR A PARTICULAR INLET IF A SPECIFIC SAFETY CONCERN (STREET FLOODING/FREEZING) HAS BEEN IDENTIFIED BY THE CONTRACTOR OR THE JURISDICTIONAL AUTHORITY (E.G., CITY/COUNTY/TOWNSHIP/MNDOT ENGINEER). THE CONTRACTOR MUST DOCUMENT THE NEED FOR REMOVAL IN THE SWPPP.   5. TEMPORARY SOIL STOCKPILES MUST HAVE SILT FENCE OR OTHER EFFECTIVE SEDIMENT CONTROLS, AND CANNOT BE TEMPORARY SOIL STOCKPILES MUST HAVE SILT FENCE OR OTHER EFFECTIVE SEDIMENT CONTROLS, AND CANNOT BE PLACED IN ANY NATURAL BUFFERS OR SURFACE WATERS, INCLUDING STORMWATER CONVEYANCES SUCH AS CURB AND GUTTER SYSTEMS, OR CONDUITS AND DITCHES UNLESS THERE IS A BYPASS IN PLACE FOR THE STORMWATER.  6. WHERE VEHICLE TRAFFIC LEAVES ANY PART OF THE SITE (OR ONTO PAVED ROADS WITHIN THE SITE):  WHERE VEHICLE TRAFFIC LEAVES ANY PART OF THE SITE (OR ONTO PAVED ROADS WITHIN THE SITE):  a. THE CONTRACTOR MUST INSTALL A VEHICLE TRACKING BMP TO MINIMIZE THE TRACK OUT OF SEDIMENT FROM THE CONTRACTOR MUST INSTALL A VEHICLE TRACKING BMP TO MINIMIZE THE TRACK OUT OF SEDIMENT FROM THE CONSTRUCTION SITE. EXAMPLES OF VEHICLE TRACKING BMPS INCLUDE (BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO) ROCK PADS, MUD MATS, SLASH MULCH, CONCRETE OR STEEL WASH RACKS, OR EQUIVALENT SYSTEMS.  b. THE CONTRACTOR MUST USE STREET SWEEPING IF SUCH VEHICLE TRACKING BMPS ARE NOT ADEQUATE TO THE CONTRACTOR MUST USE STREET SWEEPING IF SUCH VEHICLE TRACKING BMPS ARE NOT ADEQUATE TO PREVENT SEDIMENT FROM BEING TRACKED ONTO THE STREET (SEE PART IV.E.5.D.).  7. THE CONTRACTOR MUST INSTALL TEMPORARY SEDIMENTATION BASINS AS REQUIRED IN PART III.C. OF THIS PERMIT.  THE CONTRACTOR MUST INSTALL TEMPORARY SEDIMENTATION BASINS AS REQUIRED IN PART III.C. OF THIS PERMIT.  8. THE CONTRACTOR MUST MINIMIZE SOIL COMPACTION AND, UNLESS INFEASIBLE, PRESERVE TOPSOIL.  MINIMIZING SOIL THE CONTRACTOR MUST MINIMIZE SOIL COMPACTION AND, UNLESS INFEASIBLE, PRESERVE TOPSOIL.  MINIMIZING SOIL COMPACTION IS NOT REQUIRED WHERE THE FUNCTION OF A SPECIFIC AREA OF THE SITE DICTATES THAT IT BE COMPACTED.   9. THE CONTRACTOR MUST PRESERVE A 50 FOOT NATURAL BUFFER OR (IF A BUFFER IS INFEASIBLE ON THE SITE) THE CONTRACTOR MUST PRESERVE A 50 FOOT NATURAL BUFFER OR (IF A BUFFER IS INFEASIBLE ON THE SITE) PROVIDE REDUNDANT SEDIMENT CONTROLS WHEN A SURFACE WATER IS LOCATED WITHIN 50 FEET OF THE PROJECT'S EARTH DISTURBANCES AND STORMWATER FLOWS TO THE SURFACE WATER. NATURAL BUFFERS ARE NOT REQUIRED ADJACENT TO ROAD DITCHES, JUDICIAL DITCHES, COUNTY DITCHES, STORMWATER CONVEYANCE CHANNELS, STORM DRAIN INLETS, AND SEDIMENT BASINS. THE CONTRACTOR IS/ARE NOT REQUIRED TO ENHANCE THE QUALITY OF THE VEGETATION THAT ALREADY EXISTS IN THE BUFFER OR PROVIDE VEGETATION IF NONE EXIST. HOWEVER, CONTRACTOR CAN IMPROVE THE NATURAL BUFFER WITH VEGETATION.  10. IF THE CONTRACTOR INTEND TO USE POLYMERS, FLOCCULANTS, OR OTHER SEDIMENTATION TREATMENT CHEMICALS IF THE CONTRACTOR INTEND TO USE POLYMERS, FLOCCULANTS, OR OTHER SEDIMENTATION TREATMENT CHEMICALS ON THE PROJECT SITE, THE CONTRACTOR MUST COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS:  a. THE CONTRACTOR MUST USE CONVENTIONAL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROLS PRIOR TO CHEMICAL ADDITION THE CONTRACTOR MUST USE CONVENTIONAL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROLS PRIOR TO CHEMICAL ADDITION TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE TREATMENT. CHEMICALS MAY ONLY BE APPLIED WHERE TREATED STORMWATER IS DIRECTED TO A SEDIMENT CONTROL SYSTEM WHICH ALLOWS FOR FILTRATION OR SETTLEMENT OF THE FLOC PRIOR TO DISCHARGE.  b. CHEMICALS MUST BE SELECTED THAT ARE APPROPRIATELY SUITED TO THE TYPES OF SOILS LIKELY TO BE CHEMICALS MUST BE SELECTED THAT ARE APPROPRIATELY SUITED TO THE TYPES OF SOILS LIKELY TO BE EXPOSED DURING CONSTRUCTION, AND TO THE EXPECTED TURBIDITY, PH, AND FLOW RATE OF STORMWATER FLOWING INTO THE CHEMICAL TREATMENT SYSTEM OR AREA.  c. CHEMICALS MUST BE USED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ACCEPTED ENGINEERING PRACTICES, AND WITH DOSING CHEMICALS MUST BE USED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ACCEPTED ENGINEERING PRACTICES, AND WITH DOSING SPECIFICATIONS AND SEDIMENT REMOVAL DESIGN SPECIFICATIONS PROVIDED BY THE MANUFACTURER OR PROVIDER/SUPPLIER OF THE APPLICABLE CHEMICALS. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1311
1. THE CONTRACTOR MUST ENSURE THAT A TRAINED PERSON (AS IDENTIFIED IN PART III.A.3.A.) THE CONTRACTOR MUST ENSURE THAT A TRAINED PERSON (AS IDENTIFIED IN PART III.A.3.A.) WILL ROUTINELY INSPECT THE ENTIRE CONSTRUCTION SITE AT LEAST ONCE EVERY SEVEN (7) DAYS DURING ACTIVE CONSTRUCTION AND WITHIN 24 HOURS AFTER A RAINFALL EVENT GREATER THAN 0.5 INCHES IN 24 HOURS. FOLLOWING AN INSPECTION THAT OCCURS WITHIN 24 HOURS AFTER A RAINFALL EVENT, THE NEXT INSPECTION MUST BE CONDUCTED WITHIN SEVEN (7) DAYS AFTER THE RAINFALL EVENT.  2. ALL INSPECTIONS AND MAINTENANCE CONDUCTED DURING CONSTRUCTION MUST BE RECORDED ALL INSPECTIONS AND MAINTENANCE CONDUCTED DURING CONSTRUCTION MUST BE RECORDED WITHIN 24 HOURS IN WRITING AND THESE RECORDS MUST BE RETAINED WITH THE SWPPP IN ACCORDANCE WITH PART III.E. RECORDS OF EACH INSPECTION AND MAINTENANCE ACTIVITY SHALL INCLUDE:  a. DATE AND TIME OF INSPECTIONS  DATE AND TIME OF INSPECTIONS  b. NAME OF PERSON(S) CONDUCTING INSPECTIONS  NAME OF PERSON(S) CONDUCTING INSPECTIONS  c. FINDINGS OF INSPECTIONS, INCLUDING THE SPECIFIC LOCATION WHERE CORRECTIVE ACTIONS FINDINGS OF INSPECTIONS, INCLUDING THE SPECIFIC LOCATION WHERE CORRECTIVE ACTIONS ARE NEEDED  d. CORRECTIVE ACTIONS TAKEN (INCLUDING DATES, TIMES, AND PARTY COMPLETING CORRECTIVE ACTIONS TAKEN (INCLUDING DATES, TIMES, AND PARTY COMPLETING MAINTENANCE ACTIVITIES)  e. DATE AND AMOUNT OF ALL RAINFALL EVENTS GREATER THAN 1/2 INCH (0.5 INCHES) IN 24 DATE AND AMOUNT OF ALL RAINFALL EVENTS GREATER THAN 1/2 INCH (0.5 INCHES) IN 24 HOURS. RAINFALL AMOUNTS MUST BE OBTAINED BY A PROPERLY MAINTAINED RAIN GAUGE INSTALLED ONSITE, A WEATHER STATION THAT IS WITHIN 1 MILE OF YOUR LOCATION OR A WEATHER REPORTING SYSTEM THAT PROVIDES SITE SPECIFIC RAINFALL DATA FROM RADAR SUMMARIES.  f. IF ANY DISCHARGE IS OBSERVED TO BE OCCURRING DURING THE INSPECTION, A RECORD OF IF ANY DISCHARGE IS OBSERVED TO BE OCCURRING DURING THE INSPECTION, A RECORD OF ALL POINTS OF THE PROPERTY FROM WHICH THERE IS A DISCHARGE MUST BE MADE, AND THE DISCHARGE SHOULD BE DESCRIBED (I.E., COLOR, ODOR, FLOATING, SETTLED, OR SUSPENDED SOLIDS, FOAM, OIL SHEEN, AND OTHER OBVIOUS INDICATORS OF POLLUTANTS) AND PHOTOGRAPHED.  g. ANY AMENDMENTS TO THE SWPPP PROPOSED AS A RESULT OF THE INSPECTION MUST BE ANY AMENDMENTS TO THE SWPPP PROPOSED AS A RESULT OF THE INSPECTION MUST BE DOCUMENTED AS REQUIRED IN PART III.B. WITHIN SEVEN (7) CALENDAR DAYS.  3. INSPECTION FREQUENCY ADJUSTMENT  INSPECTION FREQUENCY ADJUSTMENT  a. WHERE PARTS OF THE PROJECT SITE HAVE PERMANENT COVER, BUT WORK REMAINS ON WHERE PARTS OF THE PROJECT SITE HAVE PERMANENT COVER, BUT WORK REMAINS ON OTHER PARTS OF THE SITE, THE CONTRACTOR MAY REDUCE INSPECTIONS OF THE AREAS WITH PERMANENT COVER TO  ONCE PER MONTH.  b. WHERE CONSTRUCTION SITES HAVE PERMANENT COVER ON ALL EXPOSED SOIL AREAS AND WHERE CONSTRUCTION SITES HAVE PERMANENT COVER ON ALL EXPOSED SOIL AREAS AND NO CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY IS OCCURRING ANYWHERE ON THE SITE, THE SITE MUST BE INSPECTED DURING NON‐FROZEN GROUND CONDITIONS AT LEAST ONCE PER MONTH FOR A FROZEN GROUND CONDITIONS AT LEAST ONCE PER MONTH FOR A PERIOD OF TWELVE (12) MONTHS. FOLLOWING THE TWELFTH MONTH OF PERMANENT COVER AND NO CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY, INSPECTIONS MAY BE TERMINATED UNTIL CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY IS ONCE AGAIN INITIATED UNLESS THE CONTRACTOR IS/ARE NOTIFIED IN WRITING BY THE MPCA THAT EROSION ISSUES HAVE BEEN DETECTED AT THE SITE AND INSPECTIONS NEED TO RESUME.  c. WHERE WORK HAS BEEN SUSPENDED DUE TO FROZEN GROUND CONDITIONS, THE INSPECTIONS WHERE WORK HAS BEEN SUSPENDED DUE TO FROZEN GROUND CONDITIONS, THE INSPECTIONS MAY BE SUSPENDED. THE REQUIRED INSPECTIONS AND MAINTENANCE SCHEDULE MUST BEGIN WITHIN 24 HOURS AFTER RUNOFF OCCURS AT THE SITE OR 24 HOURS PRIOR TO RESUMING CONSTRUCTION, WHICHEVER COMES FIRST.  4. THE CONTRACTOR IS/ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE INSPECTION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE CONTRACTOR IS/ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE INSPECTION AND MAINTENANCE OF TEMPORARY AND PERMANENT WATER QUALITY MANAGEMENT BMPS, AS WELL AS ALL EROSION PREVENTION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL BMPS, UNTIL ANOTHER PERMITTEE HAS OBTAINED COVERAGE UNDER THIS PERMIT ACCORDING TO PART II.B.5. OR THE PROJECT HAS UNDERGONE FINAL STABILIZATION, AND AN NOT HAS BEEN SUBMITTED TO THE MPCA.  5. THE CONTRACTOR MUST INSPECT ALL EROSION PREVENTION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL BMPS THE CONTRACTOR MUST INSPECT ALL EROSION PREVENTION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL BMPS AND POLLUTION PREVENTION MANAGEMENT MEASURES TO ENSURE INTEGRITY AND EFFECTIVENESS DURING ALL ROUTINE AND POST‐RAINFALL EVENT INSPECTIONS. ALL RAINFALL EVENT INSPECTIONS. ALL NONFUNCTIONAL BMPS MUST BE REPAIRED, REPLACED, OR SUPPLEMENTED WITH FUNCTIONAL BMPS BY THE END OF THE NEXT BUSINESS DAY AFTER DISCOVERY, OR AS SOON AS FIELD CONDITIONS ALLOW ACCESS UNLESS ANOTHER TIME FRAME IS SPECIFIED BELOW. THE CONTRACTOR MUST INVESTIGATE AND COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING INSPECTION AND MAINTENANCE REQUIREMENTS:  a. ALL PERIMETER CONTROL DEVICES MUST BE REPAIRED, REPLACED, OR SUPPLEMENTED WHEN ALL PERIMETER CONTROL DEVICES MUST BE REPAIRED, REPLACED, OR SUPPLEMENTED WHEN THEY BECOME NONFUNCTIONAL OR THE SEDIMENT REACHES ONE‐HALF (1/2) OF THE HEIGHT HALF (1/2) OF THE HEIGHT OF THE DEVICE. THESE REPAIRS MUST BE MADE BY THE END OF THE NEXT BUSINESS DAY AFTER DISCOVERY, OR THEREAFTER AS SOON AS FIELD CONDITIONS ALLOW ACCESS.  b. TEMPORARY AND PERMANENT SEDIMENTATION BASINS MUST BE DRAINED AND THE SEDIMENT TEMPORARY AND PERMANENT SEDIMENTATION BASINS MUST BE DRAINED AND THE SEDIMENT REMOVED WHEN THE DEPTH OF SEDIMENT COLLECTED IN THE BASIN REACHES ONE‐HALF HALF (1/2) THE STORAGE VOLUME. DRAINAGE AND REMOVAL MUST BE COMPLETED WITHIN 72 HOURS OF DISCOVERY, OR AS SOON AS FIELD CONDITIONS ALLOW ACCESS (SEE PART IV.D.).  c. SURFACE WATERS, INCLUDING DRAINAGE DITCHES AND CONVEYANCE SYSTEMS, MUST BE SURFACE WATERS, INCLUDING DRAINAGE DITCHES AND CONVEYANCE SYSTEMS, MUST BE INSPECTED FOR EVIDENCE OF EROSION AND SEDIMENT DEPOSITION DURING EACH INSPECTION. THE CONTRACTOR MUST REMOVE ALL DELTAS AND SEDIMENT DEPOSITED IN SURFACE WATERS, INCLUDING DRAINAGE WAYS, CATCH BASINS, AND OTHER DRAINAGE SYSTEMS, AND RESTABILIZE THE AREAS WHERE SEDIMENT REMOVAL RESULTS IN EXPOSED SOIL. THE REMOVAL AND STABILIZATION MUST TAKE PLACE WITHIN SEVEN (7) DAYS OF DISCOVERY UNLESS PRECLUDED BY LEGAL, REGULATORY, OR PHYSICAL ACCESS CONSTRAINTS. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL USE ALL REASONABLE EFFORTS TO OBTAIN ACCESS. IF PRECLUDED, REMOVAL AND STABILIZATION MUST TAKE PLACE WITHIN SEVEN (7) CALENDAR DAYS OF OBTAINING ACCESS. THE CONTRACTOR IS/ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR CONTACTING ALL LOCAL, REGIONAL, STATE AND FEDERAL AUTHORITIES AND RECEIVING ANY APPLICABLE PERMITS, PRIOR TO CONDUCTING ANY WORK IN SURFACE WATERS.  d. CONSTRUCTION SITE VEHICLE EXIT LOCATIONS MUST BE INSPECTED FOR EVIDENCE OF CONSTRUCTION SITE VEHICLE EXIT LOCATIONS MUST BE INSPECTED FOR EVIDENCE OF OFF‐SITE SEDIMENT TRACKING ONTO PAVED SURFACES. TRACKED SEDIMENT MUST BE SITE SEDIMENT TRACKING ONTO PAVED SURFACES. TRACKED SEDIMENT MUST BE REMOVED FROM ALL PAVED SURFACES BOTH ON AND OFF SITE WITHIN 24 HOURS OF DISCOVERY, OR IF APPLICABLE, WITHIN A SHORTER TIME TO COMPLY WITH PART IV.C.6.  e. STREETS AND OTHER AREAS ADJACENT TO THE PROJECT MUST BE INSPECTED FOR EVIDENCE STREETS AND OTHER AREAS ADJACENT TO THE PROJECT MUST BE INSPECTED FOR EVIDENCE OF OFF‐SITE ACCUMULATIONS OF SEDIMENT. IF SEDIMENT IS PRESENT, IT MUST BE REMOVED SITE ACCUMULATIONS OF SEDIMENT. IF SEDIMENT IS PRESENT, IT MUST BE REMOVED IN A MANNER AND AT A FREQUENCY SUFFICIENT TO MINIMIZE OFF‐SITE IMPACTS (E.G., SITE IMPACTS (E.G., FUGITIVE SEDIMENT IN STREETS COULD BE WASHED INTO STORM SEWERS BY THE NEXT RAIN AND/OR POSE A SAFETY HAZARD TO USERS OF PUBLIC STREETS).  6. ALL INFILTRATION AREAS MUST BE INSPECTED TO ENSURE THAT NO SEDIMENT FROM ONGOING ALL INFILTRATION AREAS MUST BE INSPECTED TO ENSURE THAT NO SEDIMENT FROM ONGOING CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY IS REACHING THE INFILTRATION AREA. ALL INFILTRATION AREAS MUST BE INSPECTED TO ENSURE THAT EQUIPMENT IS NOT BEING DRIVEN ACROSS THE INFILTRATION AREA. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1312
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL IMPLEMENT THE FOLLOWING POLLUTION PREVENTION MANAGEMENT MEASURES ON THE SITE:  1. STORAGE, HANDLING, AND DISPOSAL OF CONSTRUCTION PRODUCTS, STORAGE, HANDLING, AND DISPOSAL OF CONSTRUCTION PRODUCTS, MATERIALS, AND WASTES: THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH THE FOLLOWING TO MINIMIZE THE EXPOSURE TO STORMWATER OF ANY OF THE PRODUCTS, MATERIALS, OR WASTES. PRODUCTS OR WASTES WHICH ARE EITHER NOT A SOURCE OF CONTAMINATION TO STORMWATER OR ARE DESIGNED TO BE EXPOSED TO STORMWATER ARE NOT HELD TO THIS REQUIREMENT:  a. BUILDING PRODUCTS THAT HAVE THE POTENTIAL TO LEACH POLLUTANTS BUILDING PRODUCTS THAT HAVE THE POTENTIAL TO LEACH POLLUTANTS MUST BE UNDER COVER (E.G., PLASTIC SHEETING OR TEMPORARY ROOFS) TO PREVENT THE DISCHARGE OF POLLUTANTS OR PROTECTED BY A SIMILARLY EFFECTIVE MEANS DESIGNED TO MINIMIZE CONTACT WITH STORMWATER.  b. PESTICIDES, HERBICIDES, INSECTICIDES, FERTILIZERS, TREATMENT PESTICIDES, HERBICIDES, INSECTICIDES, FERTILIZERS, TREATMENT CHEMICALS, AND LANDSCAPE MATERIALS MUST BE UNDER COVER (E.G., PLASTIC SHEETING OR TEMPORARY ROOFS) TO PREVENT THE DISCHARGE OF POLLUTANTS OR PROTECTED BY SIMILARLY EFFECTIVE MEANS DESIGNED TO MINIMIZE CONTACT WITH STORMWATER.  c. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS, TOXIC WASTE, (INCLUDING OIL, DIESEL FUEL, HAZARDOUS MATERIALS, TOXIC WASTE, (INCLUDING OIL, DIESEL FUEL, GASOLINE, HYDRAULIC FLUIDS, PAINT SOLVENTS, PETROLEUM‐BASED BASED PRODUCTS, WOOD PRESERVATIVES, ADDITIVES, CURING COMPOUNDS, AND ACIDS) MUST BE PROPERLY STORED IN SEALED CONTAINERS TO PREVENT SPILLS, LEAKS OR OTHER DISCHARGE. RESTRICTED ACCESS STORAGE AREAS MUST BE PROVIDED TO PREVENT VANDALISM. STORAGE AND DISPOSAL OF HAZARDOUS WASTE OR HAZARDOUS MATERIALS MUST BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH MINN. R. CH. 7045 INCLUDING SECONDARY CONTAINMENT AS APPLICABLE.  d. SOLID WASTE MUST BE STORED, COLLECTED AND DISPOSED OF PROPERLY SOLID WASTE MUST BE STORED, COLLECTED AND DISPOSED OF PROPERLY IN COMPLIANCE WITH MINN. R. CH. 7035.  e. PORTABLE TOILETS MUST BE POSITIONED SO THAT THEY ARE SECURE PORTABLE TOILETS MUST BE POSITIONED SO THAT THEY ARE SECURE AND WILL NOT BE TIPPED OR KNOCKED OVER. SANITARY WASTE MUST BE DISPOSED OF PROPERLY IN ACCORDANCE WITH MINN. R. CH. 7041. 2. FUELING AND MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT OR VEHICLES; SPILL FUELING AND MAINTENANCE OF EQUIPMENT OR VEHICLES; SPILL PREVENTION AND RESPONSE: THE CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE REASONABLE STEPS TO PREVENT THE DISCHARGE OF SPILLED OR LEAKED CHEMICALS, INCLUDING FUEL, FROM ANY AREA WHERE CHEMICALS OR FUEL WILL BE LOADED OR UNLOADED INCLUDING THE USE OF DRIP PANS OR ABSORBENTS UNLESS INFEASIBLE. THE CONTRACTOR MUST CONDUCT FUELING IN A CONTAINED AREA UNLESS INFEASIBLE. THE CONTRACTOR MUST ENSURE ADEQUATE SUPPLIES ARE AVAILABLE AT ALL TIMES TO CLEAN UP DISCHARGED MATERIALS AND THAT AN APPROPRIATE DISPOSAL METHOD IS AVAILABLE FOR RECOVERED SPILLED MATERIALS. THE CONTRACTOR MUST REPORT AND CLEAN UP SPILLS IMMEDIATELY AS REQUIRED BY MINN. STAT. § 115.061, USING DRY CLEAN UP MEASURES WHERE POSSIBLE.   3. VEHICLE AND EQUIPMENT WASHING: IF THE CONTRACTOR WASH THE VEHICLE AND EQUIPMENT WASHING: IF THE CONTRACTOR WASH THE EXTERIOR OF VEHICLES OR EQUIPMENT ON THE PROJECT SITE, WASHING MUST BE LIMITED TO A DEFINED AREA OF THE SITE. RUNOFF FROM THE WASHING AREA MUST BE CONTAINED IN A SEDIMENT BASIN OR OTHER SIMILARLY EFFECTIVE CONTROLS AND WASTE FROM THE WASHING ACTIVITY MUST BE PROPERLY DISPOSED OF. THE CONTRACTOR MUST PROPERLY USE AND STORE SOAPS, DETERGENTS, OR SOLVENTS. NO ENGINE DEGREASING IS ALLOWED ON SITE.  4. CONCRETE AND OTHER WASHOUTS WASTE: THE CONTRACTOR MUST CONCRETE AND OTHER WASHOUTS WASTE: THE CONTRACTOR MUST PROVIDE EFFECTIVE CONTAINMENT FOR ALL LIQUID AND SOLID WASTES GENERATED BY WASHOUT OPERATIONS (CONCRETE, STUCCO, PAINT, FORM RELEASE OILS, CURING COMPOUNDS AND OTHER CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS) RELATED TO THE CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY. THE LIQUID AND SOLID WASHOUT WASTES MUST NOT CONTACT THE GROUND, AND THE CONTAINMENT MUST BE DESIGNED SO THAT IT DOES NOT RESULT IN RUNOFF FROM THE WASHOUT OPERATIONS OR AREAS. LIQUID AND SOLID WASTES MUST BE DISPOSED OF PROPERLY AND IN COMPLIANCE WITH MPCA RULES. A SIGN MUST BE INSTALLED ADJACENT TO EACH WASHOUT FACILITY THAT REQUIRES SITE PERSONNEL TO UTILIZE THE PROPER FACILITIES FOR DISPOSAL OF CONCRETE AND OTHER WASHOUT WASTES. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1313
THE CONTRACTOR MUST ENSURE FINAL STABILIZATION OF THE SITE. FINAL STABILIZATION IS NOT COMPLETE UNTIL ALL REQUIREMENTS OF PARTS IV.G.1‐5. ARE COMPLETE:  5. ARE COMPLETE:  1. ALL SOIL DISTURBING ACTIVITIES AT THE SITE HAVE BEEN COMPLETED AND ALL SOILS ARE STABILIZED ALL SOIL DISTURBING ACTIVITIES AT THE SITE HAVE BEEN COMPLETED AND ALL SOILS ARE STABILIZED BY A UNIFORM PERENNIAL VEGETATIVE COVER WITH A DENSITY OF 70 PERCENT OF ITS EXPECTED FINAL GROWTH DENSITY OVER THE ENTIRE PERVIOUS SURFACE AREA, OR OTHER EQUIVALENT MEANS NECESSARY TO PREVENT SOIL FAILURE UNDER EROSIVE CONDITIONS.  2. THE PERMANENT STORMWATER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM IS CONSTRUCTED, MEETS ALL REQUIREMENTS IN THE PERMANENT STORMWATER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM IS CONSTRUCTED, MEETS ALL REQUIREMENTS IN PART III.D. AND IS OPERATING AS DESIGNED. TEMPORARY OR PERMANENT SEDIMENTATION BASINS THAT ARE TO BE USED AS PERMANENT WATER QUALITY MANAGEMENT BASINS HAVE BEEN CLEANED OF ANY ACCUMULATED SEDIMENT. ALL SEDIMENT HAS BEEN REMOVED FROM CONVEYANCE SYSTEMS AND DITCHES ARE STABILIZED WITH PERMANENT COVER.  3. ALL TEMPORARY SYNTHETIC AND STRUCTURAL EROSION PREVENTION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL BMPS ALL TEMPORARY SYNTHETIC AND STRUCTURAL EROSION PREVENTION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL BMPS (SUCH AS SILT FENCE) HAVE BEEN REMOVED ON THE PORTIONS OF THE SITE FOR WHICH THE CONTRACTOR IS/ARE RESPONSIBLE. BMPS DESIGNED TO DECOMPOSE ON SITE (SUCH AS SOME COMPOST LOGS) MAY BE LEFT IN PLACE.  

AutoCAD SHX Text_1314
(OATS COVER CROP)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1315
(RESIDENTIAL TURF)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1316
1.  EROSION CONTROL BLANKET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1317
4.  SEDIMENT LOGS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1318
MnDOT CATEGORY 5

AutoCAD SHX Text_1319
THE INTENDED SEQUENCING OF MAJOR SITE CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES IS AS FOLLOWS: 1. INSTALL STABILZED ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE. INSTALL STABILZED ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE. 2. INSTALL SILT FENCE AROUND SITE, AS SHOWN ON PLAN. INSTALL SILT FENCE AROUND SITE, AS SHOWN ON PLAN. 3. INSTALL ORANGE CONSTRUCTION FENCE AROUND EXISTING TREES TO BE PROTECTED.  INSTALL ORANGE CONSTRUCTION FENCE AROUND EXISTING TREES TO BE PROTECTED.  4. CLEAR AND GRUB SITE. CLEAR AND GRUB SITE. 5. STRIP AND STOCKPILE TOPSOIL. STRIP AND STOCKPILE TOPSOIL. 6. ROUGH GRADING OF SITE. ROUGH GRADING OF SITE. 7. STABILIZE DENUDED AREAS AND STOCKPILES. STABILIZE DENUDED AREAS AND STOCKPILES. 8. INSTALL SANITARY SEWER, WATER MAIN, STORM SEWER AND SERVICES. INSTALL SANITARY SEWER, WATER MAIN, STORM SEWER AND SERVICES. 9. INSTALL SILT FENCE/INLET PROTECTION AROUND CATCH BASINS. INSTALL SILT FENCE/INLET PROTECTION AROUND CATCH BASINS. 10. INSTALL STREET SECTION. INSTALL STREET SECTION. 11. INSTALL CURB AND GUTTER. INSTALL CURB AND GUTTER. 12. BITUMINOUS ON STREETS. BITUMINOUS ON STREETS. 13. INSTALL SMALL UTILITIES (GAS, ELECTRIC, PHONE, CABLE, ETC.) INSTALL SMALL UTILITIES (GAS, ELECTRIC, PHONE, CABLE, ETC.) 14. FINE GRADE BOULEVARD, LANDSCAPE AREAS, SEED AND MULCH. FINE GRADE BOULEVARD, LANDSCAPE AREAS, SEED AND MULCH. 15. REMOVE ACCUMULATED SEDIMENT. REMOVE ACCUMULATED SEDIMENT. 16. FINAL GRADE. FINAL GRADE. 17. WHEN ALL CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIY IS COMPLETE AND THE SITE IS STABILIZED BY EITHER SEED OR WHEN ALL CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIY IS COMPLETE AND THE SITE IS STABILIZED BY EITHER SEED OR SOD AND LANDSCAPING, REMOVE SILT FENCE AND RESEED ANY AREAS DISTURBED BY THE REMOVAL. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1320
1 MILE RADIUS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1321
1. INSTALLATION OF INFILTRATION/FILTRATION PRACTICES SHALL BE DONE DURING PERIODS OF DRY WEATHER AND INSTALLATION OF INFILTRATION/FILTRATION PRACTICES SHALL BE DONE DURING PERIODS OF DRY WEATHER AND COMPLETED BEFORE A RAINFALL EVENT. PLACEMENT OF ENGINEERED SOILS SHALL BE ON DRY NATIVE SOIL ONLY. 2. EXCAVATION OF INFILTRATION AREAS SHALL BE COMPLETED USING A BACKHOE WITH A TOOTHED BUCKET. EXCAVATION OF INFILTRATION AREAS SHALL BE COMPLETED USING A BACKHOE WITH A TOOTHED BUCKET. 3. THE BOTTOM EXCAVATION SURFACE OF INFILTRATION AREAS SHALL BE LEVEL WITHOUT DIPS OR SWALES. THE BOTTOM EXCAVATION SURFACE OF INFILTRATION AREAS SHALL BE LEVEL WITHOUT DIPS OR SWALES. 4. DURING CONSTRUCTION, STORM WATER MUST BE ROUTED AROUND INFILTRATION AREAS UNTIL ALL CONSTRUCTION DURING CONSTRUCTION, STORM WATER MUST BE ROUTED AROUND INFILTRATION AREAS UNTIL ALL CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY HAS CEASED AND TRIBUTARY SURFACES ARE CLEANED OF SEDIMENT. 5. ENGINEERED SOIL SHALL REMAIN UNCONTAMINATED (NOT MIXED WITH OTHER SOIL) BEFORE AND DURING INSTALLATION.ENGINEERED SOIL SHALL REMAIN UNCONTAMINATED (NOT MIXED WITH OTHER SOIL) BEFORE AND DURING INSTALLATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1322
JOSH BUDISH ENDEAVOR DEVELOPMENT 200 SOUTHDALE CENTER #190 MINNEAPOLIS, MN 55435 JOSH@ENDEAVORSHIELD.COM PH 952-210-5870

AutoCAD SHX Text_1323
TBD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1324
JEREMY THOMAS RJ RYAN CONSTRUCTION, INC. 1100 MENDOTA HEIGHTS ROAD MENDOTA HEIGHTS, MN 55120 JTHOMAS@RJRYAN.COM PH 651-365-7009

AutoCAD SHX Text_1325
THE MINNESOTA RIVER IS CLASSIFIED AS A CONSTRUCTION  IS CLASSIFIED AS A CONSTRUCTION RELATED IMPAIRED WATER AND WITHIN 1 MILE OF THIS PROJECT. THUS, THE FOLLOWING REQUIREMENTS APPLY FOR THIS PROJECT: AUGUSTA LAKE IS CLASSIFIED AS A CONSTRUCTION  IS CLASSIFIED AS A CONSTRUCTION RELATED IMPAIRED WATER AND WITHIN 1 MILE OF THIS PROJECT. THUS, THE FOLLOWING REQUIREMENTS APPLY FOR THIS PROJECT: 23.9: PERMITTEES MUST IMMEDIATELY INITIATE STABILIZATION OF EXPOSED SOIL AREAS, AS DESCRIBED IN ITEM 8.4, AND COMPLETE THE STABILIZATION WITHIN SEVEN (7) CALENDAR DAYS AFTER THE CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY IN THAT PORTION OF THE SITE TEMPORARILY OR PERMANENTLY CEASES. 23.10: PERMITTEES MUST PROVIDE A TEMPORARY SEDIMENT BASIN AS DESCRIBED IN SECTION 14 FOR COMMON DRAINAGE LOCATIONS THAT SERVE AN AREA WITH FIVE (5) OR MORE ACRES DISTURBED AT ONE TIME.  ALSO, A MANDATORY STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP) REVIEW IS REQUIRED BY THE MPCA IF THE PROJECT WILL DISTURB OVER 50 ACRES AND HAS A DISCHARGE POINT ON THE PROJECT WITHIN 1 MILE (AERIAL RADIUS MEASUREMENT) OF, AND FLOWS TO THE IMPAIRED WATER.  OWNERS MUST SUBMIT THE APPLICATION FOR COVERAGE AND THE SWPPP AT LEAST 30-DAYS BEFORE THE CONSTRUCTION START DATE.  THE SWPPP CAN BE ATTACHED ELECTRONICALLY WHEN USING THE ONLINE APPLICATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1326
LEMAY LAKE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1327
AUGUSTA LAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1328
SNELLING LAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1329
LEMAY LAKE



S
TO

R
M

W
A

TE
R

 P
O

N
D

PROPOSED BUILDING
623' x 280'

174,288  S.F.

C-5.0

C
O

B
A

LT
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 C
E

N
TE

R

P
E

R
M

IT
 S

E
T

U
TI

LI
TY

 P
LA

N

733 Marquette Avenue

Minneapolis, MN 55402
612.758.3080

www.alliant-inc.com

Suite 700

UTILITY NOTES:

LEGEND

” 

” ”
” ” 

STORM SEWER SCHEDULE:        

(REFER TO PLAN VIEW FOR CB 4A)

Page 58 of 107

AutoCAD SHX Text_1330
CBMH 2 W/ 4FT SUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1331
CB 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1332
RD 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1333
MH 101

AutoCAD SHX Text_1334
CBMH 5 W. 4FT SUMP REBUILD EX. MH EX 24" INV SW 854.92 INV E: PER SCHEDULE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1335
RD 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1336
RD 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1337
CBMH 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1338
CBMH 13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1339
RD 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1340
CBMH 14 W/ 4FT SUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1341
FES 15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1342
CB 9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1343
CBMH 11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1344
CBMH 10  8" INV SE: 866.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1345
REBUILD MH 100 EX. RIM:864.58 30" INV E: 852.23 (EX. PIPE) INV W/N: PER SCHEDULE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1346
PROTECT EX MH  EX. RIM:870.18 EX. 30" INV S: 854.13 EX. 30" INV W: 854.08 EX. 24" INV NE: 854.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1347
PROTECT EX. 24" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1348
FES 200 (SUBMERGED FOR SKIMMABLES) 40 LF 12" RCP @ 0%

AutoCAD SHX Text_1349
OCS 201 ON EXISTING 12" RCP 12" INV NW:845.0 (EX. PIPE) 12" INV E:842.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1350
CONNECT TO EXITING SAN MH RAISE RIM 2FT TO:866.0 EX 8" INV S:852.72 EX 8" INV N:852.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_1351
8" SAN SERVICE INV:858.0 70 LF 8" SCH 40 @ 7.4%

AutoCAD SHX Text_1352
EX. HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1353
EX. HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1354
EX. HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1355
EX. HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1356
PROTECT EXISTING FIBER OPTIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1357
HYDRANT WITH WATEROUS STORZ NOZZLE PER SPRWS STANDARDS 4 LF 6"DIP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1358
HYDRANT WITH BOLLARDS 8 LF 6" DIP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1359
HYDRANT WITH WATEROUS STORZ NOZZLE PER SPRWS STANDARDS, TYP., 240 LF 6" DIP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1360
8"x8"x6" TEE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1361
8" FIRE SERVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1362
8"x6" TEE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1363
CB 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1364
BULKHEAD EXISTING SW 8" INV, CORE CUT NEW NW 8" INVERT AT 867.0 (ASSUMED TO BE EXISTING RETAINING WALL DRAINAGE)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1365
PROTECT EXISTING FIBER OPTIC LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1366
PROTECT EXISTING FIBER OPTIC LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1367
PROTECT EXISTING FIBER OPTIC LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1368
38LF 8" HDPE @ 1%

AutoCAD SHX Text_1369
FES 102 W/ RIPRAP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1370
CB 4A 8" INV E:862.0 12" INV SW:862.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1371
CB 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1372
70LF 8" SCH 40 PVC @ 1% WITH 6"x8" WYES START INV:862.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1373
(3) AREA DRAINS RIM:867.7 TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1374
84LF 12" HDPE @ 0.5%

AutoCAD SHX Text_1375
12" STORM @ 8FT DEPTH. LOWER WM UNDER STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1376
LOWER WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1377
4" DOMESTIC SERVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1378
562 LF 4" DIP DEDICATED DOMESTIC SERVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1379
6" DIP WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1380
8" DIP WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1381
CONNECT TO EX. 8" DIP WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1382
893LF 8" DIP FIRE SERVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1383
(2) 45° 8" BENDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1384
(2) 45° 8" BENDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1385
(2) 45° 6" BENDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1386
(2) 45° 4" BENDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1387
CONNECT TO EXISTING DIP WITH 4" TEE, SAWCUT AND RESTORE PAVMENT WITH MATCHING SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_1388
(2) 45° 4" BENDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1389
PROTECT EX. 8" DIP WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1390
REFER TO DEMO PLAN, CAP TEE (CONVERT TO 90° BEND)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1391
PROTECT EX. 8" DIP WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1392
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1393
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1394
DESIGNED:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1395
I hereby certify that this plan,

AutoCAD SHX Text_1396
specification, or report was

AutoCAD SHX Text_1397
prepared by me or under my

AutoCAD SHX Text_1398
direct supervision and that I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1399
am a duly Licensed

AutoCAD SHX Text_1400
under

AutoCAD SHX Text_1401
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1402
SCALE      IN      FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1403
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1404
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1405
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1406
the laws of the State of 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1407
PROJECT TEAM DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1408
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1409
MINNESOTA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1410
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1411
MK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1412
TLM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1413
4000651

AutoCAD SHX Text_1414
1315 MENDOTA HEIGHTS RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1415
MENDOTA HEIGHTS, MN 55120

AutoCAD SHX Text_1416
05-09-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1417
CITY SUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1418
54821

AutoCAD SHX Text_1419
License No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1420
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_1421
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1422
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1423
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1424
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1425
QUALITY ASSURANCE/CONTROL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1426
06-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1427
PROGRESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1428
06-30-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1429
06-16-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1430
PERMIT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1431
DANIEL SJOBLOM, PE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1432
07-01-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1433
WATER COMMENTS & CURB WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1434
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1435
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_1436
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_1437
PROPOSED STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1438
PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1439
PROPOSED WATERMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1440
PROPOSED SANITARY MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1441
PROPOSED BUTTERFLY/GATE VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1442
PROPOSED HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1443
EXISTING GATE VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1444
EXISTING HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1445
EXISTING WATERMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1446
EXISTING CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1447
EXISTING STORM MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1448
EXISTING STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1449
EXISTING SANITARY MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1450
EXISTING SANITARY SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1451
PROPOSED STORM CATCH BASIN /MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1452
EXISTING UTILITY REMOVAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1453
1. EXISTING UTILITIES, SERVICE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS SHALL BE VERIFIED IN EXISTING UTILITIES, SERVICE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS SHALL BE VERIFIED IN FIELD PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. 2. MAINTAIN A MIN. 18" VERTICAL SEPARATION AT ALL PIPE CROSSINGS.  LOWER MAINTAIN A MIN. 18" VERTICAL SEPARATION AT ALL PIPE CROSSINGS.  LOWER WATERMAIN AS NECESSARY W/ BENDS AND FITTINGS. WATER AND SANITARY SEWER LINES TO MAINTAIN 10' HORIZONTAL SEPARATION. 3. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL PERMITS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL PERMITS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION. 4. PROVIDE POLYSTYRENE INSULATION FOR ALL STORM SEWER AND WATERMAIN PROVIDE POLYSTYRENE INSULATION FOR ALL STORM SEWER AND WATERMAIN CROSSINGS WHERE VERTICAL OR HORIZONTAL SEPARATION IS LESS THAN 3'. 5. ALL UTILITY WORK WITHIN THE R.O.W. SHALL COMPLY WITH THE CITY OF MENDOTA ALL UTILITY WORK WITHIN THE R.O.W. SHALL COMPLY WITH THE CITY OF MENDOTA CITY OF MENDOTA HEIGHTS ENGINEERING GUIDELINES. ENGINEERING GUIDELINES. 6. NOTIFY GOPHER STATE ONE CALL 48 HOURS IN ADVANCE OF ANY UTILITY WORK. NOTIFY GOPHER STATE ONE CALL 48 HOURS IN ADVANCE OF ANY UTILITY WORK. 7. PROVIDE TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL IN COMPLIANCE WITH MNDOT "TEMPORARY PROVIDE TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL IN COMPLIANCE WITH MNDOT "TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL ZONE LAYOUTS-FIELD MANUAL" LATEST REVISION, FOR ANY CONSTRUCTION WITHIN PUBLIC R.O.W. 8. ALL STORM SEWER CASTINGS SHALL BE NEENAH OR APPROVED EQUAL. ALL STORM SEWER CASTINGS SHALL BE NEENAH OR APPROVED EQUAL. 9. WATERMAIN, SERVICES, AND VALVES SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH MINIMUM 8'-0' OF WATERMAIN, SERVICES, AND VALVES SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH MINIMUM 8'-0' OF COVER. 10. PIPE LENGTHS LISTED IN SCHEDULE ARE MEASURED FROM CENTER TO CENTER OF PIPE LENGTHS LISTED IN SCHEDULE ARE MEASURED FROM CENTER TO CENTER OF SHOWN STRUCTURES. 11. ALL FIRE HYDRANTS THROUGHOUT THE DEVELOPMENT SHALL INCORPORATE AN ALL FIRE HYDRANTS THROUGHOUT THE DEVELOPMENT SHALL INCORPORATE AN AFC-WATEROUS STORZ NOZZLE. THE HYDRANT PUMPER NOZZLE SHALL BE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THE FIRE HYDRANTS AND MUST BE FURNISHED BY THE MANUFACTURER. STORZ ADAPTERS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED. FIRE HYDRANTS SHALL MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE STANDARDS FOR THE INSTALLATION OF WATER MAINS FROM SAINT PAUL REGIONAL WATER SERVICES. 12. THE FOLLOWING WORK IN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL BE PERFORMED BY SPRWS THE FOLLOWING WORK IN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL BE PERFORMED BY SPRWS ON AN ACTUAL COST BASIS: (1) CONNECTION TO THE PUBLIC MAIN FOR ANY INSTALLATION THAT IS OFF OF A PUBLIC MAIN LARGER THAN 12” OR OF MATERIAL OR OF MATERIAL NOT MADE OF IRON. (2) INSPECTION OF CONTRACTOR INSTALLED MAINS AND SERVICES.  (3) CONSTRUCTION OF TEMPORARY SERVICES IF NECESSARY.  AN ESTIMATE WILL BE PROVIDED FOR THIS WORK AND PAYMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF THE ESTIMATE MUST BE RECEIVED BEFORE THE WORK CAN BE SCHEDULED. ALL OTHER WORK, INCLUDING EXCAVATION, RESTORATION, CUT OFFS, AND PIPEWORK TO BE PERFORMED BY THE CONTRACTOR. 13. WATER SERVICES TO BE INSTALLED ACCORDING TO SPRWS "STANDARDS FOR THE WATER SERVICES TO BE INSTALLED ACCORDING TO SPRWS "STANDARDS FOR THE INSTALLATION OF WATER MAINS."  14. A FOUR-SIDED TRENCH BOX IS REQUIRED ON ALL EXCAVATIONS DEEPER THAN 5 A FOUR-SIDED TRENCH BOX IS REQUIRED ON ALL EXCAVATIONS DEEPER THAN 5 FEET WHERE UNDERGROUND WORK OR INSPECTION IS TO BE PERFORMED BY SPRWS. FOR ALL WET TAPS TO BE PERFORMED BY SPRWS, A MINIMUM TRENCH BOX SIZE OF 8 FEET HIGH X 8 FEET WIDE X 10 FEET LONG IS REQUIRED.  LADDERS ARE REQUIRED AND MUST EXTEND 3 FEET ABOVE THE SURFACE OF THE TRENCH. SIDEWALKS, PAVEMENTS, DUCTS AND APPURTENANT STRUCTURES SHALL NOT BE UNDERMINED UNLESS A SUPPORT SYSTEM OR ANOTHER METHOD OF PROTECTION IS PROVIDED.  TRENCHES IN EXCESS OF 20 FEET IN DEPTH MUST BE SIGNED OFF BY A REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER. EXCAVATED MATERIAL MUST BE KEPT A MINIMUM OF 2 FEET FROM THE EDGE OF THE TRENCH.  15. SERVICE CONNECTIONS SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH 8 FEET OF COVER AS PER THE SERVICE CONNECTIONS SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH 8 FEET OF COVER AS PER THE ESTABLISHED GRADE FROM THE MAIN TO THE PROPERTY LINE OR, IF APPLICABLE, TO THE UTILITY EASEMENT LINE. WHEN SOLID ROCK CONDITIONS ARE ENCOUNTERED, WATER SERVICES MAY BE INSTALLED WITH 6.5 FEET OF COVER. AT THIS DEPTH, THE NEED FOR INSULATION WILL BE DETERMINED BY SPRWS INSPECTORS.  16. ALL PIPE 2” AND SMALLER MUST BE TYPE K COPPER. PIPE MATERIAL FOR 8” ALL PIPE 2” AND SMALLER MUST BE TYPE K COPPER. PIPE MATERIAL FOR 8” AND SMALLER MUST BE TYPE K COPPER. PIPE MATERIAL FOR 8” DUCTILE IRON PIPE MUST BE CLASS 52, PIPE MATERIAL FOR 6” AND 4” DUCTILE AND 4” DUCTILE DUCTILE IRON PIPE MUST BE CLASS 53. THE EXTERIOR OF DUCTILE IRON PIPE SHALL BE COATED WITH A LAYER OF ARC-SPRAYED ZINC PER ISO 8179.  THE INTERIOR CEMENT MORTAR LINING SHALL BE APPLIED WITHOUT ASPHALT SEAL COAT. PIPE MUST BE WRAPPED IN V-BIO POLYWRAP ENCASEMENT AND SHALL BE INSTALLED UTILIZING MODIFIED METHOD A AS RECOMMENDED BY DIPRA.  ENCASEMENT SHALL BE TAPED AT EACH JOINT AND AROUND THE MIDDLE OF THE PIPE. 17. WHERE A WATER SERVICE OR MAIN PASSES WITHIN 3 FEET ABOVE OR BELOW A WHERE A WATER SERVICE OR MAIN PASSES WITHIN 3 FEET ABOVE OR BELOW A STORM SEWER, INSULATION SHALL BE PLACED BOTH OVER THE TOP OF THE WATER PIPE AND BETWEEN THE WATER PIPE AND THE STORM SEWER. REFER TO STANDARD PLATE D-10. WHERE A WATER MAIN OR SERVICE IS WITHIN 6 FEET OF A CATCH BASIN, MANHOLE OR OTHER OUTLET THAT IS SUBJECT TO COLD, INSULATION SHALL BE PLACED BETWEEN THE STRUCTURE AND THE WATER PIPE. 18. REFER TO SPRWS "STANDARDS FOR THE INSTALLATION OF WATER MAINS" STANDARD REFER TO SPRWS "STANDARDS FOR THE INSTALLATION OF WATER MAINS" STANDARD PLATE D-11 FOR RESTRAINED PIPE REQUIREMENT.  19. ALL WATER SERVICE VALVE BOXES WITHIN CONSTRUCTION AREA MUST BE EXPOSED ALL WATER SERVICE VALVE BOXES WITHIN CONSTRUCTION AREA MUST BE EXPOSED AND BROUGHT TO GRADE UPON COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION.  20. ALL PIPE WORK INSIDE OF PROPERTY TO BE PERFORMED BY A PLUMBER ALL PIPE WORK INSIDE OF PROPERTY TO BE PERFORMED BY A PLUMBER LICENSED BY THE STATE OF MINNESOTA AND CERTIFIED BY THE CITY OF SAINT PAUL. SPRWS REQUIRES SEPARATE OUTSIDE AND INSIDE PLUMBING PERMITS FOR EACH NEW WATER SERVICE.  21. ALL UNUSED EXISTING WATER SERVICES TO BE CUT OFF BY THE CONTRACTOR AT ALL UNUSED EXISTING WATER SERVICES TO BE CUT OFF BY THE CONTRACTOR AT THE MAIN. EXCAVATION AND RESTORATION BY CONTRACTOR.  CUT OFFS MUST BE PERFORMED PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED TIME OF NEW INSTALLATION.  22. SERVICES THAT ARE TO BECOME UNUSED UPON COMPLETION OF THE NEW SERVICE SERVICES THAT ARE TO BECOME UNUSED UPON COMPLETION OF THE NEW SERVICE CONNECTION MUST BE CUT OFF BY THE CONTRACTOR AT THE MAIN PRIOR TO THE TURN ON OF THE NEW SERVICES.  EXCAVATION AND RESTORATION BY CONTRACTOR. 23. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING ALL EXCAVATION AND THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING ALL EXCAVATION AND OBSTRUCTION PERMITS REQUIRED BY ANY GOVERNING AUTHORITY.  24. CONTRACTOR MUST MAINTAIN AS-BUILT PLANS THROUGHOUT CONSTRUCTION AND CONTRACTOR MUST MAINTAIN AS-BUILT PLANS THROUGHOUT CONSTRUCTION AND SUBMIT THESE PLANS TO SAINT PAUL REGIONAL WATER SERVICES ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT UPON COMPLETION OF WORK VIA EMAIL AT: WATER-PLUMBINGPERMITAPP@CI.STPAUL.MN.US

AutoCAD SHX Text_1454
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_1455
PROPOSED WATER VALVE MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1456
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_1457
OCS 201

AutoCAD SHX Text_1458
RIM:852.4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1459
12" RCP INV IN: 842.0 @ 0%

AutoCAD SHX Text_1460
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_1461
EX. 12" RCP INV:845.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1462
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1463
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1464
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1465
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1466
1



85
0

85
2

85
2

856
854

S
TO

R
M

W
A

TE
R

 P
O

N
D

PROPOSED BUILDING
623' x 280'

174,288  S.F.

Alignment - (1) PROFILE

Alignment - (1) PROFILE

C-5.1

C
O

B
A

LT
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 C
E

N
TE

R

P
E

R
M

IT
 S

E
T

W
A

TE
R

M
A

IN
 P

LA
N

 A
N

D
 P

R
O

FI
LE

733 Marquette Avenue

Minneapolis, MN 55402
612.758.3080

www.alliant-inc.com

Suite 700

UTILITY NOTES:

” 

” ”
” ” 

Page 59 of 107

AutoCAD SHX Text_1467
NWL:843.5 HWL:852.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1468
845

AutoCAD SHX Text_1469
852

AutoCAD SHX Text_1470
866

AutoCAD SHX Text_1471
868

AutoCAD SHX Text_1472
870

AutoCAD SHX Text_1473
872

AutoCAD SHX Text_1474
874

AutoCAD SHX Text_1475
876

AutoCAD SHX Text_1476
878

AutoCAD SHX Text_1477
870

AutoCAD SHX Text_1478
868

AutoCAD SHX Text_1479
866

AutoCAD SHX Text_1480
864

AutoCAD SHX Text_1481
866

AutoCAD SHX Text_1482
862

AutoCAD SHX Text_1483
864

AutoCAD SHX Text_1484
862

AutoCAD SHX Text_1485
860

AutoCAD SHX Text_1486
858

AutoCAD SHX Text_1487
856

AutoCAD SHX Text_1488
854

AutoCAD SHX Text_1489
860

AutoCAD SHX Text_1490
862

AutoCAD SHX Text_1491
864

AutoCAD SHX Text_1492
858

AutoCAD SHX Text_1493
860

AutoCAD SHX Text_1494
862

AutoCAD SHX Text_1495
864

AutoCAD SHX Text_1496
866

AutoCAD SHX Text_1497
862

AutoCAD SHX Text_1498
866

AutoCAD SHX Text_1499
864

AutoCAD SHX Text_1500
872

AutoCAD SHX Text_1501
870

AutoCAD SHX Text_1502
870

AutoCAD SHX Text_1503
866

AutoCAD SHX Text_1504
864

AutoCAD SHX Text_1505
866

AutoCAD SHX Text_1506
866

AutoCAD SHX Text_1507
CBMH 2 W/ 4FT SUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1508
CB 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1509
RD 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1510
MH 101

AutoCAD SHX Text_1511
CBMH 5 W. 4FT SUMP REBUILD EX. MH EX 24" INV SW 854.92 INV E: PER SCHEDULE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1512
RD 2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1513
RD 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_1514
CBMH 12

AutoCAD SHX Text_1515
CBMH 13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1516
RD 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1517
CBMH 14 W/ 4FT SUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1518
FES 15

AutoCAD SHX Text_1519
CB 9

AutoCAD SHX Text_1520
CBMH 11

AutoCAD SHX Text_1521
CBMH 10  8" INV SE: 866.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1522
REBUILD MH 100 EX. RIM:864.58 30" INV E: 852.23 (EX. PIPE) INV W/N: PER SCHEDULE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1523
PROTECT EX MH  EX. RIM:870.18 EX. 30" INV S: 854.13 EX. 30" INV W: 854.08 EX. 24" INV NE: 854.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_1524
PROTECT EX. 24" RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1525
FES 200 (SUBMERGED FOR SKIMMABLES) 40 LF 12" RCP @ 0%

AutoCAD SHX Text_1526
OCS 201 ON EXISTING 12" RCP 12" INV NW:845.0 (EX. PIPE) 12" INV E:842.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1527
EX. HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1528
EX. HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1529
EX. HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1530
EX. HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1531
PROTECT EXISTING FIBER OPTIC

AutoCAD SHX Text_1532
HYDRANT WITH WATEROUS STORZ NOZZLE PER SPRWS STANDARDS 4 LF 6"DIP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1533
HYDRANT WITH BOLLARDS 8 LF 6" DIP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1534
HYDRANT WITH WATEROUS STORZ NOZZLE PER SPRWS STANDARDS, TYP., 240 LF 6" DIP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1535
8"x8"x6" TEE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1536
8" FIRE SERVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1537
8"x6" TEE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1538
CB 8

AutoCAD SHX Text_1539
BULKHEAD EXISTING SW 8" INV, CORE CUT NEW NW 8" INVERT AT 867.0 (ASSUMED TO BE EXISTING RETAINING WALL DRAINAGE)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1540
PROTECT EXISTING FIBER OPTIC LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1541
PROTECT EXISTING FIBER OPTIC LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1542
PROTECT EXISTING FIBER OPTIC LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1543
38LF 8" HDPE @ 1%

AutoCAD SHX Text_1544
FES 102 W/ RIPRAP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1545
CB 4A 8" INV E:862.0 12" INV SW:862.0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1546
CB 4

AutoCAD SHX Text_1547
70LF 8" SCH 40 PVC @ 1% WITH 6"x8" WYES START INV:862.7

AutoCAD SHX Text_1548
(3) AREA DRAINS RIM:867.7 TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1549
84LF 12" HDPE @ 0.5%

AutoCAD SHX Text_1550
12" STORM @ 8FT DEPTH. LOWER WM UNDER STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1551
LOWER WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1552
4" DOMESTIC SERVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1553
562 LF 4" DIP DEDICATED DOMESTIC SERVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1554
6" DIP WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1555
8" DIP WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1556
CONNECT TO EX. 8" DIP WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1557
893LF 8" DIP FIRE SERVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1558
(2) 45° 8" BENDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1559
(2) 45° 8" BENDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1560
(2) 45° 6" BENDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1561
(2) 45° 4" BENDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1562
CONNECT TO EXISTING DIP WITH 4" TEE, SAWCUT AND RESTORE PAVMENT WITH MATCHING SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_1563
(2) 45° 4" BENDS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1564
PROTECT EX. 8" DIP WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1565
REFER TO DEMO PLAN, CAP TEE (CONVERT TO 90° BEND)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1566
PROTECT EX. 8" DIP WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1567
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1568
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1569
DESIGNED:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1570
I hereby certify that this plan,

AutoCAD SHX Text_1571
specification, or report was

AutoCAD SHX Text_1572
prepared by me or under my

AutoCAD SHX Text_1573
direct supervision and that I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1574
am a duly Licensed

AutoCAD SHX Text_1575
under

AutoCAD SHX Text_1576
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1577
SCALE      IN      FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1578
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1579
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1580
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1581
the laws of the State of 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1582
PROJECT TEAM DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1583
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1584
MINNESOTA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1585
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1586
MK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1587
TLM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1588
4000651

AutoCAD SHX Text_1589
1315 MENDOTA HEIGHTS RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1590
MENDOTA HEIGHTS, MN 55120

AutoCAD SHX Text_1591
05-09-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1592
CITY SUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1593
54821

AutoCAD SHX Text_1594
License No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1595
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_1596
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1597
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1598
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1599
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1600
QUALITY ASSURANCE/CONTROL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1601
06-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1602
PROGRESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1603
06-30-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1604
06-16-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1605
PERMIT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1606
DANIEL SJOBLOM, PE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1607
07-01-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1608
WATER COMMENTS & CURB WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1609
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1610
1. EXISTING UTILITIES, SERVICE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS SHALL BE VERIFIED IN EXISTING UTILITIES, SERVICE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS SHALL BE VERIFIED IN FIELD PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. 2. MAINTAIN A MIN. 18" VERTICAL SEPARATION AT ALL PIPE CROSSINGS.  LOWER MAINTAIN A MIN. 18" VERTICAL SEPARATION AT ALL PIPE CROSSINGS.  LOWER WATERMAIN AS NECESSARY W/ BENDS AND FITTINGS. WATER AND SANITARY SEWER LINES TO MAINTAIN 10' HORIZONTAL SEPARATION. 3. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL PERMITS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL PERMITS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION. 4. PROVIDE POLYSTYRENE INSULATION FOR ALL STORM SEWER AND WATERMAIN PROVIDE POLYSTYRENE INSULATION FOR ALL STORM SEWER AND WATERMAIN CROSSINGS WHERE VERTICAL OR HORIZONTAL SEPARATION IS LESS THAN 3'. 5. ALL UTILITY WORK WITHIN THE R.O.W. SHALL COMPLY WITH THE CITY OF MENDOTA ALL UTILITY WORK WITHIN THE R.O.W. SHALL COMPLY WITH THE CITY OF MENDOTA CITY OF MENDOTA HEIGHTS ENGINEERING GUIDELINES. ENGINEERING GUIDELINES. 6. NOTIFY GOPHER STATE ONE CALL 48 HOURS IN ADVANCE OF ANY UTILITY WORK. NOTIFY GOPHER STATE ONE CALL 48 HOURS IN ADVANCE OF ANY UTILITY WORK. 7. PROVIDE TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL IN COMPLIANCE WITH MNDOT "TEMPORARY PROVIDE TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL IN COMPLIANCE WITH MNDOT "TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL ZONE LAYOUTS-FIELD MANUAL" LATEST REVISION, FOR ANY CONSTRUCTION WITHIN PUBLIC R.O.W. 8. ALL STORM SEWER CASTINGS SHALL BE NEENAH OR APPROVED EQUAL. ALL STORM SEWER CASTINGS SHALL BE NEENAH OR APPROVED EQUAL. 9. WATERMAIN, SERVICES, AND VALVES SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH MINIMUM 8'-0' OF WATERMAIN, SERVICES, AND VALVES SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH MINIMUM 8'-0' OF COVER. 10. PIPE LENGTHS LISTED IN SCHEDULE ARE MEASURED FROM CENTER TO CENTER OF PIPE LENGTHS LISTED IN SCHEDULE ARE MEASURED FROM CENTER TO CENTER OF SHOWN STRUCTURES. 11. ALL FIRE HYDRANTS THROUGHOUT THE DEVELOPMENT SHALL INCORPORATE AN ALL FIRE HYDRANTS THROUGHOUT THE DEVELOPMENT SHALL INCORPORATE AN AFC-WATEROUS STORZ NOZZLE. THE HYDRANT PUMPER NOZZLE SHALL BE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THE FIRE HYDRANTS AND MUST BE FURNISHED BY THE MANUFACTURER. STORZ ADAPTERS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED. FIRE HYDRANTS SHALL MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE STANDARDS FOR THE INSTALLATION OF WATER MAINS FROM SAINT PAUL REGIONAL WATER SERVICES. 12. THE FOLLOWING WORK IN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL BE PERFORMED BY SPRWS THE FOLLOWING WORK IN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL BE PERFORMED BY SPRWS ON AN ACTUAL COST BASIS: (1) CONNECTION TO THE PUBLIC MAIN FOR ANY INSTALLATION THAT IS OFF OF A PUBLIC MAIN LARGER THAN 12” OR OF MATERIAL OR OF MATERIAL NOT MADE OF IRON. (2) INSPECTION OF CONTRACTOR INSTALLED MAINS AND SERVICES.  (3) CONSTRUCTION OF TEMPORARY SERVICES IF NECESSARY.  AN ESTIMATE WILL BE PROVIDED FOR THIS WORK AND PAYMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF THE ESTIMATE MUST BE RECEIVED BEFORE THE WORK CAN BE SCHEDULED. ALL OTHER WORK, INCLUDING EXCAVATION, RESTORATION, CUT OFFS, AND PIPEWORK TO BE PERFORMED BY THE CONTRACTOR. 13. WATER SERVICES TO BE INSTALLED ACCORDING TO SPRWS "STANDARDS FOR THE WATER SERVICES TO BE INSTALLED ACCORDING TO SPRWS "STANDARDS FOR THE INSTALLATION OF WATER MAINS."  14. A FOUR-SIDED TRENCH BOX IS REQUIRED ON ALL EXCAVATIONS DEEPER THAN 5 A FOUR-SIDED TRENCH BOX IS REQUIRED ON ALL EXCAVATIONS DEEPER THAN 5 FEET WHERE UNDERGROUND WORK OR INSPECTION IS TO BE PERFORMED BY SPRWS. FOR ALL WET TAPS TO BE PERFORMED BY SPRWS, A MINIMUM TRENCH BOX SIZE OF 8 FEET HIGH X 8 FEET WIDE X 10 FEET LONG IS REQUIRED.  LADDERS ARE REQUIRED AND MUST EXTEND 3 FEET ABOVE THE SURFACE OF THE TRENCH. SIDEWALKS, PAVEMENTS, DUCTS AND APPURTENANT STRUCTURES SHALL NOT BE UNDERMINED UNLESS A SUPPORT SYSTEM OR ANOTHER METHOD OF PROTECTION IS PROVIDED.  TRENCHES IN EXCESS OF 20 FEET IN DEPTH MUST BE SIGNED OFF BY A REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER. EXCAVATED MATERIAL MUST BE KEPT A MINIMUM OF 2 FEET FROM THE EDGE OF THE TRENCH.  15. SERVICE CONNECTIONS SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH 8 FEET OF COVER AS PER THE SERVICE CONNECTIONS SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH 8 FEET OF COVER AS PER THE ESTABLISHED GRADE FROM THE MAIN TO THE PROPERTY LINE OR, IF APPLICABLE, TO THE UTILITY EASEMENT LINE. WHEN SOLID ROCK CONDITIONS ARE ENCOUNTERED, WATER SERVICES MAY BE INSTALLED WITH 6.5 FEET OF COVER. AT THIS DEPTH, THE NEED FOR INSULATION WILL BE DETERMINED BY SPRWS INSPECTORS.  16. ALL PIPE 2” AND SMALLER MUST BE TYPE K COPPER. PIPE MATERIAL FOR 8” ALL PIPE 2” AND SMALLER MUST BE TYPE K COPPER. PIPE MATERIAL FOR 8” AND SMALLER MUST BE TYPE K COPPER. PIPE MATERIAL FOR 8” DUCTILE IRON PIPE MUST BE CLASS 52, PIPE MATERIAL FOR 6” AND 4” DUCTILE AND 4” DUCTILE DUCTILE IRON PIPE MUST BE CLASS 53. THE EXTERIOR OF DUCTILE IRON PIPE SHALL BE COATED WITH A LAYER OF ARC-SPRAYED ZINC PER ISO 8179.  THE INTERIOR CEMENT MORTAR LINING SHALL BE APPLIED WITHOUT ASPHALT SEAL COAT. PIPE MUST BE WRAPPED IN V-BIO POLYWRAP ENCASEMENT AND SHALL BE INSTALLED UTILIZING MODIFIED METHOD A AS RECOMMENDED BY DIPRA.  ENCASEMENT SHALL BE TAPED AT EACH JOINT AND AROUND THE MIDDLE OF THE PIPE. 17. WHERE A WATER SERVICE OR MAIN PASSES WITHIN 3 FEET ABOVE OR BELOW A WHERE A WATER SERVICE OR MAIN PASSES WITHIN 3 FEET ABOVE OR BELOW A STORM SEWER, INSULATION SHALL BE PLACED BOTH OVER THE TOP OF THE WATER PIPE AND BETWEEN THE WATER PIPE AND THE STORM SEWER. REFER TO STANDARD PLATE D-10. WHERE A WATER MAIN OR SERVICE IS WITHIN 6 FEET OF A CATCH BASIN, MANHOLE OR OTHER OUTLET THAT IS SUBJECT TO COLD, INSULATION SHALL BE PLACED BETWEEN THE STRUCTURE AND THE WATER PIPE. 18. REFER TO SPRWS "STANDARDS FOR THE INSTALLATION OF WATER MAINS" STANDARD REFER TO SPRWS "STANDARDS FOR THE INSTALLATION OF WATER MAINS" STANDARD PLATE D-11 FOR RESTRAINED PIPE REQUIREMENT.  19. ALL WATER SERVICE VALVE BOXES WITHIN CONSTRUCTION AREA MUST BE EXPOSED ALL WATER SERVICE VALVE BOXES WITHIN CONSTRUCTION AREA MUST BE EXPOSED AND BROUGHT TO GRADE UPON COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION.  20. ALL PIPE WORK INSIDE OF PROPERTY TO BE PERFORMED BY A PLUMBER ALL PIPE WORK INSIDE OF PROPERTY TO BE PERFORMED BY A PLUMBER LICENSED BY THE STATE OF MINNESOTA AND CERTIFIED BY THE CITY OF SAINT PAUL. SPRWS REQUIRES SEPARATE OUTSIDE AND INSIDE PLUMBING PERMITS FOR EACH NEW WATER SERVICE.  21. ALL UNUSED EXISTING WATER SERVICES TO BE CUT OFF BY THE CONTRACTOR AT ALL UNUSED EXISTING WATER SERVICES TO BE CUT OFF BY THE CONTRACTOR AT THE MAIN. EXCAVATION AND RESTORATION BY CONTRACTOR.  CUT OFFS MUST BE PERFORMED PRIOR TO THE SCHEDULED TIME OF NEW INSTALLATION.  22. SERVICES THAT ARE TO BECOME UNUSED UPON COMPLETION OF THE NEW SERVICE SERVICES THAT ARE TO BECOME UNUSED UPON COMPLETION OF THE NEW SERVICE CONNECTION MUST BE CUT OFF BY THE CONTRACTOR AT THE MAIN PRIOR TO THE TURN ON OF THE NEW SERVICES.  EXCAVATION AND RESTORATION BY CONTRACTOR. 23. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING ALL EXCAVATION AND THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING ALL EXCAVATION AND OBSTRUCTION PERMITS REQUIRED BY ANY GOVERNING AUTHORITY.  24. CONTRACTOR MUST MAINTAIN AS-BUILT PLANS THROUGHOUT CONSTRUCTION AND CONTRACTOR MUST MAINTAIN AS-BUILT PLANS THROUGHOUT CONSTRUCTION AND SUBMIT THESE PLANS TO SAINT PAUL REGIONAL WATER SERVICES ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT UPON COMPLETION OF WORK VIA EMAIL AT: WATER-PLUMBINGPERMITAPP@CI.STPAUL.MN.US

AutoCAD SHX Text_1611
LOWER 4"DIP UNDER PROPOSED STORM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1612
CONNECT TO MAIN WITH 4" TEE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1613
8"DIP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1614
8"DIP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1615
EX. 8"DIP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1616
CONNECT TO EX. 8"DIP

AutoCAD SHX Text_1617
EX. 8"DIP TEE, CONVERT TO 90°

AutoCAD SHX Text_1618
EX. PUBLIC SANITARY, 4FT SEPARATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_1619
LOWER 4" WM UNDER TWO EX. STORM CROSSINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1620
EX. STORM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1621
APPROX. EX. FIBER, GAS, ELEC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1622
EX. STORM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1623
PROPOSED STORM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1624
PROPOSED STORM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1625
PROPOSED STORM, SEE NOTE 17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1626
PROPOSED STORM, SEE NOTE 17

AutoCAD SHX Text_1627
PROPOSED STORM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1628
PROPOSED STORM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1629
PROPOSED GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1630
EXISTING GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1631
PROPOSED GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1632
EXISTING GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1633
4"DIP



C-6.0

C
O

B
A

LT
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 C
E

N
TE

R

P
E

R
M

IT
 S

E
T

D
E

TA
IL

 S
H

E
E

T 
1

733 Marquette Avenue

Minneapolis, MN 55402
612.758.3080

www.alliant-inc.com

Suite 700

EXPANSION JOINT DETAIL
NOT TO SCALE

7

4
PEDESTRIAN CURB RAMP
NOT TO SCALE

ACCESSIBLE PARKING SIGN
NOT TO SCALE

5

FINISHED GRADE
(SURFACE VARIES)

PAVED SURFACE
(PAVEMENT TYPE VARIES)

COMPACTED AGGREGATE
BASE SIZE NO. 53 AT 95%
PROCTOR DENSITY

COMPACTED  SUBGRADE

13
 1

/2
"

5"

8"

7"

12"

CONCRETE CURB
& GUTTER

6"

R3"

R3"

1/2" PER FT.

R1
2"

R1 2"

6" 2"

B612 CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER OUTFALL
NOT TO SCALE

2

1.5" BITUMINOUS WEAR COURSE
PER BRAUN GEOTECHNICAL REPORT
MNDOT 2360 SPWEB240C

MNDOT SPEC 2357 TACK COAT

1.5" BITUMINOUS BASE COURSE
PER BRAUN GEOTECHNICAL REPORT
MNDOT 2360 SPWEB240C

6" AGGREGATE BASE PER MNDOT
CLASS V IN SECTION 3138

2.5" BITUMINOUS WEAR COURSE
MNDOT 2360 SPWEB540E

MNDOT SPEC 2357 TACK COAT

2.5" BITUMINOUS BASE COURSE
MNDOT 2360 SPNWEB530B

8" AGGREGATE BASE PER MNDOT

CLASS V IN SECTION 3138
APPROVED SUBGRADE

APPROVED SUBGRADE

LIGHT DUTY
ASPHALT PAVEMENT

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT
PAVEMENT

4" 4000 PSI CONCRETE PER MNDOT 2301

6" AGGREGATE BASE PER MNDOT
CLASS V IN SECTION 3138

6" 4500 PSI AIR ENTRAINED CONCRETE

6" AGGREGATE BASE PER MNDOT
CLASS V IN SECTION 3138

APPROVED SUBGRADE

APPROVED SUBGRADE

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE
PAVEMENT

NOTE: AN ADEQUATE NUMBER OF LONGITUDINAL AND TRANSVERSE
CONTROL JOINTS SHOULD BE PLACED IN THE PAVEMENT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH ACI AND OR AASHTO REQUIREMENTS. EXPANSION
JOINTS MUST BE FULL DEPTH AND SHOULD BE USED TO ISOLATE
FIXED OBJECTS ABUTTING OR WITHIN THE PAVED AREA.

REFER TO GEOTECHNICAL REPORT FOR ALL
PAVEMENT, SUBGRADE PREPARATION, AND

COMPACTION REQUIREMENTS

3
PAVEMENT SECTIONS
NOT TO SCALE

6
STEEL TUBE CONCRETE BOLLARD
NOT TO SCALE

B612 CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER
NOT TO SCALE

8
MODULAR CONCRETE BLOCK RETAINING WALL 
NOT TO SCALE

1 SURMOUNTABLE CURB AND GUTTER 
NOT TO SCALE

2.2

Page 60 of 107

AutoCAD SHX Text_1634
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1635
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1636
DESIGNED:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1637
I hereby certify that this plan,

AutoCAD SHX Text_1638
specification, or report was

AutoCAD SHX Text_1639
prepared by me or under my

AutoCAD SHX Text_1640
direct supervision and that I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1641
am a duly Licensed

AutoCAD SHX Text_1642
under

AutoCAD SHX Text_1643
the laws of the State of 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1644
PROJECT TEAM DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1645
MINNESOTA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1646
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1647
MK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1648
TLM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1649
4000651

AutoCAD SHX Text_1650
1315 MENDOTA HEIGHTS RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1651
MENDOTA HEIGHTS, MN 55120

AutoCAD SHX Text_1652
05-09-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1653
CITY SUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1654
54821

AutoCAD SHX Text_1655
License No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1656
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_1657
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1658
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1659
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1660
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1661
QUALITY ASSURANCE/CONTROL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1662
06-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1663
PROGRESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1664
06-30-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1665
06-16-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1666
PERMIT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1667
DANIEL SJOBLOM, PE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1668
07-01-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1669
WATER COMMENTS & CURB WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1670
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1671
SILICONE SEALANT, SLIGHTLY LOWER THAN JOINT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1672
1/2" PREFORMED EXPANSION

AutoCAD SHX Text_1673
JOINT MATERIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1674
BOND BREAK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1675
2% MAX. SLOPE ALL DIRECTIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1676
2% MAX. SLOPE ALL DIRECTIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1677
NOTE: DETECTABLE WARNING SURFACE (TRUNCATED DOMES) ARE NOT TO BE INSTALLED AT THE ACCESSIBLE CURB RAMPS AND ARE NOT REQUIRED ON PRIVATE DEVELOPMENTS, PER 2010 ADA STANDARDS FOR ACCESSIBLE DESIGN.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1678
NOTE:   1:6 VAN ACCESSIBLE SPACES ARE REQUIRED.   NOTE:  ADHERE TO MNDOT "PARALLEL" :  ADHERE TO MNDOT "PARALLEL" PEDESTRIAN CURB RAMP DETAIL 

http://www.TEXASCODEREVIEW.COM
http://www.TEXASCODEREVIEW.COM
http://www.TEXASCODEREVIEW.COM
http://www.TEXASCODEREVIEW.COM
http://www.TEXASCODEREVIEW.COM
http://www.TEXASCODEREVIEW.COM
http://www.TEXASCODEREVIEW.COM
http://www.TEXASCODEREVIEW.COM
http://www.TEXASCODEREVIEW.COM
http://www.TEXASCODEREVIEW.COM
AutoCAD SHX Text_1679
8.3% MAX.  (1:12)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1680
8.3% MAX.  (1:12)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1681
VAN  ACCESSIBLE STALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1682
STANDARD ACCESSIBLE STALL

http://www.TEXASCODEREVIEW.COM
http://www.TEXASCODEREVIEW.COM
http://www.TEXASCODEREVIEW.COM
http://www.TEXASCODEREVIEW.COM
AutoCAD SHX Text_1683
VAN ACCESSIBLE PARKING SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1684
ACCESS AISLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1685
2% MAX. SLOPE ALL DIRECTIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1686
2% MAX. SLOPE ALL DIRECTIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1687
2% MAX. SLOPE ALL DIRECTIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1688
2% MAX. SLOPE ALL DIRECTIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1689
SEE SITE PLAN FOR EXACT LAYOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1690
STANDARD ACCESSIBLE PARKING SIGN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1691
36" MIN. LANDING 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1692
SIDEWALK 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1693
SIDEWALK 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1694
6' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1695
8' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1696
8' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1697
8' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1698
VAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1699
ACCESSIBLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1700
RESERVED

AutoCAD SHX Text_1701
PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1702
THIS AREA IS FOR LOCAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1703
CODES, NOTICES, FINES,

AutoCAD SHX Text_1704
ETC.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1705
HANDICAP SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1706
NOTE: VAN ACCESSIBLE SIGN NOT REQUIRED ON STANDARD STALLS  

AutoCAD SHX Text_1707
GALVANIZED METAL SIGN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1708
FISHED GRADE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1709
NOTE: DETAIL IS MEANT AS A GENERAL GUIDELINE REFER TO LOCAL MUNICIPALITY FOR SIGN TYPE VERBAGE AND DIMENSIONS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1710
CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1711
SIGNS SHALL BE LOCATED SO THAT THEY CANNOT BE OBSCURED BY A VEHICLE PARKED IN THE SPACE.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1712
60" MIN - 66" MAX

AutoCAD SHX Text_1713
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text_1714
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text_1715
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text_1716
3"

AutoCAD SHX Text_1717
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text_1718
4' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1719
6' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1720
36" MIN. LANDING 

http://www.TEXASCODEREVIEW.COM
http://www.TEXASCODEREVIEW.COM
AutoCAD SHX Text_1721
NOTE:        ALL ADA ACCESSIBILITY SIGNS TO BE A MAXIMUM OF 96" AWAY FROM HEAD OF PARKING STALLS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1722
36"

AutoCAD SHX Text_1723
6" ROUND STEEL PIPE BOLLARD CONCRETE FILLED

AutoCAD SHX Text_1724
EXPANSION JOINT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1725
BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1726
48"

AutoCAD SHX Text_1727
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text_1728
20" DIA. FOOTING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1729
2"R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1730
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text_1731
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text_1732
FINISHED GRADE (VARIES)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1733
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text_1734
3/4" PER 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1735
FOOT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1736
7"

AutoCAD SHX Text_1737
2"R

AutoCAD SHX Text_1738
COMPACTED OR UNDISTURBED SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1739
COMPACTED DOT CLASS V AGGREGATE BASE AT 95% PROCTOR DENSITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1740
PAVED SURFACE (PVMT TYPE VARIES)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1741
CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1742
SLOPE MAY VARY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1743
SLEEVE FOR PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1744
(PVC OR SIMILAR)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1745
WALL BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1746
AGGREGATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1747
FREE DRAINING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1748
EXCAVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_1749
10.6

AutoCAD SHX Text_1750
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_1751
D VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text_1752
GEOSYNTHETIC REINFORCEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1753
6" MINIMUM COMPACTED

AutoCAD SHX Text_1754
DRAIN TILE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1755
INSTALL SLEEVES WITH WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1756
TO PREVENT DAMAGE TO

AutoCAD SHX Text_1757
GEOSYNTHETIC REINFORCEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1758
COORDINATE FENCE TYPE W/ ARCHITECTURAL PLANS 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1759
ALSO REFER TO SEGMENTAL RETAINING WALL SPEC. SECTION 32 3223 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1760
REFER TO STRUCTURAL ENGINEER'S DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS TAKE PRECEDENT OVER THIS DETAIL   



866

C-6.1

C
O

B
A

LT
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 C
E

N
TE

R

P
E

R
M

IT
 S

E
T

D
E

TA
IL

 S
H

E
E

T 
2

733 Marquette Avenue

Minneapolis, MN 55402
612.758.3080

www.alliant-inc.com

Suite 700

1
END OF LINE CLEANOUT
NOT TO SCALE 2

IN LINE CLEANOUT
NOT TO SCALE

3
WATERMAIN PIPE BEDDING
NOT TO SCALE

4
12" CONCRETE PLUME
NOT TO SCALE

5
MNDOT RIPRAP
NOT TO SCALE

SECTION

PLAN VIEW

ENLARGEMENT

GRASSPAVE2 DETAIL
6

LANE MARKERS FOR GRASSPAVE AREA
7

GRASSPAVE2 AT TRAIL AND SIDEWALK
8

SECTION

PLAN VIEW

CONCRETE PAVEMENT IN
SPILLWAY SEE DETAIL 6
THIS PAGE

CONDITIONS VARY AT
BACK OF CURB SEE SITE
PLAN SHEET C-3.3

INSTANCE OF
CONCRETE SPILLWAYS

FINISHED GRADE
(SURFACE VARIES)

COMPACTED AGGREGATE
BASE SIZE NO. 53 AT 95%
PROCTOR DENSITY

COMPACTED  SUBGRADE

13
 1

/2
"

5"

7"

CONCRETE CURB
& GUTTER

6"

R3"

R3"

1/2" PER FT.

R 1
2"

6"

CONCRETE CURB AND
GUTTER ON BOTH SIDES
OF CONCRETE SPILLWAY

CONCRETE SPILLWAY
9

CONCRETE STEPS
10

12"

12"

CONCRETE CURB RETAINING WALL
11

24"

12"
12"

30
"

(S
E

E
 G

R
A

D
IN

G
 P

LA
N

)
48

"
G

U
A

R
D

 R
A

IL

60
"

TO
 F

R
O

S
T

2"
MIN.

M
IN

.6"

1/2" PER FT.

5"
2"
5"

1 1/2" DIA. ROUND PIPE RAILING
AND POSTS (TYP.) WITH
PAINTED FINISH - DARK

BRONZE COLOR SEE SITE PLAN
FOR LOCATION.

SHOP DRAWINGS REQUIRED

#3 REBAR AT EACH NOSING

1/2" RADIUS
(TYP)

6" SLEEVE TO ACCEPT RAIL POST
GROUT INTO PLACE (TYP)

DOWELS AT 18" O.C.
WRAP FOR EXPANSION

MATCH TO CONCRETE
PAVEMENT SEE SITE
PLAN

1/2" EXPANSION MATERIAL (TOP
& BOTTOM OF DOWELS)

WASH

PROVIDE GROVE AND
SEALANT AT GROUT,

TYP.

COMPACTED
GRANULAR BASE

1/2" EXPANSION MATERIAL
BETWEEN WALL AND

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT
IN PARKING LOT

CAST IN PLACE CONCRETE
CURB RETAINING WALL

AGGREGATE
BASE COURSE

COMPACTED SUB GRADE
TO 98% PROCTOR DENSITY

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

48" HT. 2" DIA. 440 STAINLESS STEEL
TUBE GUARD RAIL SET INTO TOP OF

CONCRETE CURB, GENERAL
CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE SHOP

DRAWINGS FOR APPROVAL

PROVIDE 1/2" EXPANSION
MATERIAL IN RAILING SLEEVE

2" RADIUS

2" 440 STAINLESS STEEL TUBE
GUARD RAIL CROSS BARS, TYP.

#4 EPOXY COATED REBAR
REINFORCEMENTS 12" O.C.
BOTH WAYS, TOP AND BOTTOM

#5 EPOXY COATED REBAR
REINFORCEMENTS 12" O.C.

BOTH WAYS, EACH FACE

MAINTAIN A MIN. OF 2" OF COVER
BETWEEN REBAR AND EDGE OF

POURED WALL

2"x4" KEY TYP.

2"

1" PVC PIPE
WEEP 8' O.C

COARSE GRAVEL
TO WEEPS, TYP.

58"

12" 24" 22"

10"

WASH

12" WIDE WING  WALL
BEYOND  STEPS

BUILDING FACADE

1/2" EXPANSION JOINT BETWEEN
BUILDING AND WING WALL

#4 EPOXY COATED REBAR
12" O.C. BOTH WAYS

#4 EPOXY COATED REBAR
12" O.C. BOTH WAYS

TRANSITION TO
STANDARD CONCRETE

SIDEWALK

NOTE: PROVIDE 12" OF 3/4" CRUSHED STONE
BEHIND WING WALL FOR DRAINAGE

12" TREAD

6" RISER

#4 x 2' LENGTH EPOXY COATED
REBAR VERTS 12" O.C.

#4 EPOXY COATED REBAR HORIZONTAL
REINFORCEMENTS 12" O.C.

1/4" PER 1'

1

PROVIDE SHOP DRAWINGS
FOR RAILING

Page 61 of 107

AutoCAD SHX Text_1761
I hereby certify that this plan,

AutoCAD SHX Text_1762
specification, or report was

AutoCAD SHX Text_1763
prepared by me or under my

AutoCAD SHX Text_1764
direct supervision and that I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1765
am a duly Licensed

AutoCAD SHX Text_1766
under

AutoCAD SHX Text_1767
the laws of the State of 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1768
PROJECT TEAM DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1769
MINNESOTA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1770
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1771
MK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1772
TLM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1773
4000651

AutoCAD SHX Text_1774
1315 MENDOTA HEIGHTS RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1775
MENDOTA HEIGHTS, MN 55120

AutoCAD SHX Text_1776
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1777
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1778
DESIGNED:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1779
05-09-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1780
CITY SUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1781
54821

AutoCAD SHX Text_1782
License No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1783
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_1784
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1785
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1786
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1787
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1788
QUALITY ASSURANCE/CONTROL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1789
06-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1790
PROGRESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1791
06-30-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1792
06-16-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1793
PERMIT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1794
DANIEL SJOBLOM, PE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1795
07-01-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1796
WATER COMMENTS & CURB WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1797
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1798
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1799
MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1800
WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1801
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1802
12" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1803
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1804
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_1805
12" OR 1/4 B  (WHICHEVER IS GREATER)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1806
COMPACTED GRANULAR ENCASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1807
COMPACTED GRANULAR BEDDING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1808
1/4" B  MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1809
GRANULAR BEDDING AND ENCASEMENT SHALL CONFORM TO THE GRADATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_1810
REQUIREMENTS IDENTIFIED IN THE PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS. ALL ENCASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1811
AND BEDDING SHALL BE CONSIDERED INCIDENTAL TO THE PIPE COST.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1812
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1813
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1814
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_1815
BACKFILL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1816
UNDISTURBED GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text_1817
1:1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1818
6"PVC, SDR 35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1819
6"x8" WYE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1820
BEND OR WYE WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1821
UPSTREAM LINE END

AutoCAD SHX Text_1822
PLUGGED.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1823
6"PVC, SDR 35

AutoCAD SHX Text_1824
4" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1825
7"

AutoCAD SHX Text_1826
CLEANOUT TOP SHALL BE ENCLOSED IN CASTING AND/OR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1827
FABRICATED COVER ASSEMBLY.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1828
NEENAH CAST. R-1970

AutoCAD SHX Text_1829
SET CASTING ASSEMBLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1830
IN CONCRETE COLLAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1831
COMPACTED GRANULAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1832
MATERIAL OR CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1833
CONCRETE OR CONCRETE BLOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1834
GRASSPAVE2 SQUARES

AutoCAD SHX Text_1835
RINGS FILLED WITH CONCRETE SAND (CLEAN, SHARP SAND)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1836
ADJACENT GRASSPAVE2 SQUARES

AutoCAD SHX Text_1837
HYDROGROW MIX BELOW RING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1838
SUPPLIED FREE BY MANUFACTURER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1839
19.7"

AutoCAD SHX Text_1840
2.4"

AutoCAD SHX Text_1841
0.9"

AutoCAD SHX Text_1842
3.3"

AutoCAD SHX Text_1843
6.6"

AutoCAD SHX Text_1844
9.8"

AutoCAD SHX Text_1845
SEE ENLARGEMENT BELOW

AutoCAD SHX Text_1846
COMPACTED SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1847
TOP OF GRASS ROOT MASS 6 MM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1848
  (1/4") ABOVE TOP OF RING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1849
GRASSPAVE2  ATTACH WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1850
  SNAP-FIT FASTENERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1851
ROOT MASS TO FILL 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1852
  GRASSPAVE2 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1853
SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1854
UNIT SIZE - 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1855
              (20" X 20" X 1")

AutoCAD SHX Text_1856
UNIT WEIGHT - 510 GRAMS (18 OZ.)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1857
STRENGTH - 402 KG/CM  (5720 PSI)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1858
COLOR - BLACK (STANDARD)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1859
RESIN - HDPE (WITH SOME POST-CONSUMER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1860
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_1861
<

AutoCAD SHX Text_1862
<

AutoCAD SHX Text_1863
OR 2.0 KG (4.5 POUNDS)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1864
RECYCLED CONTENT)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1865
NOTES: 1. REFER TO MANUFACTURER'S INSTALLATION INSTRUCTIONS AND SPECIFICATIONS. REFER TO MANUFACTURER'S INSTALLATION INSTRUCTIONS AND SPECIFICATIONS. 2. USE THIN CUT SOD (0.5" SOIL). DO NOT AERATE. USE THIN CUT SOD (0.5" SOIL). DO NOT AERATE. 3. DO NOT DRIVE ONTO GRASSPAVE2 UNTIL SOD IS FULLY ESTABLISHED (3-4 WEEKS). DO NOT DRIVE ONTO GRASSPAVE2 UNTIL SOD IS FULLY ESTABLISHED (3-4 WEEKS). 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1866
AVAILABLE IN 9 STANDARD ROLL SIZES

AutoCAD SHX Text_1867
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1868
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1869
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1870
9" SQUARE BORGERT COBBLE PAVER,  COLOR: CHAMOIS COBBLE; SPACED 6' O.C. OR AS SHOWN ON PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text_1871
GRASSPAVE2 LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1872
10' WIDTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_1873
6' TYP. SPACING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1874
SOD, THIN CUT WITH 0.5" SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1875
HYDROGROW MIX BELOW RING

AutoCAD SHX Text_1876
SUPPLIED FREE BY MANUFACTURER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1877
COMPACTED SUBGRADE,

AutoCAD SHX Text_1878
95% MODIFIED PROCTOR DENSITY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1879
GRASSPAVE2  SYSTEM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1880
CONCRETE SAND (CLEAN, SHARP SAND)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1881
BITUMINOUS TRAIL OR CONCRETE SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1882
6" DEPTH DRAINABLE AGGREGATE BASE, MNDOT 3136  (CLASS 5 AGGREGATE NOT ACCEPTABLE)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1883
6" DEPTH DRAINABLE AGGREGATE BASE, MNDOT 3136  (CLASS 5 AGGREGATE NOT ACCEPTABLE)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1884
6" DEPTH DRAINABLE AGGREGATE BASE, MNDOT 3136  (CLASS 5 AGGREGATE NOT ACCEPTABLE)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1885
GRASSPAVE2 LOCAL DISTRIBUTOR: BROCK WHITE 1243 EAGAN INDUSTRIAL ROAD EAGAN, MN 55121 PHONE: 651-686-5036 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1886
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1887
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1888
SEE SITE PLAN 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1889
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1890
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1891
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1892
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1893
12"



C-6.2

C
O

B
A

LT
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 C
E

N
TE

R

P
E

R
M

IT
 S

E
T

M
N

D
O

T 
D

E
TA

IL
S

733 Marquette Avenue

Minneapolis, MN 55402
612.758.3080

www.alliant-inc.com

Suite 700

MN DOT PEDESTRAIN RAMP DETAILS
1

Page 62 of 107

AutoCAD SHX Text_1894
I hereby certify that this plan,

AutoCAD SHX Text_1895
specification, or report was

AutoCAD SHX Text_1896
prepared by me or under my

AutoCAD SHX Text_1897
direct supervision and that I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1898
am a duly Licensed

AutoCAD SHX Text_1899
under

AutoCAD SHX Text_1900
the laws of the State of 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1901
PROJECT TEAM DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1902
MINNESOTA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1903
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text_1904
MK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1905
TLM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1906
4000651

AutoCAD SHX Text_1907
1315 MENDOTA HEIGHTS RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1908
MENDOTA HEIGHTS, MN 55120

AutoCAD SHX Text_1909
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1910
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1911
DESIGNED:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1912
05-09-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1913
CITY SUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1914
54821

AutoCAD SHX Text_1915
License No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1916
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_1917
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1918
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1919
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1920
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1921
QUALITY ASSURANCE/CONTROL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1922
06-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1923
PROGRESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1924
06-30-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1925
06-16-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1926
PERMIT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1927
DANIEL SJOBLOM, PE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1928
07-01-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1929
WATER COMMENTS & CURB WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1930
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1931
NOT TO SCALE



S
TO

R
M

W
A

TE
R

 P
O

N
D

PROPOSED BUILDING
623' x 280'

174,288  S.F.

85
0

85
2

85
2

85
2

85
2

85
0

84
8

84
5

856
854

852
850

848
846

845

84
4

84
6

83
8

844

838

xB
E

R
M

:8
52

.4

L-1.0

C
O

B
A

LT
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 C
E

N
TE

R

P
E

R
M

IT
 S

E
T

FO
R

E
S

T 
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T 
P

LA
N

733 Marquette Avenue

Minneapolis, MN 55402
612.758.3080

www.alliant-inc.com

Suite 700

Know what's below.
Call before you dig.

R

Dial 811

REPLACEMENT CALCULATIONS           

LEGEND:

PLAN

NOTE:  TREE PROTECTION SHALL BE PROVIDED BY CONTRACTOR AS REQUIRED
TO ENSURE SURVIVABILITY OF EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN.  NO HEAVY EQUIPMENT
SHALL BE STORED WITHIN THE TREE DRIP LINE AS DESIGNATED ABOVE.

ELEVATION

4' ORANGE SNOW FENCE WITH
POSTS 8' O.C. AT DRIP
LINE OF OUTER MOST
BRANCHES

DRIP LINE

TREE PROTECTION FENCE 
NO SCALE2

TREE PRESERVATION NOTES:

Page 63 of 107

AutoCAD SHX Text_1932
864

AutoCAD SHX Text_1933
872

AutoCAD SHX Text_1934
4' CONCRETE SPILLWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1935
4' CONCRETE SPILLWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1936
866

AutoCAD SHX Text_1937
866

AutoCAD SHX Text_1938
1238

AutoCAD SHX Text_1939
1237

AutoCAD SHX Text_1940
1236

AutoCAD SHX Text_1941
-OFF-SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1942
-SAVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1943
-REMOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1944
-GRADING LIMITS   

AutoCAD SHX Text_1945
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1946
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1947
CLARK WICKLUND, PE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1948
DESIGNED:

AutoCAD SHX Text_1949
I hereby certify that this plan,

AutoCAD SHX Text_1950
specification, or report was

AutoCAD SHX Text_1951
prepared by me or under my

AutoCAD SHX Text_1952
direct supervision and that I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1953
am a duly Licensed

AutoCAD SHX Text_1954
under

AutoCAD SHX Text_1955
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1956
SCALE      IN      FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1957
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1958
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_1959
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_1960
the laws of the State of 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1961
PROJECT TEAM DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1962
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_1963
MINNESOTA

AutoCAD SHX Text_1964
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_1965
MK

AutoCAD SHX Text_1966
TLM

AutoCAD SHX Text_1967
4000651

AutoCAD SHX Text_1968
1315 MENDOTA HEIGHTS RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_1969
MENDOTA HEIGHTS, MN 55120

AutoCAD SHX Text_1970
05-09-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1971
CITY SUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1972
License No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1973
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_1974
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1975
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_1976
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1977
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1978
QUALITY ASSURANCE/CONTROL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1979
06-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1980
PROGRESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_1981
06-30-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1982
06-16-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1983
PERMIT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1984
07-01-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_1985
WATER COMMENTS & CURB WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_1986
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1987
REFER TO TREE INVENTORY AND REMOVAL DATA SHEET FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

AutoCAD SHX Text_1988
1. BEFORE ANY CONSTRUCTION OR GRADING OF DEVELOPMENT PROJECT IS TO OCCUR, A BEFORE ANY CONSTRUCTION OR GRADING OF DEVELOPMENT PROJECT IS TO OCCUR, A TREE PROTECTION FENCE (AT LEAST 4 FEET IN HEIGHT AND STAKED WITH POSTS NO LESS THAN EVERY 5 FEET) SHALL BE INSTALLED AROUND THE DRIP LINE OF WOODED AREAS, THE DRIP LINES OF EXISTING TREES TO BE PRESERVED OR AT THE PERIMETER OF THE CRITICAL ROOT ZONE (WHICHEVER IS GREATER). "TREE SAVE AREA" SIGNS SHALL BE PLACED ALONG THIS FENCE LINE IDENTIFYING THE AREA AS A TREE PROTECTION AREA AND PROHIBITING GRADING BEYOND THE FENCE LINE. THIS FENCE MUST REMAIN IN PLACE UNTIL ALL GRADING AND CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY IS TERMINATED.  2. NO EQUIPMENT, CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS OR SOIL MAY BE STORED WITHIN THE DRIP NO EQUIPMENT, CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS OR SOIL MAY BE STORED WITHIN THE DRIP LINES OF ANY SIGNIFICANT TREES TO BE PRESERVED.  3. NO ENCROACHMENT, LAND DISTURBANCE, GRADE CHANGE, TRENCHING, FILLING, NO ENCROACHMENT, LAND DISTURBANCE, GRADE CHANGE, TRENCHING, FILLING, COMPACTION OF CHANGE IN SOIL CHEMISTRY SHALL OCCUR WITHIN FENCED AREAS PROTECTING SIGNIFICANT TREES.  4. CONTRACTOR TO PREVENT THE CHANGE IN SOIL CHEMISTRY DUE TO CONCRETE WASHOUT CONTRACTOR TO PREVENT THE CHANGE IN SOIL CHEMISTRY DUE TO CONCRETE WASHOUT AND LEAKAGE OR SPILLAGE OF TOXIC MATERIALS, SUCH AS FUELS OR PAINTS. 5. DRAINAGE PATTERNS ON THE SITE SHALL NOT CHANGE CONSIDERABLY CAUSING DRASTIC DRAINAGE PATTERNS ON THE SITE SHALL NOT CHANGE CONSIDERABLY CAUSING DRASTIC ENVIRONMENTAL CHANGES IN THE SOIL MOISTURE CONTENT WHERE TREES ARE INTENDED TO BE PRESERVED.  6. DEAD, DISEASED OR DYING SIGNIFICANT TREES WERE NOT INCLUDED AS PART OF THE DEAD, DISEASED OR DYING SIGNIFICANT TREES WERE NOT INCLUDED AS PART OF THE EXISTING TREE INVENTORY.  7. NO TREES SHALL BE REMOVED UNTIL THIS TREE PRESERVATION PLAN IS APPROVED BY NO TREES SHALL BE REMOVED UNTIL THIS TREE PRESERVATION PLAN IS APPROVED BY THE CITY OF MENDOTA HEIGHTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text_1989
26222



L-1.1

C
O

B
A

LT
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 C
E

N
TE

R

P
E

R
M

IT
 S

E
T

TR
E

E
 IN

V
E

N
TO

R
Y

733 Marquette Avenue

Minneapolis, MN 55402
612.758.3080

www.alliant-inc.com

Suite 700

Know what's below.
Call before you dig.

R

Dial 811

Page 64 of 107

AutoCAD SHX Text_1990
I hereby certify that this plan,

AutoCAD SHX Text_1991
specification, or report was

AutoCAD SHX Text_1992
prepared by me or under my

AutoCAD SHX Text_1993
direct supervision and that I

AutoCAD SHX Text_1994
am a duly Licensed

AutoCAD SHX Text_1995
under

AutoCAD SHX Text_1996
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_1997
SCALE      IN      FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text_1998
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_1999
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2000
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2001
the laws of the State of 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2002
PROJECT TEAM DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text_2003
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_2004
MINNESOTA

AutoCAD SHX Text_2005
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2006
MK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2007
TLM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2008
4000651

AutoCAD SHX Text_2009
1315 MENDOTA HEIGHTS RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2010
MENDOTA HEIGHTS, MN 55120

AutoCAD SHX Text_2011
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text_2012
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text_2013
MARK KRONBECK, PLA, ASLA

AutoCAD SHX Text_2014
DESIGNED:

AutoCAD SHX Text_2015
05-09-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2016
CITY SUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2017
License No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2018
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_2019
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2020
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2021
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2022
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2023
QUALITY ASSURANCE/CONTROL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2024
06-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2025
PROGRESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2026
06-30-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2027
06-16-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2028
PERMIT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text_2029
07-01-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2030
WATER COMMENTS & CURB WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2031
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2032
26222



S
TO

R
M

W
A

TE
R

 P
O

N
D

PROPOSED BUILDING
623' x 280'

174,288  S.F.

85
0

85
2

85
2

85
2

85
2

85
0

84
8

84
5

856
854

852
850

848
846

845

84
4

84
6

83
8

844

838

xB
E

R
M

:8
52

.4

3 - PO

4 - BH

3 - SL

2 - BH

1 - AP

1 - RB

1 - SW

1 - RB

1 - SW

1 - RB

1 - CH

7 - BBH

7 - BBH

1 - AP

4 - GLS

9 - AWS

4 - GLS

3 - BBH

3 - CH

2 - RB

2 - CH

3 - SL

1 - RB

1 - PO

1 - SW

1 - SW

8 - GFS

6 - BBH 9 - BMJ 3 - BMJ
11 - GFS

18 - CLB

8 - AFS 8 - AFS
8 - PBC 8 - PBC

7 - BMJ7 - GFS5 - BBH

7 - BMJ

5 - GFS

1 - NF

1 - NF

1 - NF

1 - NF

1 - NF

1 - NF

3 - BF

3 - AP

3 - BF

3 - BH

3 - BF

1 - SW

1 - AE

1 - AE

1 - AE

1 - SW

6 - AWS4 - AWS7 - AWS

7 - BMJ
5 - BBH

6 - HL

4 - SB

1 - SB

1 - SB

1 - SB

1 - SB

1 - SW

1 - SB

1 - PO

1 - SW

1 - PO

1 - PO

1 - PO

3 - AE

4 - AP

4 - AWS 7 - AWS 6 - AB

9 - PBC

6 - GLS

3 - GLS

3 - GLS

GRANITE LANDSCAPE BOULDERS
TO BE POSITIONED INTO THE

FACE OF SLOPE, APPROX. 30% OF
BOULDER SHOULD BE BURIED

INSTALL "HYDROGROW" SOIL AMENDMENT (SUPPLIED
WITH GRASSPAVE2 SYSTEM) AND OVER SEED OR
HYDROSEED WITH TURF SEED MIX, SEE LEGEND

L-2.0

C
O

B
A

LT
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 C
E

N
TE

R

P
E

R
M

IT
 S

E
T

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 P
LA

N

733 Marquette Avenue

Minneapolis, MN 55402
612.758.3080

www.alliant-inc.com

Suite 700

Know what's below.
Call before you dig.

R

Dial 811

LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS

LEGEND

LANDSCAPE NOTES:

LANDSCAPE SCHEDULE

Page 65 of 107

AutoCAD SHX Text_2033
NWL:843.5 HWL:852.1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2034
864

AutoCAD SHX Text_2035
872

AutoCAD SHX Text_2036
866

AutoCAD SHX Text_2037
866

AutoCAD SHX Text_2038
OVERSTORY DECIDUOUS TREES

AutoCAD SHX Text_2039
CONIFEROUS TREES

AutoCAD SHX Text_2040
SHRUBS AND PERENNIALS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2041
POND SIDE SLOPE/ BUFFER SEED MIX MN STATE SEED MIX 33-261 ROCK MULCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_2042
EXISTING TREES TO BE SAVED

AutoCAD SHX Text_2043
MNDOT MIX 25-131 LOW MAINTENANCE TURF MIX  

AutoCAD SHX Text_2044
220 LBS. PER ACRE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2045
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text_2046
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text_2047
MARK KRONBECK, PLA, ASLA 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2048
DESIGNED:

AutoCAD SHX Text_2049
I hereby certify that this plan,

AutoCAD SHX Text_2050
specification, or report was

AutoCAD SHX Text_2051
prepared by me or under my

AutoCAD SHX Text_2052
direct supervision and that I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2053
am a duly Licensed

AutoCAD SHX Text_2054
under

AutoCAD SHX Text_2055
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_2056
SCALE      IN      FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text_2057
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2058
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2059
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2060
the laws of the State of 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2061
PROJECT TEAM DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text_2062
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_2063
MINNESOTA

AutoCAD SHX Text_2064
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2065
MK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2066
TLM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2067
4000651

AutoCAD SHX Text_2068
1315 MENDOTA HEIGHTS RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2069
MENDOTA HEIGHTS, MN 55120

AutoCAD SHX Text_2070
05-09-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2071
CITY SUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2072
License No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2073
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_2074
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2075
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2076
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2077
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2078
QUALITY ASSURANCE/CONTROL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2079
06-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2080
PROGRESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2081
06-30-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2082
06-16-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2083
PERMIT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text_2084
07-01-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2085
WATER COMMENTS & CURB WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2086
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2087
MININIMUM SIZE: SHADE TREES:      2.5" DIAMETER 2.5" DIAMETER ORNAMENTAL TREES:    2" DIAMETER 2" DIAMETER CONIFEROUS EVERGREEN TREES: 6' HT. 6' HT. SHRUBS:      5 GAL. CONT. 5 GAL. CONT. MITIGATION INCHES REQUIRED= 539" TOTAL CALIPER INCHES PROPOSED= 254.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text_2088
1. INSTALL 4" MIN. TOP SOIL TO ALL SOD, SEED AND SHRUB AREAS. FINE GRADE ALL INSTALL 4" MIN. TOP SOIL TO ALL SOD, SEED AND SHRUB AREAS. FINE GRADE ALL SOD AND SEED AREAS. INSTALL 12" TOP SOIL TO PERENNIAL AND ANNUAL FLOWER AREAS. 2. STAKE OR MARK ALL PLANT MATERIAL LOCATIONS PRIOR TO INSTALLATION. HAVE STAKE OR MARK ALL PLANT MATERIAL LOCATIONS PRIOR TO INSTALLATION. HAVE OWNERS REPRESENTATIVE APPROVE ALL STAKING PRIOR TO INSTALLATION. 3. ALL SHRUB AREAS UNLESS SPECIFIED AS OTHER, TO BE BED MULCHED WITH 4" ALL SHRUB AREAS UNLESS SPECIFIED AS OTHER, TO BE BED MULCHED WITH 4" DEPTH OF DARK BROWN COLOR SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH OVER FILTER FABRIC, UNLESS SPECIFIED AS OTHER. POLY-EDGER TO BE VALLEY VIEW BLACK DIAMOND OR APPROVED EQUAL. ROCK MULCH TO BE 1.5" DEPTH DRESSER TRAP ROCK MULCH OVER FILTER FABRIC. 4. ROCK MULCH TO BE 1-1/2" ST. CLOUD GRANITE OVER FILTER FABRIC ROCK MULCH TO BE 1-1/2" ST. CLOUD GRANITE OVER FILTER FABRIC 5. INSTALL 4-6" DEPTH SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH AROUND ROOT SAUCER OF ALL INSTALL 4-6" DEPTH SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH AROUND ROOT SAUCER OF ALL TREES ISOLATED FROM PLANT BEDS.  DO NOT PILE MULCH AGAINST THE BASE OF A PLANT OR TREE TRUNK; PULL THE MULCH AWAY FROM THE BASE ONE TO TWO INCHES. 6. PLANT SOIL SHALL CONSIST OF 1:1:1, SELECT LOAMY TOPSOIL, PEAT MOSS, PIT RUN PLANT SOIL SHALL CONSIST OF 1:1:1, SELECT LOAMY TOPSOIL, PEAT MOSS, PIT RUN SAND. 7. COMPLETELY GUARANTEE ALL WORK FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR BEGINNING AT THE COMPLETELY GUARANTEE ALL WORK FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR BEGINNING AT THE DATE OF ACCEPTANCE. MAKE ALL REPLACEMENTS PROMPTLY (AS PER DIRECTION OF OWNER). 8. ALL MATERIAL SHALL COMPLY WITH THE LATEST EDITION OF THE AMERICAN STANDARD ALL MATERIAL SHALL COMPLY WITH THE LATEST EDITION OF THE AMERICAN STANDARD FOR NURSERY STOCK, AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF NURSERYMEN. 9. ALL TREE TRUNKS SHALL BE WRAPPED WITH BROWN CREPE TREE WRAP. APPLY WRAP ALL TREE TRUNKS SHALL BE WRAPPED WITH BROWN CREPE TREE WRAP. APPLY WRAP IN NOVEMBER AND REMOVE IN APRIL. 10. CALL GOPHER STATE ONE CALL AT 651-454-0002 FOR LOCATING ALL UNDERGROUND CALL GOPHER STATE ONE CALL AT 651-454-0002 FOR LOCATING ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AND AVOID DAMAGE TO UTILITIES DURING THE COURSE OF THE WORK.  11. MAINTAIN ALL PLANT MATERIALS, INCLUDING WATERING, UNTIL THE TIME OF MAINTAIN ALL PLANT MATERIALS, INCLUDING WATERING, UNTIL THE TIME OF ACCEPTANCE. 12. COORDINATE INSTALLATION WITH GENERAL CONTRACTOR. COORDINATE INSTALLATION WITH GENERAL CONTRACTOR. 13. STAKING AND GUYING OF TREES OPTIONAL: MAINTAIN PLUMBNESS OF TREES FOR STAKING AND GUYING OF TREES OPTIONAL: MAINTAIN PLUMBNESS OF TREES FOR DURATION OF WARRANTY PERIOD. 14. SWEEP AND WASH ALL PAVED SURFACES AND REMOVE ALL DEBRIS RESULTING FROM SWEEP AND WASH ALL PAVED SURFACES AND REMOVE ALL DEBRIS RESULTING FROM LANDSCAPE OPERATIONS. 15. LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL KENTUCKY BLUE GRASS SOD IN DENOTED LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL KENTUCKY BLUE GRASS SOD IN DENOTED AREAS INCLUDING ALL R.O.W. PER LOCAL INDUSTRY STANDARDS. SOD SHALL BE LAID PARALLEL TO THE CONTOURS AND  HAVE STAGGERED JOINTS. HAVE STAGGERED JOINTS. 16. SUPPLY DESIGN AND INSTALLATION FOR NEW WATER EFFICIENT IRRIGATION SYSTEM. SUPPLY DESIGN AND INSTALLATION FOR NEW WATER EFFICIENT IRRIGATION SYSTEM. DESIGN SYSTEM INCLUDING CONTROLS, ELECTRICAL AND WATER SERVICE CONNECTIONS WITH 100% COVERAGE OF NEW SOD, LANDSCAPE ISLANDS AND PLANTING AREAS. SOD, SEED AND SHRUB AREAS TO BE ON SEPARATE ZONES. DESIGN TO INCLUDE DRIP IRRIGATION IN SHRUB AREAS ADJACENT TO BUILDING. EXCESS WATER SHALL NOT COME IN CONTACT WITH BUILDING AND SIDEWALKS. THE IRRIGATION SYSTEM SHALL HAVE A GRAIN/FREEZE SENSOR SHUTOFF. USE RAINBIRD OR APPROVED EQUAL COORDINATE WITH G.C. AND WORK OF OTHER SECTIONS. 17. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR CONTACTING THE CITY FOR A LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR CONTACTING THE CITY FOR A LANDSCAPE INSTALLATION INSPECTION OF ALL PLANTINGS. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2089
26222



L-2.1

C
O

B
A

LT
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 C
E

N
TE

R

P
E

R
M

IT
 S

E
T

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 D
E

TA
IL

S

733 Marquette Avenue

Minneapolis, MN 55402
612.758.3080

www.alliant-inc.com

Suite 700

Know what's below.
Call before you dig.

R

Dial 811

L-2.1
4 MULCH AT SIDEWALK

NOT TO SCALE

NOTES:
1. REFER TO LANDSCAPE PLAN SHEET NOTES FOR

COLOR AND TYPE OF MULCH.

CONCRETE SIDEWALK

2"
 M

IN
.

MULCH TO BE LEVEL AT SIDEWALK

MULCH SEE NOTES

4"
 T

YP
.

PLANTING SOIL
DEPTH VARIES
SEE LANDSCAPE PLAN NOTES

FILTER FABRIC
MIRAFI OR EQUAL

L-2.1
5 MULCH AT SOD

NOT TO SCALE

NOTES:
1. REFER TO LANDSCAPE PLAN SHEET NOTES FOR

COLOR AND TYPE OF MULCH.

SOD

2"
 M

IN
.

POLY EDGING

MULCH SEE NOTES

4"
 T

YP
.

PLANTING SOIL
DEPTH VARIES
SEE LANDSCAPE
PLAN NOTES

FILTER FABRIC
MIRAFI OR EQUAL

12" SPIKE

MULCH TO BE LEVEL WITH FINISHED GRADE

PERENNIAL PLANTING
NOT TO SCALEL-2.1

3

EQUAL SPACING

PERENNIALS (TYP.),
PLANT IN STAGGERED
ROWS UNLESS
OTHERWISE SHOWN ON
LANDSCAPE PLAN

MIN. 3"-4" DEPTH
HARDWOOD MULCH OVER
FILTER FABRIC, SEE NOTES
FOR TYPE & COLOR.

MIN. 12" PLANTING SOIL AS
SPECIFIED, SEE NOTES.

UNDISTURBED AND
UNCOMPACTED
SUBGRADE

L-2.1
2 SHRUB PLANTING

NOT TO SCALE

PROVIDE MULCH, DO NOT BURY STEMS OR
TRUNK. SEE NOTES FOR TYPE AND DEPTH
REQUIRED.

UNDISTURBED AND
UNCOMPACTED SUBGRADE

PRUNE DEAD AND BROKEN BRANCHES

ROOT BALL SHOULD SIT
DIRECTLY ON TOP OF
UNDISTURBED SOIL.

BACKFILL WITH TOPSOIL
FROM HOLE AND WATER
THOROUGHLY. PROVIDE
PLANTING SOIL AS
SPECIFIED IN NOTES.

PROVIDE FILTER FABRIC,
MIRAFI OR EQUAL

PLANT TOP OF ROOT BALL 1-2" ABOVE
SURROUNDING GRADE.

PREPARE PLANTING AREA 3X
THE DIAMETER OF THE

ROOTBALL

L-2.1
1 TREE PLANTING

NOT TO SCALE

NOTES:
1. TREE STAKING IS OPTIONAL.
2. DO NOT PRUNE THE TREE AT PLANTING. PRUNE ONLY CROSSOVER LIMBS, CO-DOMINANT LEADERS AND

BROKEN OR DEAD BRANCHES.
3. FOR TREES IN CONTAINERS, REMOVE CONTAINER PRIOR TO PLANTING. FOR BARE ROOT TREES, PLACE

TREE IN MIDDLE OF PLANTING HOLE, SPREAD ROOTS OUT RADIALLY FROM THE TRUNK AROUND THE
PREPARED HOLE.

PREPARE PLANTING AREA 3X THE
DIAMETER OF THE ROOTBALL OR PER
PLAN IF PLANTED IN A BIORETENTION

OR LARGER PLANTING AREA

PLACE ROOTBALL ON UNEXCAVATED OR TAMPED SOIL

EXPOSE TRUNK FLARE,
DO NOT PILE MULCH AGAINST TREE TRUNK

MULCH RING, DIAMETER PER PLAN OR
LANDSCAPE NOTES. PLACE MULCH SO NOT IN
CONTACT WITH BASE OF TREE.

COMPLETELY REMOVE AND DISPOSE OF ALL
TWINE, ROPE AND BASKETS. DISPOSE INTO
PROPER LOCATION.

TAMP SOIL AROUND ROOTBALL BASE FIRMLY WITH FOOT
PRESSURE SO THAT THE ROOT BALL DOES NOT SHIFT.

PLANTING SOIL, BACKFILL PLACED IN 6" LIFTS

GUYING PLAN

SOD

UNDISTURBED SUBSOIL

ROOTBALL

PRUNE DEAD AND BROKEN BRANCHES

16" POLY STRAP, 40 MIL. 1-1/2" WIDE
1 FLAG PER WIRE
3-GUY CABLES, DOUBLE STRAND, 14 GA. WIRES
AT 120° SPACING, SEE GUYING PLAN

18" MIN.
MACHINE EDGE V-DITCH AROUND
ALL TREES IN SODDED AREAS

2"X2"X24" WOODEN STAKE AT AN ANGLE

LANDSCAPE NOTES

SEEDING NOTES

Page 66 of 107

AutoCAD SHX Text_2090
I hereby certify that this plan,

AutoCAD SHX Text_2091
specification, or report was

AutoCAD SHX Text_2092
prepared by me or under my

AutoCAD SHX Text_2093
direct supervision and that I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2094
am a duly Licensed

AutoCAD SHX Text_2095
under

AutoCAD SHX Text_2096
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_2097
SCALE      IN      FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text_2098
80

AutoCAD SHX Text_2099
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_2100
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_2101
the laws of the State of 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2102
PROJECT TEAM DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text_2103
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_2104
MINNESOTA

AutoCAD SHX Text_2105
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_2106
MK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2107
TLM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2108
4000651

AutoCAD SHX Text_2109
1315 MENDOTA HEIGHTS RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2110
MENDOTA HEIGHTS, MN 55120

AutoCAD SHX Text_2111
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text_2112
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text_2113
MARK KRONBECK, PLA, ASLA

AutoCAD SHX Text_2114
DESIGNED:

AutoCAD SHX Text_2115
05-09-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2116
CITY SUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2117
License No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2118
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_2119
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2120
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2121
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2122
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2123
QUALITY ASSURANCE/CONTROL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2124
06-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2125
PROGRESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2126
06-30-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2127
06-16-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2128
PERMIT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text_2129
07-01-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2130
WATER COMMENTS & CURB WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2131
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2132
1. CALL GOPHER STATE ONE CALL AT 651-454-0002 FOR LOCATING ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AND TO AVOID CALL GOPHER STATE ONE CALL AT 651-454-0002 FOR LOCATING ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AND TO AVOID DAMAGE TO UTILITIES DURING THE COURSE OF THE WORK.  2. INSTALL 4" MIN. TOP SOIL TO ALL SOD AND SHRUB AREAS. FINE GRADE ALL SOD AREAS. INSTALL 12" PLANTING INSTALL 4" MIN. TOP SOIL TO ALL SOD AND SHRUB AREAS. FINE GRADE ALL SOD AREAS. INSTALL 12" PLANTING (TOP) SOIL TO ALL ANNUAL/PERENNIAL AREAS. 3. STAKE OR MARK ALL PLANT MATERIAL LOCATIONS PRIOR TO INSTALLATION. HAVE OWNERS REPRESENTATIVE STAKE OR MARK ALL PLANT MATERIAL LOCATIONS PRIOR TO INSTALLATION. HAVE OWNERS REPRESENTATIVE APPROVE ALL STAKING PRIOR TO INSTALLATION. 4. ALL SHRUB AREAS UNLESS SPECIFIED AS OTHER ON THE PLAN, TO BE BED MULCHED WITH 4" DEPTH OF ALL SHRUB AREAS UNLESS SPECIFIED AS OTHER ON THE PLAN, TO BE BED MULCHED WITH 4" DEPTH OF HARDWOOD MULCH, NATURAL COLOR, OVER FILTER FABRIC, POLY-EDGER / LANDSCAPE EDGING TO BE VALLEY VIEW BLACK DIAMOND OR APPROVED.  5. ALL MULCH AND ROCK (BOULDERS, COBBLESTONE, ETC) TO BE APPROVED BY OWNER AND/OR LANDSCAPE ALL MULCH AND ROCK (BOULDERS, COBBLESTONE, ETC) TO BE APPROVED BY OWNER AND/OR LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.  6. PROVIDE 4" DEPTH DOUBLE SHREDDED DARK BROWN BARK MULCH OVER FILTER FABRIC IN PLANTING BEDS.  PROVIDE 4" DEPTH DOUBLE SHREDDED DARK BROWN BARK MULCH OVER FILTER FABRIC IN PLANTING BEDS.  7. INSTALL 4-6" DEPTH SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH AROUND ROOT SAUCER OF ALL TREES ISOLATED FROM PLANT INSTALL 4-6" DEPTH SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH AROUND ROOT SAUCER OF ALL TREES ISOLATED FROM PLANT BEDS. 8. PLANTING SOIL SHALL BE 1:1:1 CONSISTING OF 33% SELECT LOAMY TOPSOIL, 33% PEAT MOSS, 33% PIT RUN PLANTING SOIL SHALL BE 1:1:1 CONSISTING OF 33% SELECT LOAMY TOPSOIL, 33% PEAT MOSS, 33% PIT RUN SAND. SEE FILTRATION BASIN DETAILS & NOTES FOR SOIL WITHIN FILTRATION BASIN AREAS. 9. COMPLETELY GUARANTEE ALL WORK FOR A PERIOD OF TWO YEARS BEGINNING AT THE DATE OF ACCEPTANCE. COMPLETELY GUARANTEE ALL WORK FOR A PERIOD OF TWO YEARS BEGINNING AT THE DATE OF ACCEPTANCE. MAKE ALL REPLACEMENTS PROMPTLY (AS PER DIRECTION OF OWNER). 10. ALL MATERIAL SHALL COMPLY WITH THE LATEST EDITION OF THE AMERICAN STANDARD FOR NURSERY STOCK, ALL MATERIAL SHALL COMPLY WITH THE LATEST EDITION OF THE AMERICAN STANDARD FOR NURSERY STOCK, AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF NURSERYMEN. 11. ALL TREE TRUNKS SHALL BE WRAPPED WITH BROWN CREPE TREE WRAP. APPLY WRAP IN NOVEMBER AND REMOVE ALL TREE TRUNKS SHALL BE WRAPPED WITH BROWN CREPE TREE WRAP. APPLY WRAP IN NOVEMBER AND REMOVE IN APRIL. 12. MAINTAIN ALL PLANT MATERIALS, INCLUDING WATERING, UNTIL THE TIME OF ACCEPTANCE. MAINTAIN ALL PLANT MATERIALS, INCLUDING WATERING, UNTIL THE TIME OF ACCEPTANCE. 13. COORDINATE LANDSCAPE INSTALLATION WITH GENERAL CONTRACTOR. COORDINATE LANDSCAPE INSTALLATION WITH GENERAL CONTRACTOR. 14. STAKING AND GUYING OF TREES OPTIONAL: MAINTAIN PLUMBNESS OF TREES FOR DURATION OF WARRANTY PERIOD. STAKING AND GUYING OF TREES OPTIONAL: MAINTAIN PLUMBNESS OF TREES FOR DURATION OF WARRANTY PERIOD. 15. SWEEP AND WASH ALL PAVED SURFACES AND REMOVE ALL DEBRIS RESULTING FROM LANDSCAPE OPERATIONS SWEEP AND WASH ALL PAVED SURFACES AND REMOVE ALL DEBRIS RESULTING FROM LANDSCAPE OPERATIONS DAILY. 16. SUPPLY DESIGN AND INSTALLATION FOR NEW IRRIGATION SYSTEM WITH COVERAGE OF SOD AND PLANTING AREAS. SUPPLY DESIGN AND INSTALLATION FOR NEW IRRIGATION SYSTEM WITH COVERAGE OF SOD AND PLANTING AREAS. USE RAINBIRD OR APPROVED EQUAL. COORDINATE INSTALLATION WITH G.C. SOD AND SHRUB AREAS TO BE ON SEPARATE ZONES. PROVIDE RAIN SENSOR. BOULEVARDS TO BE SODDED AND IRRIGATED.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2133
POND SIDE SLOPE SEED MIX: MN STATE SEED MIX 33-261 (STORMWATER SOUTH & WEST MIX). SEEDING RATE TO  MN STATE SEED MIX 33-261 (STORMWATER SOUTH & WEST MIX). SEEDING RATE TO BE 35 LBS/ACRE. APPLY SEED PER THE FOLLOWING: MULCH SEEDED AREAS WITH Mn/DOT TYPE 3 (MCIA CERTIFIED WEED FREE)  MULCH SEEDED AREAS WITH Mn/DOT TYPE 3 (MCIA CERTIFIED WEED FREE) MULCH AT A RATE OF 1 TON PER ACRE WITHIN 48 HOURS OF SEEDING. MULCH SHOULD THEN BE DISC ANCHORED TO KEEP IT FROM BLOWING AWAY. SEEDING SHALL BE APPLIED FROM APRIL 1 - JUNE 30 OR NOV. 1 - FREEZE UP. IF HYDROSEEDING UTILIZE APPROXIMATELY 500 GALLONS OF WATER PER ACRE. REFER TO MN/DOT SPEC 3884 FOR PROPER INSTALLATION OF HYDRO-SEED. ALL NATIVE SEEDS USED ON THIS PROJECT SHALL BE CERTIFIED TO BE OF MINNESOTA ORIGIN BY THE MINNESOTA CROP IMPROVEMENT ASSOCIATION (MCIA). SITE TO BE PREPARED BY LOOSENING TOPSOIL TO A MINIMUM DEPTH OF 3 INCHES. THE SITE TO BE HARROWED OR RAKED FOLLOWING SEEDING, AND THEN PACKED USING A CULTI-PACKER OR EQUIVALENT. SEE MNDOT SEEDING MANUAL FOR REFERENCE. MAINTAIN SEEDED AREAS BY WATERING, REMULCHING AND REPLANTING AS NECESSARY TO ESTABLISH A UNIFORMLY DENSE STAND OF THE SPECIFIED GRASSES UNTIL ACCEPTED. ANY AREAS FAILING TO ESTABLISH A STAND SHALL BE RESEEDED, REFERTILIZED AND REMULCHED (UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED) WHENEVER 70% VEGETATIVE COVER IS NOT ACHIEVED. RESEEDING SHALL CONFORM IN ALL RESPECTS TO THESE SPECIFICATIONS.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REPAIR ANY DAMAGE TO THE WORK AREAS RESULTING FROM EROSION AND/OR EQUIPMENT.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REPAIR DAMAGE, INCLUDING REGRADING, RESEEDING, ETC. AS NECESSARY, BEFORE SIGNIFICANT DAMAGE OCCURS. REFER TO MN STATE SEED MIX MANUAL. REFER TO O&M DOCUMENT FOR FURTHER DETAILS REGARDING INSPECTION AND MAINTENANCE PRACTICES. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2134
26222



EN
TE

R
PR

IS
E 

D
R

S
TO

R
M

W
A

TE
R

 P
O

N
D

PROPOSED BUILDING
623' x 280'

174,288  S.F.

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.3 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.6 0.9 1.1 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.2 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.2 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.8 1.5 1.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.2 1.6 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.5 1.6 1.5 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.4 1.6 1.6 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.2 1.6 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.1 1.2 1.6 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.4 1.6 1.5 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.0 1.2 1.1 0.8 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.9 1.8 2.5 1.3 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.4 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.4 1.7 1.8 1.5 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.3 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.6 1.7 1.7 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.2 1.8 1.7 1.3 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.9 2.1 2.7 1.8 2.1 2.4 2.5 2.3 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.3 2.5 2.4 2.1 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.9 2.0 2.3 2.5 2.4 2.2 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.4 2.2 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.8 1.9 2.0 2.3 2.4 2.3 2.0 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.4 2.3 2.1 1.8 1.8 1.6 1.9 1.9 2.2 2.4 2.4 2.1 1.8 2.9 2.5 1.8 1.3 1.0 0.7 0.5 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.9 2.4 2.9 2.3 2.8 3.6 3.8 3.5 2.8 2.3 1.8 1.7 2.2 2.7 3.4 3.8 3.7 3.0 2.5 1.9 1.6 2.1 2.6 3.2 3.8 3.8 3.2 2.6 2.1 1.6 2.0 2.5 3.0 3.7 3.8 3.4 2.7 2.2 1.7 1.8 2.3 2.8 3.5 3.8 3.5 2.8 2.3 1.9 1.7 2.2 2.6 3.4 3.8 3.7 3.0 2.5 2.0 1.6 2.1 2.6 3.1 3.7 3.7 3.2 2.5 3.9 3.3 2.1 1.3 1.0 0.8 0.6 0.3 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.4 0.9 2.0 2.9 0.0 0.0 1.3 3.5 2.5 3.2 3.7 1.5 1.5 1.9 2.0 2.9 3.8 3.0 2.2 2.0 1.6 1.4 1.8 2.0 2.7 3.8 3.4 2.4 2.1 1.7 1.4 1.7 2.0 2.5 3.5 3.7 2.6 2.1 4.0 3.7 2.3 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.6 0.3 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.5 1.0 3.8 4.3 3.3 3.5 2.2 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.6 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.5 1.1 3.7 6.1 4.0 3.7 2.3 1.6 1.3 1.0 0.6 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.5 1.1 3.8 5.9 2.9 3.4 2.2 1.5 1.3 1.1 0.7 0.3 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.5 1.0 3.6 4.1 2.1 2.9 2.1 1.6 1.4 1.2 0.9 0.4 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.4 0.9 2.0 2.6 1.8 2.8 2.4 2.0 1.7 1.3 0.9 0.4 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.9 1.8 1.6 2.4 2.8 2.5 2.3 1.9 1.4 0.9 0.4 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 1.3 2.0 2.0 2.5 2.8 2.2 1.8 1.6 1.3 0.8 0.4 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 1.4 2.0 2.3 2.7 2.9 2.0 1.5 1.3 1.2 0.8 0.3 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 1.3 2.0 2.1 3.5 3.5 2.1 1.5 1.3 1.0 0.7 0.3 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 1.1 1.8 1.6 4.1 3.6 2.2 1.5 1.3 1.0 0.6 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.3 0.9 1.9 2.1 3.1 3.3 2.1 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.7 0.3 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.5 1.0 2.9 3.4 2.3 2.7 1.8 1.4 1.2 1.1 0.8 0.3 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.5 1.1 4.4 5.0 2.2 2.5 2.1 1.8 1.6 1.2 0.8 0.4 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.5 1.2 3.8 6.1 2.0 2.3 2.2 2.1 1.8 1.3 0.8 0.4 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.5 1.1 4.4 4.7 1.8 2.6 2.2 1.8 1.6 1.2 0.8 0.4 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.5 1.0 2.5 3.2 2.1 2.7 1.9 1.4 1.2 1.1 0.8 0.4 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.3 0.9 1.9 1.9 2.9 3.3 2.1 1.4 1.3 1.0 0.7 0.3 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 1.1 1.8 1.7 3.9 3.7 2.3 1.5 1.3 1.0 0.6 0.3 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 1.4 2.1 2.1 3.4 3.6 2.2 1.5 1.3 1.0 0.6 0.3 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 1.4 2.0 2.3 2.5 2.9 2.0 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.7 0.3 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.3 1.3 2.0 1.8 2.2 2.6 2.0 1.5 1.3 1.2 0.8 0.4 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.3 1.0 1.9 1.5 2.0 2.3 2.1 2.0 1.7 1.2 0.8 0.4 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.5 1.0 2.1 2.6 2.0 2.3 2.1 2.0 1.7 1.3 0.8 0.4 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.5 1.1 4.3 3.9 2.2 2.6 2.0 1.6 1.3 1.2 0.8 0.4 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.6 1.2 4.3 5.2 2.5 2.9 2.0 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.7 0.3 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.6 1.2 4.4 5.0 3.4 3.5 2.2 1.5 1.3 1.0 0.6 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.5 1.1 3.9 3.7 4.1 3.6 2.2 1.5 1.3 1.0 0.6 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.7 1.7 3.5 4.4 2.4 3.5 3.7 2.9 2.9 3.2 2.8 3.1 4.2 4.2 3.9 3.8 4.1 4.7 4.3 3.9 3.8 4.1 4.7 4.3 3.9 3.9 4.3 4.9 4.3 4.0 4.0 4.4 4.9 4.3 3.9 4.0 3.0 3.3 2.1 1.7 1.3 1.0 0.6 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.6 1.8 3.5 3.9 3.2 3.9 4.0 3.8 3.7 4.0 3.6 3.9 4.4 4.9 5.1 5.1 5.2 5.2 5.2 5.2 5.2 5.3 5.2 5.2 5.2 5.2 5.2 5.1 5.2 5.2 5.2 5.2 5.2 5.2 5.2 5.2 5.2 5.1 5.2 5.1 5.2 5.2 5.2 5.3 5.1 5.2 5.2 5.2 5.2 5.1 5.2 5.2 5.2 5.2 5.1 5.2 4.8 4.2 3.6 3.5 3.7 3.4 3.6 4.0 3.9 3.2 4.7 4.4 2.6 1.5 1.1 0.9 0.6 0.3 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.7 1.8 3.1 3.3 2.3 2.6 2.7 2.8 3.1 3.4 3.0 2.9 3.1 3.6 3.9 3.9 4.0 3.9 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 3.9 4.0 4.0 4.0 3.9 3.9 3.9 3.9 3.9 3.9 3.8 3.9 3.9 3.9 3.9 3.8 3.9 3.9 3.9 3.9 3.9 3.9 3.9 3.9 3.9 3.9 3.9 3.9 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 3.9 3.9 3.5 3.0 2.8 2.9 3.2 2.8 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.3 3.8 3.7 2.5 1.6 1.1 0.8 0.6 0.3 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.8 1.9 2.6 2.7 1.6 1.8 1.9 2.2 2.5 2.8 2.4 2.2 2.3 2.7 2.7 2.6 2.9 3.0 3.1 2.7 2.6 3.0 3.1 3.0 2.7 2.6 3.0 3.1 3.0 2.6 2.6 3.0 3.1 3.0 2.6 2.7 3.0 3.1 2.9 2.6 2.7 3.1 3.1 2.9 2.5 2.8 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.6 2.8 3.1 3.1 2.9 2.5 2.8 2.6 2.2 2.0 2.3 2.6 2.2 1.9 1.7 1.7 1.5 2.4 2.6 2.1 1.6 1.1 0.8 0.5 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.9 1.7 2.1 2.1 1.5 1.7 1.9 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.2 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.5 2.8 2.7 2.3 2.2 2.6 2.8 2.7 2.2 2.2 2.6 2.8 2.6 2.2 2.2 2.6 2.8 2.6 2.2 2.3 2.7 2.8 2.5 2.2 2.3 2.7 2.8 2.5 2.1 2.3 2.7 2.8 2.4 2.2 2.4 2.8 2.8 2.4 2.1 2.3 2.2 2.0 1.9 2.0 2.1 1.9 1.7 1.5 1.5 1.3 1.6 1.7 1.5 1.3 0.9 0.7 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 1.0 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.6 1.7 1.8 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.0 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.8 2.1 2.2 2.2 1.9 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.2 1.9 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.9 2.1 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.9 2.2 2.2 2.1 1.9 1.9 2.2 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.9 2.2 2.2 2.0 1.9 2.0 2.2 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.8 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.9 1.9 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.3 0.5 0.8 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.8 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.3 0.9 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.3 0.6 1.1 1.5 2.0 2.4 2.5 2.1 1.7 1.4 1.1 1.0 1.2 1.6 2.0 2.4 2.6 2.3 1.9 1.5 1.0 0.6 0.4 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.7 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.6 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.3 0.6 1.2 1.9 2.8 3.1 3.1 3.1 2.2 1.5 1.0 0.9 1.2 1.9 2.6 3.1 3.2 3.1 2.4 1.6 1.0 0.5 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.6 0.9 1.2 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.1 0.8 0.5 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.4 1.0 1.8 3.0 3.1 3.0 3.0 2.2 1.3 0.8 0.6 1.0 1.7 2.8 3.1 3.0 3.1 2.4 1.4 0.7 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.3 0.6 1.1 1.5 2.0 2.5 2.5 2.4 1.9 1.4 0.9 0.5 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.3 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.5 1.1 1.8 2.7 3.0 3.0 2.9 2.3 1.6 0.9 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.3 0.7 1.3 2.0 1.9 1.9 2.1 1.9 1.2 0.7 0.3 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

BB

BBBB

AA2

AA2

AA2

AA4 AA4 AA4 AA4 AA4 AA4 AA4

AA4

AA4

AA4

AA4

AA4AA4AA4AA4AA4AA4AA4AA4AA4AA4AA4AA4

Luminaire Schedule
Symbol Qty Label Arrangement Description Tag LLF Luminaire

Lumens
Luminaire
Watts

Total
Watts

3 BB Single GARDCO OPF-S-A04-740-BLC ON
20FT SSS POLE 3FT BASE

0.900 10663 90.68 272.04

3 AA2 Single NV-W2-T2-64L-53-40K7 WALL
MOUNTED AT 24FT

0.900 11661 99 297

23 AA4 Single NV-W2-T4-64L-7-40K7 0.900 15301 136 3128

Calculation Summary
Label CalcType Units Avg Max Min Avg/Min Max/Min
GROUND CALCS Illuminance Fc 0.35 6.1 0.0 N.A. N.A.
PROPERTY LINE Illuminance Fc 0.01 0.2 0.0 N.A. N.A.
PARKING LOT Illuminance Fc 1.58 4.4 0.4 3.95 11.00
TRUCK LOT Illuminance Fc 1.67 5.3 0.0 N.A. N.A.

P-1.0

C
O

B
A

LT
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 C
E

N
TE

R

P
E

R
M

IT
 S

E
T

P
H

O
TO

M
E

TR
IC

 P
LA

N

733 Marquette Avenue

Minneapolis, MN 55402
612.758.3080

www.alliant-inc.com

Suite 700

GENERAL NOTES:       

6130 Blue Circle Dr.,    Minnetonka, MN  55343
Ph 952-217-0400    -     Fax 952-930-1632

www.pulseproducts.com

PHOTOMETRIC SCHEDULE:

Page 67 of 107

AutoCAD SHX Text_2135
8" DIP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2136
(PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text_2137
COLUMNS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2138
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text_2139
8" DIP

AutoCAD SHX Text_2140
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text_2141
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text_2142
PROJECT NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text_2143
DRAWN:

AutoCAD SHX Text_2144
DESIGNED:

AutoCAD SHX Text_2145
I hereby certify that this plan,

AutoCAD SHX Text_2146
specification, or report was

AutoCAD SHX Text_2147
prepared by me or under my

AutoCAD SHX Text_2148
direct supervision and that I

AutoCAD SHX Text_2149
am a duly Licensed

AutoCAD SHX Text_2150
under

AutoCAD SHX Text_2151
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_2152
SCALE      IN      FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text_2153
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text_2154
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text_2155
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text_2156
the laws of the State of 

AutoCAD SHX Text_2157
PROJECT TEAM DATA

AutoCAD SHX Text_2158
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_2159
MINNESOTA

AutoCAD SHX Text_2160
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text_2161
MK

AutoCAD SHX Text_2162
TLM

AutoCAD SHX Text_2163
4000651

AutoCAD SHX Text_2164
1315 MENDOTA HEIGHTS RD

AutoCAD SHX Text_2165
MENDOTA HEIGHTS, MN 55120

AutoCAD SHX Text_2166
05-09-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2167
CITY SUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2168
54821

AutoCAD SHX Text_2169
License No.

AutoCAD SHX Text_2170
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text_2171
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2172
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_2173
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2174
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2175
QUALITY ASSURANCE/CONTROL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2176
06-12-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2177
PROGRESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_2178
06-30-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2179
06-16-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2180
PERMIT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text_2181
DANIEL SJOBLOM, PE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2182
07-01-25

AutoCAD SHX Text_2183
WATER COMMENTS & CURB WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_2184
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_2185
A. PULSE PRODUCTS DOES NOT ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE INTERPRETATION OF THIS PULSE PRODUCTS DOES NOT ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE INTERPRETATION OF THIS CALCULATION OR COMPLIANCE TO THE LOCAL, STATE, OR FEDERAL LIGHTING CODES OR ORDINANCES. B. LIGHTING LAYOUT IS NOT INTENDED FOR CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS BUT ONLY TO LIGHTING LAYOUT IS NOT INTENDED FOR CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS BUT ONLY TO ILLUSTRATE THE PERFORMANCE OF THE PRODUCT. C. ALL READINGS/CALCULATIONS SHOWN ARE SHOWN ON OBJECTS/SURFACES. ALL READINGS/CALCULATIONS SHOWN ARE SHOWN ON OBJECTS/SURFACES. D. MN ENERGY CODE MEET FOR LPD BUILDING METHOD OFFICE 0.9 LPW ALLOWED. MN ENERGY CODE MEET FOR LPD BUILDING METHOD OFFICE 0.9 LPW ALLOWED. MEETING MN ENERGY CODE WOULD REQUIRE: 1. 0-10V DIM CONTROL FOR BI-LEVEL REQUIRED. 0-10V DIM CONTROL FOR BI-LEVEL REQUIRED. 2. SENSORS IN ALL PRIVATE OFFICES AND RESTROOMS SENSORS IN ALL PRIVATE OFFICES AND RESTROOMS 3. AUTOMATIC OFF THROUGHOUT OPEN AREAS.AUTOMATIC OFF THROUGHOUT OPEN AREAS.



This page is intentionally left blank



7.j

REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

MEETING DATE: July 15, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM: Approve a Massage Therapist License 

ITEM TYPE: Consent Item  

DEPARTMENT: Administration CONTACT: Nancy Bauer, City Clerk

ACTION REQUEST: 
Approve a massage therapist license pending a successful background check. 

BACKGROUND: 
Chasity Smith has submitted a massage therapist license to work at Hush Therapeutic Massage 
in Mendota Heights.  She has completed the massage therapist license application.  The 
Mendota Heights Police Department is currently processing the background check on the 
applicant.     

The issuance of the license will be dependent on the successful completion of a background 
check. 

FISCAL AND RESOURCE IMPACT: 
N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: 
None 

CITY COUNCIL PRIORITY: 
Premier Public Services & Infrastructure, Economic Vitality & Community Vibrancy 

Page 68 of 107



This page is intentionally left blank



7.k

REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

MEETING DATE: July 15, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM: Approve Temporary On-Sale Liquor License - Holy Family Maronite Catholic 
Church 

ITEM TYPE: Consent Item 

DEPARTMENT: Administration CONTACT: Nancy Bauer, City Clerk

ACTION REQUEST: 
Approve a temporary on-sale liquor license for Holy Family Maronite Catholic Church and the 
use of the City Hall parking lot for overflow parking during their festival. 

BACKGROUND: 
State Statues and City Code states no person shall sell or give away liquor without first having 
received a license.  A temporary on-sale liquor license shall be granted only to clubs and 
charitable, religious, or non-profit organizations for the sale of intoxicating liquor.  The licenses 
are subject to final approval by the Director of Alcohol and Gambling Enforcement. 

Holy Family Maronite Catholic Church, located at 1960 Lexington Avenue, is planning their 
annual festival on their property September 6-7, 2025.  They have submitted their application 
for a temporary on-sale liquor license for the sale of wine and beer at their festival.   

Holy Family Maronite Catholic Church has also requested use of the City Hall parking lot for 
overflow parking during their festival. On Saturday, September 6, 2025, there are no events 
scheduled. On Sunday, September 7, 2025, the ball field is being used for baseball.  Staff will let 
them know of the parking lot use availability.   

It should be noted that temporary on-sale liquor licenses have been issued in the past to 
charitable, non-profit, and religious organizations within the City with no negative reports. 

FISCAL AND RESOURCE IMPACT: 
N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: 
None 

CITY COUNCIL PRIORITY: 
Economic Vitality & Community Vibrancy, Premier Public Services & Infrastructure 

Page 69 of 107



This page is intentionally left blank



7.l

REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

MEETING DATE: July 15, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM: Approve Contract to Grind Brush at City Transfer Site 

ITEM TYPE: Consent Item  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works CONTACT: John Boland, Public Works 
Superintendent 

ACTION REQUEST: 
Approve a proposal from Dakota Wood to grind up to $17,500 of brush into wood chips 
located at the city's transfer site. 

BACKGROUND: 
Public Works staff has disposed of tree debris in the past by hauling it to various sites that 
accepted material for free.  Several years ago, most sites began charging the City fees for 
disposal.  Staff began storing trees and brush at the City transfer site, located in the area of the 
Bourne property site, with the idea of grinding material on-site to limit hauling distances.  Staff 
received quotes from several local brush grinding vendors that ranged in price from $6.50 - 
$8.50 per cubic yard of ground and hauled material. Staff will retain some grindings for use in 
the park system.   

Dakota Wood had the low bid at $6.50 per cubic yard of hauled material. 

FISCAL AND RESOURCE IMPACT: 
This item will be paid using the tree removal budget. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
None 

CITY COUNCIL PRIORITY: 
Premier Public Services & Infrastructure 

Page 70 of 107



This page is intentionally left blank



7.m

REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

MEETING DATE: July 15, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM: Approve Purchase of Public Works Truck from Inver Grove Ford 

ITEM TYPE: Consent Item  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works CONTACT: John Boland, Public Works 
Superintendent 

ACTION REQUEST: 
Approve the purchase of a 2026 F550 Ford truck cab and chassis from Inver Grove Ford, and an 
upfit with dump body and hydraulics from Towmaster. 

BACKGROUND: 
As part of the 2025 Parks budget, $81,000 was budgeted for the purchase of a replacement 
truck with dump body for the Parks Department.  This truck will be replacing a 2012 Ford F450 
with a dump body.  This truck will have a gas engine, and otherwise be identical to the truck 
that the City purchased in 2020 for the Streets Department.  The dump body will be made to fit 
the chip box for chipping brush that is used on the Street truck now.   

Staff received pricing from Midway Ford with the state contract, Inver Grove Ford, and 
Towmaster: 

Midway Ford:             $50,270.41 with trade 
Inver Grove Ford:       $48,792 with trade 
Towmaster-upfit:                   $35,427 

FISCAL AND RESOURCE IMPACT: 
The replacement is included in the 2025 budget.  The truck from Inver Grove Ford, and the 
upfit from Towmaster, will have a total price of $84,219. This price is over budget by $3,219 
and funds are available from the General Fund balance. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
None 

CITY COUNCIL PRIORITY: 
Premier Public Services & Infrastructure 

Page 71 of 107



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 72 of 107

7.n



Page 73 of 107



Page 74 of 107



Page 75 of 107



Page 76 of 107



Page 77 of 107



Page 78 of 107



Page 79 of 107



Page 80 of 107



Page 81 of 107



Page 82 of 107



Page 83 of 107



Page 84 of 107



Page 85 of 107



8.a

REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

MEETING DATE: July 15, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM: City of Mendota Heights Speed Camera Update 

ITEM TYPE: Presentation 

DEPARTMENT: Administration CONTACT: Cheryl Jacobson, City 
Administrator 

ACTION REQUEST: 
Police Chief McCarthy will provide a brief update and progress report on the Speed Safety 
Camera System implementation. 

BACKGROUND: 
As part of a four-year pilot program through the state of Minnesota, the Mendota Heights 
Police Department is implementing a new Speed Safety Camera System to deter speeding and 
reduce traffic accidents near schools and in residential neighborhoods.  Enforcement begins 
August 1. 

FISCAL AND RESOURCE IMPACT: 
N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: 
None 

CITY COUNCIL PRIORITY: 
Premier Public Services & Infrastructure 

Page 86 of 107



This page is intentionally left blank



8.b

REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

MEETING DATE: July 15, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM: Highway 62 Speed Limit Presentation 

ITEM TYPE: Presentation 

DEPARTMENT: Engineering CONTACT: Ryan Ruzek, Public Works 
Director 

ACTION REQUEST: 
Representatives from the Minnesota Department of Transportation will present information on 
State Highway 62.    

BACKGROUND: 
The Minnesota Department of Transportation (MnDOT) completed an Engineering and Traffic 
Investigation on Minnesota Trunk Highway 62 from the junction with Minnesota Trunk 
Highway 55 to the junction with Interstate 494. This study was completed to ensure uniform 
and consistent speed zones per the Minnesota Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices 
(MN MUTCD). 

Based on investigation results, MnDOT recommended that the existing 55 MPH speed limit 
from the junction with Minnesota Trunk Highway 55 to a point approximately 1120 feet east of 
the intersection with Mendota Road on Highway 62 increase to 60 MPH. The recommendation 
has been authorized as the new speed limit for this segment and was signed in June.  

FISCAL AND RESOURCE IMPACT: 
There are no fiscal or resource impacts with the presentation. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. MNTH 62 CS 1918 Speed Limit Authorization and Map

CITY COUNCIL PRIORITY: 
Inclusive and Responsive Government 

Page 87 of 107



Page 1 of 1
STATE OF MINNESOTA

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

TRUNK HIGHWAY SPEED LIMIT AUTHORIZATION
Control Section: 1918
Trunk Highway: MNTH-62 Order Number: 2023-M-19
County: Ramsey District: 5-Metro
Location: East junction of MNTH-55 to east junction of ISTH-494
As authorized in Minnesota Statutes, Section 169.14, it is hereby ordered that the following speed limits are approved and shall be 
put into effect on the described roadway or sections thereof.

Date traffic control devices were verified or modified by MnDOT staff implementing this authorization:
Date Signature Title

(RETURN COPY TO CENTRAL OFFICE WHEN COMPLETE)

AUTHORIZED
SIGNATURE
(MS 169.14)

NOTE: Reference points (R.P.) shown above are for state reference point system.

60 miles per hour between R.P. 117+00.835 (the east junction with Trunk Highway 55) and R.P. 022+01.069 
(the east junction with Interstate 494)

Digitally signed by Kenneth 
Johnson 
Date: 2024.04.02 15:57:07 -05'00'

Page 88 of 107



Page 89 of 107



Page 90 of 107



Zone Location
Time

Weather Road Type
Machine E.B. 85% Tile 63   Pace 56 to 65 87.2% in 10 pace

Observer W.B. 85% Tile 65   Pace 55 to 64 78.9% in 10 pace

PASSENGER CARS, PICKUPS,VANS TRUCKS & BUSES
Bound WEST Bound EAST Bound WEST Bound

T. A.T. % VEHICLES T. A.T. % T. & B. T. A.T. % T. & B. T. A.T. %

80
79
78 | 1 109 100.0%
77
76

75
74
73
72
71 | 1 108 99.1%
70 1 109 100.0%
69 ||| 3 107 98.2%
68 ||| 3 104 95.4%
67 1 108 99.1% | 1 101 92.7%
66 4 107 98.2% ||||| || 7 100 91.7%
65 5 103 94.5% ||||| 5 93 85.3%
64 5 98 89.9% ||||| 5 88 80.7%
63 9 93 85.3% ||||| |||| 9 83 76.1%
62 8 84 77.1% ||||| | 6 74 67.9%
61 12 76 69.7% ||||| ||||| ||| 13 68 62.4%
60 12 64 58.7% ||||| ||||| ||| 13 55 50.5%
59 11 52 47.7% ||||| ||||| | 11 42 38.5%
58 15 41 37.6% ||||| ||||| 10 31 28.4%
57 10 26 23.9% ||||| | 6 21 19.3%
56 8 16 14.7% ||||| || 7 15 13.8%
55 5 8 7.3% ||||| | 6 8 7.3%
54 1 3 2.8%
53 2 2 1.8% | 1 2 1.8%
52 | 1 1 0.9%
51

50
49
48
47
46

45
44
43
42
41

MN/DOT 21273 (2-2000) (6-2009) |

SPEED SAMPLE #1

Road No
Ref Pt

MNTH 62

ClearCounty
Stalker DSR 2X Radar
A. Hogan

At a point approximately 500 feet east of MNTH 13

4-Lane Divided Concrete Roadway

55
0830

Date
Day

EAST

Dakota
10/19/2023
Thursday

|
||||
||||| 
||||| 

|

||||| ||||| 
||||| |||

||||| ||||
||||| |||
||||| ||||| ||
||||| ||||| ||

VEHICLES

STATE OF MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

FIELD SPEED SURVEY SHEET

||||| 
|
||

||||| ||||| |
||||| ||||| ||||| 

M.P.H.

Page 91 of 107



Zone Location
Time

Weather Road Type
Machine E.B. 85% Tile 65   Pace 56 to 65 72.2% in 10 pace

Observer W.B. 85% Tile 65   Pace 56 to 65 82.4% in 10 pace

PASSENGER CARS, PICKUPS,VANS TRUCKS & BUSES
Bound WEST Bound EAST Bound WEST Bound

T. A.T. % VEHICLES T. A.T. % T. & B. T. A.T. % T. & B. T. A.T. %

80
79
78
77 1 108 100.0%
76

75
74
73 1 107 99.1%
72 1 106 98.1% || 2 108 100.0%
71 | 1 106 98.1%
70 1 105 97.2% | 1 105 97.2%
69 1 104 96.3%
68 1 103 95.4% ||| 3 104 96.3%
67 4 102 94.4% ||| 3 101 93.5%
66 3 98 90.7% | 1 98 90.7%
65 6 95 88.0% ||||| ||| 8 97 89.8%
64 5 89 82.4% |||| 4 89 82.4%
63 4 84 77.8% ||||| ||||| 10 85 78.7%
62 8 80 74.1% ||||| |||| 9 75 69.4%
61 11 72 66.7% ||||| ||||| || 12 66 61.1%
60 13 61 56.5% ||||| ||||| || 12 54 50.0%
59 14 48 44.4% ||||| ||||| | 11 42 38.9%
58 6 34 31.5% ||||| 5 31 28.7%
57 7 28 25.9% ||||| ||||| 10 26 24.1%
56 4 21 19.4% ||||| ||| 8 16 14.8%
55 5 17 15.7% ||| 3 8 7.4%
54 4 12 11.1% | 1 5 4.6%
53 4 8 7.4% || 2 4 3.7%
52 2 4 3.7% | 1 2 1.9%
51 1 2 1.9% | 1 1 0.9%
50
49
48 1 1 0.9%
47
46

45
44
43
42
41

MN/DOT 21273 (2-2000) (6-2009) |

SPEED SAMPLE #2

Road No
Ref Pt

MNTH 62

ClearCounty
Stalker DSR 2X Radar
A. Hogan

At a point approximately 1900 feet west of Lexington Ave S

4-Lane Divided Concrete Roadway

55
1115

Date
Day

EAST

Dakota
10/16/2023
Monday

|
|

|

||||
|||
||||| |
||||| 

|
|
|

||||| ||
||||

||||
||||| |||
||||| ||||| |
||||| ||||| |||

VEHICLES

|

|

STATE OF MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

FIELD SPEED SURVEY SHEET

||||| 
||||
||||
||

||||| ||||| ||||
||||| |

M.P.H.

Page 92 of 107



Zone Location
Time

Weather Road Type
Machine E.B. 85% Tile 60   Pace 51 to 60 83.0% in 10 pace

Observer W.B. 85% Tile 60   Pace 52 to 61 90.9% in 10 pace

PASSENGER CARS, PICKUPS,VANS TRUCKS & BUSES
Bound WEST Bound EAST Bound WEST Bound

T. A.T. % VEHICLES T. A.T. % T. & B. T. A.T. % T. & B. T. A.T. %

80
79
78
77
76

75
74
73
72
71

70 1 112 100.0%
69 1 111 99.1% | 1 110 100.0%
68
67 1 110 98.2% || 2 109 99.1%
66

65 2 109 97.3% | 1 107 97.3%
64 | 1 106 96.4%
63 3 107 95.5%
62 3 104 92.9% || 2 105 95.5%
61 3 101 90.2% ||||| | 6 103 93.6%
60 6 98 87.5% ||||| ||||| || 12 97 88.2%
59 6 92 82.1% ||||| ||||| ||||| 15 85 77.3%
58 13 86 76.8% ||||| |||| 9 70 63.6%
57 9 73 65.2% ||||| ||| 8 61 55.5%
56 12 64 57.1% ||||| ||||| 10 53 48.2%
55 19 52 46.4% ||||| ||||| |||| 14 43 39.1%
54 7 33 29.5% ||||| ||||| || 12 29 26.4%
53 9 26 23.2% ||||| ||||| 10 17 15.5%
52 8 17 15.2% |||| 4 7 6.4%
51 4 9 8.0% || 2 3 2.7%
50 3 5 4.5% | 1 1 0.9%
49 1 2 1.8%
48
47 1 1 0.9%
46

45
44
43
42
41

MN/DOT 21273 (2-2000) (6-2009) |

SPEED SAMPLE #3

Road No
Ref Pt

MNTH 62

ClearCounty
Stalker DSR 2X Radar
A. Hogan

At a point approximately 50 feet west of the MNTH 62 to
SB ISTH 35E Ramp
4-Lane Divided Concrete Roadway

55
0930

Date
Day

EAST

Dakota
10/19/2023
Thursday

|

||

|
|

||||| ||||
||||| ||||| ||

|||
|||
|||
||||| |

VEHICLES

|

||||
|||
|

STATE OF MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

FIELD SPEED SURVEY SHEET

||||| ||||| ||||| ||||
||||| ||
||||| ||||
||||| |||

||||| |
||||| ||||| |||

M.P.H.

Page 93 of 107



Zone Location
Time

Weather Road Type
Machine E.B. 85% Tile 61   Pace 52 to 61 84.4% in 10 pace

Observer W.B. 85% Tile 60   Pace 52 to 61 90.7% in 10 pace

PASSENGER CARS, PICKUPS,VANS TRUCKS & BUSES
Bound WEST Bound EAST Bound WEST Bound

T. A.T. % VEHICLES T. A.T. % T. & B. T. A.T. % T. & B. T. A.T. %

80
79
78
77
76

75
74
73
72
71

70
69
68 1 109 100.0%
67 1 108 99.1%
66 1 107 98.2%
65 3 106 97.2% | 1 108 100.0%
64 2 103 94.5% | 1 107 99.1%
63 4 101 92.7% || 2 106 98.1%
62 2 97 89.0% |||| 4 104 96.3%
61 4 95 87.2% ||||| 5 100 92.6%
60 6 91 83.5% ||||| ||| 8 95 88.0%
59 10 85 78.0% ||||| ||||| || 12 87 80.6%
58 9 75 68.8% ||||| || 7 75 69.4%
57 13 66 60.6% ||||| ||||| || 12 68 63.0%
56 13 53 48.6% ||||| ||||| ||||| 15 56 51.9%
55 11 40 36.7% ||||| ||||| ||||| 15 41 38.0%
54 13 29 26.6% ||||| ||||| ||| 13 26 24.1%
53 6 16 14.7% ||||| | 6 13 12.0%
52 7 10 9.2% ||||| 5 7 6.5%
51 2 3 2.8% || 2 2 1.9%
50 1 1 0.9%
49
48
47
46

45
44
43
42
41

MN/DOT 21273 (2-2000) (6-2009) |

SPEED SAMPLE #4

Road No
Ref Pt

MNTH 62

ClearCounty
Stalker DSR 2X Radar
A. Hogan

At a point approximately 1400 feet west of MNTH 149/ Dodd Rd

4-Lane Divided Bituminous Roadway

55
1215

Date
Day

EAST

Dakota
10/16/2023
Monday

|
|
|||
||

|

||||| ||||| |||
||||| ||||| |||

||||
||
||||
||||| |

VEHICLES

||
|

STATE OF MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

FIELD SPEED SURVEY SHEET

||||| ||||| |
||||| ||||| |||
||||| |
||||| ||

||||| ||||| 
||||| ||||

M.P.H.

Page 94 of 107



Zone Location
Time

Weather Road Type
Machine E.B. 85% Tile 65   Pace 54 to 63 77.8% in 10 pace

Observer W.B. 85% Tile 63   Pace 55 to 64 83.8% in 10 pace

PASSENGER CARS, PICKUPS,VANS TRUCKS & BUSES
Bound WEST Bound EAST Bound WEST Bound

T. A.T. % VEHICLES T. A.T. % T. & B. T. A.T. % T. & B. T. A.T. %

80
79
78
77
76 1 108 100.0% | 1 111 100.0%
75 1 107 99.1%
74
73
72
71

70 | 1 110 99.1%
69 2 106 98.1%
68 1 104 96.3%
67 3 103 95.4% || 2 109 98.2%
66 3 100 92.6% ||||| | 6 107 96.4%
65 6 97 89.8% || 2 101 91.0%
64 2 91 84.3% |||| 4 99 89.2%
63 8 89 82.4% ||||| ||||| 10 95 85.6%
62 11 81 75.0% ||||| || 7 85 76.6%
61 10 70 64.8% ||||| ||||| | 11 78 70.3%
60 4 60 55.6% ||||| ||||| ||||| || 17 67 60.4%
59 8 56 51.9% ||||| ||||| ||| 13 50 45.0%
58 12 48 44.4% ||||| ||||| ||||| | 16 37 33.3%
57 8 36 33.3% ||||| | 6 21 18.9%
56 9 28 25.9% ||||| 5 15 13.5%
55 9 19 17.6% |||| 4 10 9.0%
54 5 10 9.3% || 2 6 5.4%
53 3 5 4.6% ||| 3 4 3.6%
52 1 2 1.9%
51 1 1 0.9%
50 | 1 1 0.9%
49
48
47
46

45
44
43
42
41

MN/DOT 21273 (2-2000) (6-2009) |

SPEED SAMPLE #5

Road No
Ref Pt

MNTH 62

ClearCounty
Stalker DSR 2X Radar
A. Hogan

At a point approximately 2400 feet east of MNTH 149/ Dodd Rd

4-Lane Divided Bituminous Roadway

55
1345

Date
Day

EAST

Dakota
10/16/2023
Monday

|
|

|||
|||
||||| |
||

||
|

||||| |||
||||| ||||

||||| |||
||||| ||||| |
||||| ||||| 
||||

VEHICLES

|

STATE OF MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

FIELD SPEED SURVEY SHEET

||||| ||||
||||| 
|||
|

||||| |||
||||| ||||| ||

M.P.H.

Page 95 of 107



Zone Location
Time

Weather Road Type
Machine E.B. 85% Tile 61   Pace 53 to 62 84.5% in 10 pace

Observer W.B. 85% Tile 62   Pace 54 to 63 80.7% in 10 pace

PASSENGER CARS, PICKUPS,VANS TRUCKS & BUSES
Bound WEST Bound EAST Bound WEST Bound

T. A.T. % VEHICLES T. A.T. % T. & B. T. A.T. % T. & B. T. A.T. %

80
79
78
77
76

75
74
73
72
71 | 1 109 100.0%
70 | 1 108 99.1%
69
68 1 110 100.0% || 2 107 98.2%
67
66 3 109 99.1% | 1 105 96.3%
65 | 1 104 95.4%
64 3 106 96.4% | 1 103 94.5%
63 2 103 93.6% |||| 4 102 93.6%
62 4 101 91.8% ||||| | 6 98 89.9%
61 9 97 88.2% ||||| |||| 9 92 84.4%
60 9 88 80.0% ||||| ||||| || 12 83 76.1%
59 15 79 71.8% ||||| | 6 71 65.1%
58 7 64 58.2% ||||| ||||| ||| 13 65 59.6%
57 12 57 51.8% ||||| |||| 9 52 47.7%
56 13 45 40.9% ||||| ||||| | 11 43 39.4%
55 10 32 29.1% ||||| ||||| || 12 32 29.4%
54 8 22 20.0% ||||| | 6 20 18.3%
53 6 14 12.7% |||| 4 14 12.8%
52 4 8 7.3% ||||| 5 10 9.2%
51 1 4 3.6% || 2 5 4.6%
50 1 3 2.7% || 2 3 2.8%
49
48 1 2 1.8% | 1 1 0.9%
47
46

45
44
43
42 1 1 0.9%
41

MN/DOT 21273 (2-2000) (6-2009) |

SPEED SAMPLE #6

Road No
Ref Pt

MNTH 62

ClearCounty
Stalker DSR 2X Radar
A. Hogan

At a point approximately 375 feet east of Charlton St

4-Lane Divided Bituminous Roadway

55
1030

Date
Day

EAST

Dakota
10/17/2023
Tuesday

|||

|||

|

||||| ||||| ||
||||| ||||| |||

||
||||
||||| ||||
||||| ||||

VEHICLES

|
|

|

STATE OF MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

FIELD SPEED SURVEY SHEET

|

||||| ||||| 
||||| |||
||||| |
||||

||||| ||||| ||||| 
||||| ||

M.P.H.

Page 96 of 107



Zone Location
Time

Weather Road Type
Machine E.B. 85% Tile 67   Pace 59 to 68 73.6% in 10 pace

Observer W.B. 85% Tile 66   Pace 55 to 64 69.0% in 10 pace

PASSENGER CARS, PICKUPS,VANS TRUCKS & BUSES
Bound WEST Bound EAST Bound WEST Bound

T. A.T. % VEHICLES T. A.T. % T. & B. T. A.T. % T. & B. T. A.T. %

80
79
78 | 1 116 100.0%
77
76 | 1 115 99.1%
75 | 1 114 98.3%
74
73 1 110 100.0% ||| 3 113 97.4%
72 1 109 99.1% | 1 110 94.8%
71 1 108 98.2%
70 2 107 97.3% || 2 109 94.0%
69 3 105 95.5% ||| 3 107 92.2%
68 4 102 92.7% | 1 104 89.7%
67 6 98 89.1% ||| 3 103 88.8%
66 7 92 83.6% ||||| || 7 100 86.2%
65 10 85 77.3% |||| 4 93 80.2%
64 6 75 68.2% ||||| | 6 89 76.7%
63 12 69 62.7% ||||| | 6 83 71.6%
62 9 57 51.8% ||||| || 7 77 66.4%
61 7 48 43.6% ||||| ||||| || 12 70 60.3%
60 12 41 37.3% ||||| || 7 58 50.0%
59 8 29 26.4% ||||| ||||| |||| 14 51 44.0%
58 3 21 19.1% ||||| ||||| || 12 37 31.9%
57 6 18 16.4% |||| 4 25 21.6%
56 4 12 10.9% |||| 4 21 18.1%
55 4 8 7.3% ||||| ||| 8 17 14.7%
54 |||| 4 9 7.8%
53 2 4 3.6% ||| 3 5 4.3%
52 1 2 1.8%
51 1 1 0.9% | 1 2 1.7%
50 | 1 1 0.9%
49
48
47
46

45
44
43
42
41

MN/DOT 21273 (2-2000) (6-2009) |

STATE OF MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

FIELD SPEED SURVEY SHEET

||||

||
|

||||| |||
|||

VEHICLES

|

||||| |
||||

||||| ||||| ||
||||| ||||
||||| ||
||||| ||||| ||

||||| |
||||| ||
||||| ||||| 
||||| |

|
||
|||
||||

|
|

Date
Day

EAST

Dakota
10/17/2023
Tuesday

Stalker DSR 2X Radar
A. Hogan

At a point approximately 1700 feet west of MNTH 3/
S Robert Trl
4-Lane Divided Bituminous Roadway

60
1130

SPEED SAMPLE #7

Road No
Ref Pt

MNTH 62

ClearCounty

M.P.H.

Page 97 of 107



Zone Location
Time

Weather Road Type
Machine E.B. 85% Tile 69   Pace 58 to 67 70.9% in 10 pace

Observer W.B. 85% Tile 67   Pace 58 to 67 81.1% in 10 pace

PASSENGER CARS, PICKUPS,VANS TRUCKS & BUSES
Bound WEST Bound EAST Bound WEST Bound

T. A.T. % VEHICLES T. A.T. % T. & B. T. A.T. % T. & B. T. A.T. %

80
79
78
77
76

75 1 110 100.0%
74 1 109 99.1%
73 5 108 98.2%
72
71 3 103 93.6%
70 3 100 90.9% || 2 111 100.0%
69 7 97 88.2% ||| 3 109 98.2%
68 4 90 81.8% ||||| || 7 106 95.5%
67 4 86 78.2% ||||| | 6 99 89.2%
66 9 82 74.5% ||||| | 6 93 83.8%
65 10 73 66.4% ||||| ||||| || 12 87 78.4%
64 15 63 57.3% ||||| ||||| | 11 75 67.6%
63 5 48 43.6% ||||| ||||| || 12 64 57.7%
62 9 43 39.1% ||||| | 6 52 46.8%
61 6 34 30.9% ||||| ||||| ||| 13 46 41.4%
60 8 28 25.5% ||||| ||| 8 33 29.7%
59 7 20 18.2% ||||| ||| 8 25 22.5%
58 5 13 11.8% ||||| ||| 8 17 15.3%
57 4 8 7.3% ||| 3 9 8.1%
56 2 4 3.6% | 1 6 5.4%
55 ||| 3 5 4.5%
54 1 2 1.8% | 1 2 1.8%
53
52 | 1 1 0.9%
51

50
49 1 1 0.9%
48
47
46

45
44
43
42
41

MN/DOT 21273 (2-2000) (6-2009) |

STATE OF MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

FIELD SPEED SURVEY SHEET

|

||||| ||
||||| 

VEHICLES

|

||||
||

||||| 
||||| ||||
||||| |
||||| |||

||||
||||| ||||
||||| ||||| 
||||| ||||| ||||| 

|||
|||
||||| ||
||||

|
|
||||| 

Date
Day

EAST

Dakota
10/17/2023
Tuesday

Stalker DSR 2X Radar
A. Hogan

At a point approximately 150 feet west of MNTH 3/
S Robert Trl
4-Lane Divided Bituminous Roadway

60
1215

SPEED SAMPLE #8

Road No
Ref Pt

MNTH 62

ClearCounty

M.P.H.

Page 98 of 107



10.a

REQUEST FOR CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

MEETING DATE: July 15, 2025 

AGENDA ITEM: Request for Proposals--Ivy Hills Park Playground 

ITEM TYPE: New and Unfinished Business 

DEPARTMENT: Parks and Recreation CONTACT: Meredith Lawrence, Parks and 
Recreation/Assistant Public 
Works Director 

ACTION REQUEST: 
Authorize the issuance of a Request for Proposals (RFP) for the playground replacement at Ivy 
Hills Park. 

BACKGROUND: 
In early January, the Parks and Recreation Commission established a subcommittee that met 
with staff and developed criteria for a RFP (Request for Proposals) to solicit proposals to 
replace the existing playground. The Parks and Recreation Commission reviewed the RFP at 
their January work session and the consensus of the members present agreed with the scope 
of the project. The City Council reviewed the RFP at their January 21 meeting and asked for 
changes. The City Council then formally approved the RFP at their February 4, 2025 meeting.  

Staff invited reputable playground contractors to submit responses and use their professional 
expertise and creativity to develop a unique play structure plan within the budget. The City 
received six proposals from five different qualified vendors. Staff notified the subcommittee of 
the number of proposals received and the subcommittee reviewed and narrowed down the 
proposals to four to begin community engagement.  

Staff conducted community engagement with roughly 650 responses throughout many 
mediums of engagement--online survey, open house and meetings with students in the 
schools. The Parks and Recreation Commission reviewed the results of community 
engagement and reviewed the proposals in relation to accessibility, features, and colors. The 
Parks and Recreation Commission recommended the approval of a playground from Webber 
Recreation at their May 13 meeting. 

Staff presented the playground proposal recommended by the Parks and Recreation 
Commission to the City Council at their May 20 meeting. The City Council approved the 
rejection of the bids and asked staff to develop a new RFP based on their desired change in 

Page 99 of 107



scope for the project. 

A new RFP was developed based on the information the City Council requested be added to 
the scope of the project including the following: a bid alternate for an accessible swing, the 
requirement of pour-in-place surfacing for all accessible features, and an increase in budget 
for the project by $20,000. Based on the extensive feedback received already and the Council's 
direction on moving this project forward, staff have elected to disband the subcommittee and 
develop a staff committee to narrow down the projects to three for the Parks and Recreation 
Commission to review. In addition, staff have received direction not to engage the community 
again on this project.  

The revised playground RFP was presented to the Parks and Recreation Commission for review 
on Tuesday, July 8. The Parks and Recreation Commission voted 7-0 in favor of the updated 
RFP. 

With rebidding this project, the new playground installation will occur in the Spring of 2026. 

FISCAL AND RESOURCE IMPACT: 
There is no cost associated with the release of the RFP. 

The 2025 budget included $160,000 from the City's General Levy to cover the expenses of this 
project. Based on the scope of the project, staff recommended an additional $20,000 for the 
project be contributed from the Special Park Fund. Additionally, the City Council has given 
direction that they would like an additional $20,000 added to this project total after reviewing 
the original bids received. Thus, the RFP includes a base bid not to exceed amount of 
$200,000. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Ivy Hills RFP after Rejection 062525

CITY COUNCIL PRIORITY: 
Economic Vitality & Community Vibrancy, Premier Public Services & Infrastructure, Inclusive 
and Responsive Government 

Page 100 of 107



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

City of Mendota Heights 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
 

IVY HILLS PARK PLAYGROUND REPLACEMENT 
645 Butler Avenue 

Mendota Heights, MN 55118 
 

PROPOSAL DEADLINE: August 28, 2025  10:00am 
 
 
 

Released: July 16, 2025 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 101 of 107



Section 1: General Information 
1). Contract Administration 
All correspondence regarding this Request for Proposals (RFP) and the proposed services must be 
addressed to: 
 Meredith Lawrence, Parks and Recreation Director/Assistant Public Works Director 
 City of Mendota Heights 
 1101 Victoria Curve 
 Mendota Heights, MN 55118 

Phone: 651-255-1354 
 Email: mlawrence@mendotaheightsmn.gov  
 
Submission must be sent by email. One hard copy PDF of the proposal and any relevant attachments 
(including a display poster board) should be sent to the mailing address above and be received prior to 
the proposal deadline.  
 
2). Tentative Timeline 
Due Date: 10:00am on August 28, 2025 (includes both digital and physical submission)  
Review by Parks and Recreation Commission on or before October 14, 2025 
City Council Approval of Project on or before October 21, 2025 
Notification of Award on or before October 24, 2025 
Playground should be installed as soon as possible after signed contract.  
 
3). Acceptance of Proposals Contents  
The contents of this RFP and the proposal will become contractual obligations if a contract ensues. 
Failure of the consultant to meet these obligations may result in cancellation of the award. All 
information in the proposal is subject to disclosure under the provisions of Minnesota Statutes Chapter 
13—Minnesota Government Data Practices Act.  By submitting a proposal, notwithstanding the 
provisions of Minnesota Statutes § 13.591, subd. 3(b), Respondents acknowledge that their proposals 
will be made public in their entirety to further the vital decision-making process included in the 
consideration of proposals.  By submitting a proposal, Respondents consent to this data disclosure and 
waive any claim against the City of Mendota Heights regarding the disclosure of the data pursuant to 
Minnesota Statutes § 13.08.  
 

Section 2: Project Overview  
1). Project Overview and Purpose  
The purpose of the RFP is to obtain site plan design and quotes to include demolition and disposal of 
current playground equipment, any necessary sitework, an expanded container, playground equipment, 
inclusive play features, poured-in-place rubber and engineered wood fiber surfacing including 
installation for the playground site at Ivy Hills Park, 645 Butler Avenue, Mendota Heights, MN 55118.  
The Parks and Recreation Department is challenging Respondents to use their professional expertise and 
creativity to develop a unique play structure. 
 
2). Owner  
The City of Mendota Heights is the Owner.  All work shall be on public property.  The contractor shall, at 
all times, confine operations to stay within the limits of the property.  Any repairs or restorations 

Page 102 of 107

mailto:mlawrence@mendotaheightsmn.gov


required outside the property limits due to the contractor’s carelessness shall be repaired by the 
contractor at their expense. 
 
Section 3: Proposals   
To be considered, each Respondent must submit a complete response to this RFP, using the format 
provided. The proposal must be signed in ink by an official authorized to bind the submitter to its 
provisions.  The proposal must include a statement as to the period during which the proposal remains 
valid.  This period must be at least one hundred forty (140) days from the due date for this proposal. 
Respondents shall include one digital and one hard copy of their proposal document. Respondents may 
submit up to two proposals/designs. 
 
1). Specifications 

A. The structure shall meet and comply with all current ADA Legislation and ASTM F1487 and 
include demolition and disposal of current playground equipment (options of reuse off-site of 
existing equipment should be noted in proposal), any necessary sitework, an expanded container 
and playground footprint, playground equipment with inclusive features, poured-in-place 
rubberized and engineered wood fiber surfacing including installation for the playground site. 

B. All equipment must meet age-related design criteria suitable for 2-5-year olds and 5-12 year olds 
and be IPEMA certified. 

C. The recycled wood timber container expansion must be included to meet the design of the 
updated enclosure attached and match the color and style of the existing container timbers to 
remain. The existing container does not need to be completely replaced but must have portions 
replaced to ensure it meets ADA requirements and safety standards. It is anticipated that the 
existing container timbers to be replaced will be salvaged from the existing infrastructure; 
however, container replacement may require select timbers to be furnished by the contractor if 
salvaged timbers are deemed unusable or are insufficient to meet any modified measurements 
of the container.  

a. To allow for adequate playground access space meeting current ADA requirements for a 
pedestrian ramp, the existing bituminous surface access shall be removed and replaced 
with a concrete pedestrian ramp. Bituminous surface removal limits shall be limited to 
only what is necessary to remove to achieve ADA compliance within the pedestrian ramp 
but may require removals up to the connecting trail system through Ivy Hills Park.   

D. The City requires Respondents to include the following features when developing renderings: 
a. At least five swings that may include any of the following types: 

i. Parent/child swing  
ii. Belt swings (minimum of 2) 

iii. Toddler swing  
iv. Multi-user swing or arch swing with sensory seat  

b. A merry-go-round or similar feature that an individual can fully utilize without 
transferring from a wheelchair  

c. A dramatic play element  
d. A communication board  
e. At least two slides  
f. At least two vinyl coated steel benches with backs anchored in the ground within the 

container area. Retaining and reinstalling the two existing blue playground benches is 
acceptable. If new vinyl coated steel benches are selected for use, the two existing blue 
playground benches shall be removed from the site. 

Page 103 of 107



g. Poured-in-place surfacing shall be included to access all-inclusive features.  Engineered 
wood fiber surfacing shall be utilized through the remainder of the playground container. 

E. Respondents are required to include in their playground design features that provide 
opportunities for improved balance, coordination, upper body strength, lower body strength and 
imagination for users of all ages (monkey bars, pull-up bars, large slides).   

F. Wear pads must be installed below the bottom of slides and swings. 
G. The playground container is currently 3,815 square feet. The new playground will be increased to 

4,472 square feet. The attached map outlines the container space available for expansion in 
green and pink.   

a. Expansion of the northeast section of the playground container is anticipated to require 
saw cutting and removal of a portion of the existing concrete pad used for bicycle storage 
and trash collection to better align the container’s perimeter with the adjacent trail 
system. The anticipated concrete removal limits can be seen on the attached playground 
map. 

b. It is not a requirement that the sandbox remains. Thus, Respondents are welcome to 
propose using that space for different features within the playground design.  

c. Respondents have the option to show creativity in response to the container’s contents 
and/or shape. Due to in place infrastructure, expansion to the southwest is prohibited.  
Any additional expansions beyond that shown should not infringe within the drip line of 
existing trees. 

H. The site shall have signage information provided appropriate to the structure/area. If signage 
includes photos of individuals, the photo must include a diverse group of users.  

I. All plastic and coating products must be UV and color stabilized to resist fading. 
J. Supplier must be able to provide a tool kit for fasteners, parts manual (both hard copy and 

electronic) and a touch up paint kit for all structure colors. 
K. All parts must have a corrosion resistant finish and be capped on the top end. 
L. All metal decks must be manufactured from sheet steel conforming to ASTM specification A-569 

and be finished with a vinyl coating. 
M. All connecting hardware used must be zinc plated or stainless steel, free of protrusions, vandal 

resistant and have a tamper proof design. A service kit for tamper proof fasteners must also be 
provided. 

N. The color pallet for the playground is requested to portray bright colors. 
O. ALTERNATE A – In lieu of the merry-go-round or other feature for wheelchair use without an 

individual transferring from their chair, an inclusive swing shall be identified for both space and 
cost.  This alternate shall be allowed to exceed the identified playground budget limitation and 
shall include the deduction price of the alternate wheelchair inclusive feature. 

 
2). Submission Requirements  
Each of the following items shall be considered an integral part of the contractor’s proposal and shall be 
submitted to the City on or before the date and time as stated: 

1. One copy of a completed and signed Proposal Form. 
2. A list of all base materials  
3. A list of all equipment included in the plans, with quantities. 
4. One display board to be used for in-person engagement meetings  
5. One copy of a play area equipment layout drawing to scale showing layout, safety zones, 

accessibility, border and outside dimensions.  
6. One bound notebook or plan size sheet of all components and features specific to the project. 
7. One complete copy of all warranty information. 
8. The contractor shall indicate all deviations from the specifications. 

Page 104 of 107



9. Provide a letter from the manufacturer or an independent consulting firm stating all equipment
meets the current ASTM F1487 standards

10. Estimated timeline for construction.
a. The installation of the entire playground must be completed by paid professional staff.

Any deviation from the use of paid professional installers must be approved by the Parks
and Recreation Director.

11. Documentation that all equipment quoted is covered by product liability insurance.

3). Project Budget 
The fee proposal must not exceed $200,000 and must include all elements associated with the project, 
including procurement of all documents, demolition of existing equipment, new container materials and 
installation for area of expansion, installation of replacement recycled wood timbers in areas where 
unsafe, surfacing, structures, delivery, installation, construction permits, taxes and service charges. Each 
firm is requested to provide the maximum amount of play activities for that fee. 

4). Proposal Receipt  
Proposals must arrive at the Mendota Heights City Hall, 1101 Victoria Curve, Mendota Heights, MN 
55118 on or before 10:00 AM on Thursday, August 28, 2025. 

Section 4: Playground Regulatory Compliance 
Each playground proposal must meet the following regulatory compliance requirements: 

1. All equipment provided and all areas around and between equipment must comply with the
most current Consumer Product Safety Commission (CPSC) guidelines and The American Society
for Testing and Material (ASTM) standards.  It is the responsibility of each bidder and
manufacturer to be aware of these guidelines.  Please list all deviations where your proposal
does not comply and explain each in detail when submitting the proposal.  Equipment that
requires intensive labor measures or modifications, after installation, such as the cutting of bolts,
to bring equipment into conformance with CPSC and ASTM will not be accepted.  As
recommended by CPSC, a project specific maintenance manual shall be provided at the end of
the project.

2. The entire playground must meet the current requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act
and ASTM F1487.

3. All equipment must be IPEMA certified.
4. All surfacing materials must meet current CPSC guidelines, ASTM F1951 and ASTM F1292

standards, as well as be IPEMA certified.
a. Once installation is complete on all equipment, the supplier must provide a formal safety

audit of the installed equipment.  The audit must document that equipment meets all
current standards listed above.  Final payment for the structure, payment for base
materials and installation will not be processed until after the safety audit inspection and
document has been completed and delivered from a certified playground inspector. CPSI
documentation must be included.

Section 5: Proposal Selection 
Responses to this RFP will be evaluated based on the following process: 

1. Staff will review the firm’s response to the RFP and determine if the proposal meets all criteria
for consideration.

2. A Parks and Recreation staff subcommittee will narrow down the complete proposals to the top
three designs to be reviewed by the Parks and Recreation Commission.

Page 105 of 107



3. The Parks and Recreation Commission will review the top three playground renderings 
determined by the staff subcommittee and make a recommendation to the City Council on the 
desired playground for the park.  

4. City staff will present the Parks and Recreation Commission’s recommendation to the City 
Council for a final decision. 

 
1). Award of Contract 
The City of Mendota Heights will award one contract for this entire project to the Respondent who 
submits a proposal that meets all performance and required criteria as set forth by this RFP. 
 
Section 6: Proposal and Project Terms and Conditions 
The following terms and conditions apply to this RFP and to the Project: 

1. The City of Mendota Heights is not liable for any cost incurred by the prospective firms prior to 
the signing of the contract. 

2. The contents of this proposal will become contractual obligations if a contract ensues.  Failure of 
the selected consultant to accept these obligations may result in cancellation of the award. 

3. The City of Mendota Heights reserves the right to award the total proposal, to reject any and all 
proposals in whole or in part, and to waive any informality or technical defects, in the City’s 
judgment.  In determination of award, the qualification of the proposal submitter, the conformity 
with the specifications of services to be supplied and delivery terms will be considered. 

4. The city assumes no responsibility or liability for costs incurred by Respondents prior to the 
submission of a proposal. Total liability of the City of Mendota Heights is limited to the terms and 
conditions of this RFP. 

5. The successful Respondent will be required to furnish appropriate certificates of insurance as 
part of the final contract negotiations. 

6. The contractor shall pay all sales, consumer, use and other taxes required to be paid by them in 
accordance with the law of the place where the work is to be performed. 

7. The contractors shall provide and maintain all necessary temporary enclosures and barricades to 
adequately protect the work and materials from the elements and persons not involved with 
construction.  The contractor shall remove all temporary enclosures, barricades and fences upon 
completion of the work. 

8. The contractor shall provide for and be responsible for protection of existing pavements, utilities, 
fencing, etc.  In general, all existing materials, surfaces, sod, etc., to remain which are affected by 
the work shall be repaired and restored to an original and functional condition. 

9. Before making any shipment of materials to the site, the contractor shall ascertain whether the 
site is in a condition to receive the shipment.  Where this provision is neglected and material is 
delivered to the site when the latter is not in condition to receive it, such materials shall be 
properly stored elsewhere at the contractor’s expense and adequate insurance coverage 
provided for off-site storage. 

10. The contractor shall provide storage as required to protect and preserve all materials stored at 
the site.  Materials are not to be stored directly on the ground.  Storage of materials is to be 
confined to areas designated by the City.  The city will not sign for or be responsible for materials 
delivered to the site. 

a. Equipment delivered early will not be paid in full.  Full payment of structure and 
installation will be paid when installation is complete and a compliance audit has been 
received.  

Page 106 of 107



11. Working hours shall be from 7:00am- 8:00pm on Monday-Friday and 9:00am-5:00pm on 
Saturday and Sundays. 

12. All work areas shall be returned to a condition equal to or better than was in existence at the 
beginning of the project.  All construction debris, including excavated soil, shipping materials 
including cardboard, pallets, etc. shall be removed and disposed of in a manner satisfactory to 
the City. 

 
 

Page 107 of 107



Dakota County, Maxar, Microsoft

0 20

SCALE IN FEET
Date: 1/9/2025

Ivy Hill Playground

Existing Playground
3,815 Square Feet

Northeast Addition
492 Square Feet
+12.9% Increase to Ex

Northwest Addition
165 Square Feet
+4.3% Inc to Ex


	1. Call to Order
	2. Roll Call
	3. Pledge of Allegiance
	4. Moment of Silence in Memory of Officer Scott Patrick, EOW July 30, 2014
	5. Approval of the Agenda
	6. Public Comments - for items not on the agenda
	7. Consent Agenda
	a. Approve Minutes from the July 1, 2025, City Counci
	CC 07-01-2025

	b. Acknowledge Minutes from the May 13, 2025, Parks a
	2025-05-13 Parks and Recreation Commission Minutes

	c. Acknowledge Minutes from the June 10, 2025, Parks 
	2025-06-10 Parks and Recreation Commission Work Session Minutes

	d. Acknowledge the May Par 3 Financial Report
	Cover Memo
	2025 May P3 Budget to Actual
	May Financial Dashboard Par 3

	e. Adopt Resolution 2025-42 Final Payment and Accepta
	Cover Memo
	Resolution 2025-42 Accepting Final Payment and Fire Station Roof Replacement

	f. Approve the Hiring of a Public Works Maintenance W
	Cover Memo

	g. Adopt Resolution 2025-44 Formally Accepting Donati
	Cover Memo
	Res. 2025-44 Heussner Donation Acceptance

	h. Reject Bids for the Kensington East Street Improvements
	Cover Memo
	Res. 2025-43 to Reject Bids for the Kensington East Street Improvements
	Kensington East Bid Abstract

	i. Approve Developer's Agreement for the Cobalt Busin
	Cover Memo
	Cobalt Business Center - Development Agreement - 07.07.2025

	j. Approve a Massage Therapist License
	Cover Memo

	k. Approve Temporary On-Sale Liquor License - Holy Fa
	Cover Memo

	l. Approve Contract to Grind Brush at City Transfer S
	Cover Memo

	m. Approve Purchase of Public Works Truck from Inver 
	Cover Memo

	n. Approve Claims List
	Claims List


	8. Presentations
	a. City of Mendota Heights Speed Camera Update
	Cover Memo

	b. Highway 62 Speed Limit Presentation
	Cover Memo
	MNTH 62 CS 1918 Speed Limit Authorization and Map


	9. Public Hearings
	10. New and Unfinished Business
	a. Request for Proposals--Ivy Hills Park Playground
	Cover Memo
	Ivy Hills RFP after Rejection 062525


	11. Community / City Administrator Announcements
	12. City Council Comments
	13. Adjourn
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Ivy Hills Playground Map 0725



